
 1 

FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
   AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

  
 

DATE:  July 9, 2025  
 
TO:   Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 
 
BY:   Jessica Gibson, Analyst 
    
SUBJECT: Consider Adoption – Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence 

Update Prepared for Raisin City Water District (LAFCo File No. MSR-24-
01/RSOI-211) 

 
Attachment A – Proposed Raisin City Water District Sphere of Influence Update Map 
Attachment B – Draft Raisin City Water District Municipal Service Review 
Attachment C – McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency Map 
Attachment D – Indemnification Agreement  
Attachment E – James Irrigation District Comments 
Attachment F – Reclamation District No. 1606 Comments 
Attachment G – Fresno Irrigation District Comments 
Attachment H – Fresno County Comments 
Attachment I – Kings River Conservation District Comments 
Attachment J – Kings River Water Association Comments 
Attachment K – Jerry Rai Comments 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Conditional Approval of the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update prepared 
for Raisin City Water District.  
 
 Action 1: Municipal Service Review (“MSR”)  
 

A. Acting as Lead Agency pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
Guidelines find that the MSR prepared for Raisin City Water District (“RCWD” or the 
“District”) is Categorically Exempt from the provisions of CEQA under section 15306, 
“Information Collection.”  

 
 Action 2: Raisin City Water District Sphere of Influence (“SOI”) Update 
 

A. Find that LAFCo, as a Responsible Agency pursuant to CEQA considered the Notice 
of Exemption prepared by RCWD, Lead Agency, for its review and update of the RCWD 
SOI. 

 
B. Find that LAFCo, as a Responsible Agency, has determined that the RCWD SOI 

update does not have the potential to result in a significant effect on the environment, 



 2 

and that the SOI update is not subject to CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 
15061(b)(3).   

 
 
  
 Action 3: Written Determinations and Recommendations  
 

A. Receive this report and any public testimony regarding the proposed MSR and 
proposed SOI update.  
 

B. Find that approval of the requested RCWD SOI update is based on sufficient 
information provided to the Commission in the MSR and SOI determinations, all other 
testimony, evidence and information provided by persons and interested agencies, 
and is in compliance with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”). 

 
C. Approve the MSR, subject to any changes the Commission deems appropriate. 
 
D. Adopt the written determinations for the RCWD SOI update as recommended in the 

MSR pursuant to Government Code section 56425(e). 
 

E. Approve and adopt the proposed revision to RCWD’s SOI to include an additional 
27,137 acres. (Attachment A)  

 
F. Approve the Indemnification Agreement in the form attached (Attachment D) and 

authorize the Executive Officer to execute said agreement, subject to any minor 
revisions or corrections as approved by the Commission’s legal counsel.  

 
 Action 4: Conditions of Approval   
 

A. RCWD’s execution of an Indemnification Agreement in the form attached as 
(Attachment D) or substantially similar.   
 

B. Prepare an MSR Update or Addendum with the inclusion of a Master Service Plan 
before additional powers are activated per RCWD’s principal act authority. 

 
a) Upon pursuit of additional activation of powers enumerated in the RCWD’s 

principal act, the District will conduct CEQA analysis according to State guidelines 
and amend the MSR to provide a service plan for providing water services, which 
may include administration of a Proposition 218 election or other fee, charge, or 
ratemaking procedures consistent with the California Constitution to fund water 
projects.   

 
Executive Summary 
 
The proposal is a request by RCWD, via District Resolution, to reduce the Mid-Valley Water 
District (“MVWD”) SOI by 28,874 acres and increase the RCWD SOI by 27,137 acres.1 The 
proposed territory is generally located approximately nine miles southwest of the City of Fresno, 
12 miles southeast of Kerman, and five miles northwest of Caruthers. The RCWD SOI boundary 

 
1 Any local agency may file a written request to amend a SOI pursuant to Government Code section 56428, subdivision (a). 



 3 

expansion differs from the MVWD SOI reduction in three areas: the first area will be removed 
from the MVWD SOI and not included in the RCWD SOI, bounded by the San Joaquin River to 
the north, Lake Avenue to the east, Ashlan Avenue to the south, and Yuba Avenue to the west; 
the second area is not in the MVWD SOI but will be included in the RCWD SOI, bounded by 
Ashlan Avenue to the north, Butte Avenue to the east, Belmont Avenue to the south, and Yuba 
Avenue to the west; the third area will be removed from the RCWD SOI altogether, bounded by 
the north/east bank of the James Bypass, McMullin Grade to the east, south/west bank of the 
James Bypass, and Lake Avenue to the west. Presently, RCWD provides the following 
authorized services – levy and collect assessments and standby charges, perform agreements, 
enter contracts, and plan for the distribution of water for irrigation purposes. 
 
Principal Act – California Water District Law 
 
California Water Code (“WAT”) sections 34000 thru 38501 for California Water Districts enables 
the formation of water districts to “acquire, plan, construct, maintain, improve, operate, and keep 
in repair the necessary works for the production, storage, transmission, and distribution of water 
for irrigation, domestic, industrial, and municipal purposes, and any drainage or reclamation 
works connected therewith or incidental thereto.” (WAT section 35401) 
 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act  
 
California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”) was signed into law on 
September 16, 2014. This three-part legislation requires local agencies to develop groundwater 
sustainability plans that are compatible with their regional economic and environmental needs.  
SGMA creates a framework for sustainable local groundwater management.  
 
SGMA required local agencies to form Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (“GSAs”) in local 
groundwater basins by June 2017, and required the adoption of Groundwater Sustainability 
Plans (“GSPs”) for groundwater basins deemed critically overdrafted by year 2020. SGMA 
legislation created the requirements for governments and water agencies of high- and medium- 
priority basins to halt overdraft and bring groundwater basins into balanced levels of pumping 
and recharge. Under SGMA, these basins should reach sustainability within 20 years of 
implementing their sustainability plans  RCWD is a participant in the McMullin Area GSP and is 
a member agency of the McMullin Area GSA (“MAGSA”). (Attachment C)  
 
Background   
 
On October 14, 2015, Fresno LAFCo adopted an MSR for RCWD. The 2015 MSR made the 
following critical determinations about the District: 
 

• RCWD does not provide direct water services. 
• MVWD entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for coordinating the 

implementation of the SGMA in the Lower Kings Groundwater Basin.  
• RCWD expressed interest in annexing land to the District due to the potential groundwater 

overdraft issues occurring in properties west of the District service area. 
• Since the District’s formation in 1962, Fresno LAFCo records indicate that RCWD owns no 

public facilities or physical infrastructure. No direct water services to landowners are 
currently provided by the District. 

• RCWD has no existing surface water entitlements so farmers within the District service 
area irrigate land by pumping groundwater. 



 4 

• RCWD is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners 
within the District. 

• Annual land assessments are collected by RCWD and are utilized to provide some direct 
services. Other services are provided through cooperative agreements with other local 
agencies. RCWD uses land assessment to maintain the operation of the District, help fund 
the development of future RCWD recharge projects, conduct groundwater studies, 
represent and advocate for landowners within the District. 

• RCWD does not presently charge fees for any of its provided services; however, it 
historically has relied on the collection of land assessments and state grant opportunities 
to fund its ongoing operation. 

• Fresno LAFCo notes that the current land assessments collected by RCWD appear to be 
inadequate to finance the planned construction and operation of canals necessary to 
convey water delivery services as presented by the 2012 feasibility study. 

• Fresno LAFCo observes that RCWD primarily provides intangible services; these are 
services that are not physically measurable. RCWD provides landowner representation 
among other local agencies involved with the organization and implementation of SGMA 
in the Lower Kings Groundwater Basin. 

 
The 2015 MSR made the following determinations in relation to the District’s SOI: 
 

• RCWD has been taking an active role in the implementation of California’s Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act and intends to participate in the planning efforts of the GSA 
on behalf of its landowners in the District. The District intends to advocate and protect its 
landowners’ interests as the Groundwater Sustainable Plan is prepared by the GSA. 

• RCWD states that it is in place to advocate and represent its landowners as this new SGMA 
legislation is implemented. 

• Since the District’s formation in 1962, Fresno LAFCo records indicate that RCWD owns no 
public facilities or physical infrastructure. No direct water services to landowners are 
currently being provided by the District. 

• RCWD has no existing surface water entitlements so farmers within the District service 
area irrigate land by pumping groundwater. Fresno LAFCo observes that the District 
currently provides intangible services; these are services that are not physically 
measurable. 

• RCWD states that it may need to impose fees, increase assessments, or receive some 
other source of revenue at such time as it expands its services. District informed LAFCo 
that it does not have any outstanding debt. 

• RCWD informed Fresno LAFCo that it is evaluating potential annexation opportunities for 
lands currently outside its service area. Land available for annexation is generally north 
and west of the existing service area. This area is within the Lower Kings Basin, but at this 
time is not technically represented by a local agency to protect its interests as it relates to 
farming operation and irrigation water. It is Fresno LAFCo’s observation that areas located 
outside of any local agency’s service area would be represented by the County as SGMA 
is implemented.  

• RCWD intends to annex land into its service area so that landowners could be represented 
by the District once the implementation of SGMA begins to occur circa June 2017. The 
District did not provide an annexation timeline; however, Fresno LAFCo encourages the 
District develop an annexation program. Such a program would assist the District develop 
policy that will ultimately guide the District’s annexation program. 

 



 5 

On October 14, 2015, LAFCo recommends the dissolution of the District due to its failure to 
provide services to its constituents. LAFCo granted the District a one-year period to address 
identified deficiencies and to establish a renewed purpose for serving its constituency. Since then, 
the District has made substantial progress toward fulfilling these requirements. 
 
In October 2016, as a one-year follow-up to prior MSR findings, RCWD submitted the 2016 
Strategic Plan, prepared by Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group. The 2016 Strategic Plan was 
developed to assess and address the District’s operational needs, opportunities, management 
practices, and overall functionality. The document also references a 1975 report in which LAFCo 
recommended the dissolution of the District should the Mid-Valley Canal project fail to materialize 
and no alternative source of irrigation water become available. 
 
On May 13, 2024, RCWD formally submitted to Fresno LAFCo an application for an SOI 
expansion and annexation, including the initial draft of the MSR prepared by Provost & Pritchard, 
and all associated fees. 
 
On July 24, 2024, Fresno LAFCo completed its review of the draft MSR and issued comments to 
RCWD, requesting additional information regarding the MVWD portion of the draft MSR. 
 
On July 30, 2024, Fresno LAFCo convened an in-person meeting with representatives from 
RCWD and James Irrigation District (“JID”) to discuss concerns related to the RCWD’s proposal 
for SOI expansion and annexation, including the existing JID well field and easements. RCWD 
and JID agreed to pursue an MOU to formalize their cooperation. After several months of 
discussions and negotiations, the two districts were unable to reach a mutually acceptable 
agreement.  
 
On December 23, 2024, RCWD submitted revisions to the RCWD and MVWD draft MSRs to 
incorporate references to JID well fields and to update the language within the MSRs. 
 
On February 11, 2025, Fresno LAFCo routed RCWD’s application and sent out request for 
comments for affected agencies via mail and email.  
 
On February 26, 2025, the Fresno County Assessor’s Office returned the boundary report, 
identifying a few necessary corrections to the map and legal description. RCWD incorporated the 
required revisions and submitted the corrected documents to LAFCo within the week. RCWD also 
amended its resolution to reflect the updated map and legal description acreage. 
 
On February 26, 2025, the comment period was extended by ten business days at the request of 
Fresno County, with the new deadline set for March 11, 2025. 
 
On March 7, 2025, Fresno LAFCo issued a Certificate of Filing pursuant to Section 56658(f) of 
the Government Code for the proposed RCWD Reorganization and RCWD SOI Revision-
Municipal Service Review / MVWD SOI Revision-Municipal Service Review. It states LAFCo may 
consider the subject proposal at a public hearing on April 9, 2025, but not later than ninety days 
after issuance of the Certificate of Filing, except as such hearing may be continued from time to 
time pursuant to GC Section 56666(a). Any continuance shall be to a date certain and noticed in 
accordance with applicable law.  
 
On March 13, 2025, Fresno LAFCo met with representatives of RCWD to review comments 
received on the draft MSR from JID, Reclamation District No. 1606 (“RD No. 1606”), Fresno 
Irrigation District (“FID”), and Fresno County. The RCWD representatives agreed to revise 



 6 

portions of the draft MSR in response to the feedback and to reschedule the hearing from April 9, 
2025 to May 14, 2025, to allow sufficient time for the proposed edits. 
 
On April 23, 2025, Fresno LAFCo received the revised draft MSR from RCWD, with all requested 
edits completed. In accordance with CKH, the draft MSR was posted 21 days prior to the 
scheduled public hearing. Notices of the hearing were mailed to all registered voters and 
landowners within the affected territory, as well as to those within a 300-foot buffer surrounding 
the area in compliance with CKH. 
 
On May 14, 2025, the Commission considered all relevant factors and evidence and heard all 
interested parties wishing to speak on the proposal. The Commission voted to continue the public 
hearing to consider approval of the MSR and SOI Update for RCWD and MVWD, along with the 
subsequent RCWD annexation, to the July 9, 2025 hearing to allow additional time for further 
analysis of late-received comments prior to full consideration by the Commission. 
 
MSR Summary – Raisin City Water District 
 
Raisin City Water District is located in central Fresno County, three miles southwest of the City of 
Fresno, three miles south of Kerman, and just northwest of the community of Caruthers. The 
community of Raisin City is located within the District. The District encompasses approximately 
51,719 acres (80.8 square miles). The District’s SOI encompasses approximately 80,125 acres 
(125.2 square miles). Land uses within RCWD are primarily agricultural.   
 
Since its inception, RCWD has not been able to secure a source of surface water entitlement. 
Farmers within the District obtain water for irrigation purposes by pumping groundwater. The 
District’s primary purpose is to improve groundwater conditions throughout the Raisin City area. 
 
RCWD is a participating member of the MAGSA pursuant to SGMA, which was signed into law 
on September 16, 2014. 
 
The District is an independent special district which has a five-member board of directors not 
governed by another legislative body (either a city council or a county board of supervisors). 
Candidates eligible to serve as the board of directors must be a holder of title to land within the 
District boundaries or the legal representative of the holder of title to land within the District 
boundaries. District board members are subject to election of four-year staggered terms; in the 
event no candidates file election papers, members are appointed in lieu of an election by the 
Fresno County Board of Supervisors based on recommendation provided from the District’s board 
of directors. 
 
The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information 
services regarding statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues 
affecting local agricultural irrigation. 
 
The District does not own any public facilities or infrastructure, nor does it have any surface water 
rights. There is no surface water available for irrigation purposes within the District. District 
landowners are solely reliant on groundwater for their farming operations. Although the District 
does not provide any tangible services to its landowners, the District has plans for the construction 
of groundwater storage basins and related infrastructure and pipelines to eventually convey water 
within the District. 
 



 7 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners within 
the District. The District collects an annual land assessment of $0.75 per acre with a minimum 
assessment of $2 per parcel. According to the District, annual land assessments are collected by 
the District and are used to provide indirect services through cooperative agreements with other 
local agencies and to administer District operations, fund the development of future District 
recharge projects, conduct groundwater studies, and advocate and represent landowners within 
the District. The District does not presently charge fees for any of these services outside of its 
assessments. 
 
The District’s adopted budget for fiscal year (“FY”) 2023-24 shows a total of $68,060 with an 
estimated expenditure of $243,300. In the most recent FY 2022-23 audit, the District’s net position 
decreased from FY 2021-22 to FY 2022-23. This was due to the increase in engineering expenses 
related to the McMullin On-Farm Recharge Project and other planning and engineering expenses. 
 
MSR Summary of Comments and Responses 
 
FIRST PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD 
 

James Irrigation District  
• Comment:  

o Concerned reorganization could interfere with operations of the JID well field 
facilities and the JID/FID jointly owned and operated Southwest Banking Facility. 

o Concerned future RCWD projects could impact JID. 
• Response: 

o Addressed interference with well field operations by including language recognizing 
JID well field easements. RCWD further stated it would not interfere with operations 
(II-17) and documented JID facilities/easements on Figures II-1, II-3, III-1, and III-3. 

o Stated future projects, if any, would be evaluated under CEQA. (Attachment E) 
 

Reclamation District No. 1606 
• Comment:  

o Shared concerns with JID. 
o Concern related to proposed SOI and reorganization boundaries. 

• Response: 
o Revised the proposed SOI to eliminate overlap with RD 1606 facilities and the 

James Bypass. 
o Stated future projects, if any, would be evaluated under CEQA. 
o Understood projects requiring use of RD 1606 facilities will need an agreement. 

(Attachment F) 
 

Fresno Irrigation District 
• Comment:  

o Concerned reorganization could interfere with FID facilities, and jointly owned and 
operated (JID/FID) Southwest Banking Facility. 

• Response: 
o Addressed interference with FID operations and JID/FID Southwest Banking Facility 

by including language recognizing FID facilities and easements. RCWD further 
stated it would not interfere with operations (II-17), and documented 
facilities/easements on Figures II-1, II-3, III-1, and III-3. (Attachment G) 

 
County of Fresno  



 8 

• Comment:  
o Supports the proposed reorganization. 
o Concern related to SOI overlap with RD 1606. 

• Response: 
o Revised the proposed SOI to eliminate overlap with RD 1606 and the James 

Bypass. (Attachment H) 
 
SECOND PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD 
 

Kings River Conservation District  
• Comment:  

o Concerned reorganization could interfere with KRCD facilities and easements. 
• Response: 

o Addressed interference with KRCD operations by including language recognizing 
KRCD facilities and easements. RCWD further stated it would not interfere with 
operations (II-17), and documented facilities/easements on Figures II-1, II-3, III-1, 
and III-3, also including the McMullin On-Farm Project on Figures II-2 and III-2. 
(Attachment I) 

 
Kings River Water Association  
• Comment:  

o Concern related to the potential diversion of water from the Kings River for the 
McMullin On-Farm Project and future projects.  

• Response: 
o Addressed concerns to add clarifying language in the MSR (II-12) to state Kings 

River water would only be diverted lawfully and with all required approvals in 
coordination with KRWA. (Attachment J) 

 
Jerry Rai  
• Comment:  

o Requested postponement of annexation vote for reasons pertaining to unfair 
representation and voice dilution, increased liability with respect to the JID well field, 
no access to surface water supply, and oil field contamination risks. 

• Response:  
o No response as of yet, provided that comments were submitted to LAFCo via email 

at 5:09 p.m. on Tuesday, July 1, 2025, published on the LAFCo website on July 2, 
2025, and emailed the linked comments to a RCWD representative on July 2, 2025. 

 
 
Legislative Summary of Required Determinations 
 
CKH requires LAFCo to review and update, as necessary, special districts’ SOIs before January 
1, 2008, and every five years thereafter. Prior to, or in conjunction with an agency’s SOI update, 
LAFCo is required to conduct an MSR for each local agency.    
 
MSRs provide a comprehensive review of the services provided by a city or special district and 
present recommendations with regard to the condition and adequacy of these services and 
whether or not any modifications to a city or special district’s SOI is necessary. The MSR can be 
used as informational tools by LAFCo and local agencies in evaluating the efficiencies of current 
district operations and may suggest changes in order to effectively serve the public.   
 



 9 

SOI updates may recommend affirmation, consolidation, or dissolution of the existing SOI 
boundary or recommend modifications to the SOI boundary. LAFCo is not required to initiate 
changes to an SOI based on its determinations and recommendations of the service review, 
although it does have the power to do so if such changes are consistent with recommendations 
or a conclusion of a study prepared pursuant to section 56378, 56425, or 56430 and the 
commission makes the necessary determinations as specified in subdivision (b) of section 56881. 
Such updates are required by State law to be conducted every five years, as necessary. MSRs 
are required to be prepared prior to, or in conjunction with SOI updates.   
 
State law requires that the Commission in its consideration of the MSRs adopt written 
determinations for each of the following nine criteria: 
 

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area. 
2. The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within 

or contiguous to the sphere of influence.    
3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and 

infrastructure needs or deficiencies.  
4. Financial ability of agencies to provide services. 
5. Status of, and Opportunities for, shared facilities. 
6. Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and 

operational efficiencies. 
7. Anything other matters related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 

commission policy.  
 
As part of the SOI update, the Commission is required to consider and make appropriate 
determinations in relationship to each of the following: 
 

1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space 
lands. 

2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 
3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency 

provides or is authorized to provide. 
4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area.  
5. For a city or special district that provides public facilities or services related to sewers, 

municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the present and probable need 
for those services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within the existing 
sphere of influence. 

 
Environmental Determination 
 
CEQA requires that the Commission undertake and review an environmental analysis before 
granting approval of a project, as defined by CEQA. MSRs are categorically exempt from CEQA 
under a classification related to information gathering (Class 6 - Regulation section 15306), which 
states: "Class 6 consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and 
resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an 
environmental resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a 
study leading to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded." 
Indeed, these MSRs collect data for the purpose of evaluating municipal services provided by the 
agencies. There are no land use changes or environmental impacts created by such studies. 
  



 10 

Furthermore, MSRs qualify for a general exemption from environmental review based upon CEQA 
Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), which states: "The activity is covered by the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in 
question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA." 
Additionally, the SOI updates qualify for the same general exemption from environmental review 
based upon CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3).   
  
There is no possibility that the MSR or SOI updates may have a significant effect on the 
environment because there are no land use changes associated with the documents. If the 
Commission approves and adopts the MSRs and SOI updates and determines that the projects 
are exempt from CEQA, staff will prepare and file a notice of exemption with the County of Fresno, 
as required by CEQA Guidelines section 15062.  
 



Portion not included in proposed 
Mid-Valley WD or Raisin City WD SOI or ~ 

Service Area boundaries. 

-- James I.D. Conveyance Facilities 

-

Southwest Banking Facility No. 
583 (Fresno I.D. and James I.D.) 

D Fresno I.D. Pond 

- Fresno I.D. Flood Rights Area 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

5Z2l (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

c::J McMullin On-Farm Project 

- Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

- Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. 

: : ~ Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

D Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

D Kings River Conservation District 

LJ Fresnol.D. 

A-,_ 0-==2 

~ Miles 

,. 

S/,t/10211.:\ .... lJMI Cit-/ WltU Dimitt· 1111\11111MJll2·Al'lt>u.Otioll\,tODC.IS\MO~\MY._ffl.lpt\MU_"'Op, .,,_ 

Proposed Service Area and SOI 
Raisin City Water District 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



2025 Municipal Service Review 
Raisin City Water District 

MSR-24-01 / RSOI-211 
Mid-Valley Water District 

MSR-24-01 / RSOI-212 

Report to the Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

Prepared by: 

455 W. Fir Avenue, Clovis, California 93611 

PROVOST & PRITCHARD 
CONSUL TING GROUP 



List of Preparers: 

 

Fresno LAFCo 

1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800 
Fresno, CA 93721 
Telephone: (559) 600-0604 
 

Raisin City Water District 

455 W. Fir Avenue 
Clovis, CA 93611 
Telephone: (559) 449-2700 
 

Mid-Valley Water District 

455 W. Fir Avenue 
Clovis, CA 93611 
Telephone: (559) 449-2700 
 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

455 W. Fir Avenue 
Clovis, CA 93611 
Telephone: (559) 449-2700 

 

Contact: 
Jeffrey O’Neal, AICP 
Email: joneal@ppeng.com



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  ii  

Table of Contents 
 

I. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................... I-1 

A. Purpose of the MSR.................................................................................................................................... I-1 
B. Document Organization ............................................................................................................................ I-1 

II. Raisin City Water District ................................................................................................................................... II-1 

A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..................................................................................................................... II-1 
B. AGENCY PROFILE ............................................................................................................................... II-7 
C. ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC SERVICES .............................................................................................. II-9 
D. DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS ........................................................................................ II-16 
E. SOI STATEMENTS .............................................................................................................................. II-19 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE (CEQA) ............................................................................ II-20 
G. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS .......................................................................................................... II-21 

III. Mid-Valley Water District .................................................................................................................................. III-1 

A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................................... III-1 
B. AGENCY PROFILE .............................................................................................................................. III-6 
C. ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC SERVICES ............................................................................................. III-8 
D. DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS ....................................................................................... III-15 
E. SOI STATEMENTS ............................................................................................................................. III-17 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE (CEQA) ........................................................................... III-18 
G. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS ......................................................................................................... III-19 

IV. References .......................................................................................................................................................... IV-1 
 

  



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  iii  

List of Figures 
Figure II-1. Existing Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries ........................................................................ II-2 

Figure II-2. McMullin On-Farm Project Ownership ................................................................................................ II-3 

Figure II-3. Proposed Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries ..................................................................... II-4 

Figure II-4. McMullin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Map .......................................................................... II-11 

Figure III-1. Existing Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries .................................................................... III-2 

Figure III-2. Proposed Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries .................................................................. III-3 

Figure III-3. McMullin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Map ...................................................................... III-11 

 

List of Tables 
Table II-1. Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations ...................................................................... II-5 

Table II-2. Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations ................................................................................ II-6 

Table II-3. Raisin City Water District Board of Directors ....................................................................................... II-8 

Table II-4. District Information ................................................................................................................................... II-8 

Table II-5. RCWD 2023-2024 Adopted Budget ...................................................................................................... II-13 

Table III-1. Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations .................................................................. III-4 

Table III-2. Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations ............................................................................. III-5 

Table III-3. Mid-Valley Water District Board of Directors ................................................................................... III-7 

Table III-4. District Information ............................................................................................................................... III-7 

Table III-5. MVWD Surplus Water Since 2003 ....................................................................................................... III-9 

Table III-6. MVWD Adopted 2023-2024 Budget ................................................................................................. III-12 

Appendices 
Appendix A. RCWD Adopted Budget (FY 23-24) 

Appendix B. RCWD Financial Audit (FYs 18-23) 

Appendix C. RCWD By-Laws 

Appendix D. MVWD Adopted Budget (FY 23-24) 

Appendix E. MVWD Bylaws 

Appendix F. JID Wells 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  iv  

Abbreviations 
AB .................................................................................................................................................................... Assembly Bill 

AF ........................................................................................................................................................................... Acre-Feet 

CEQA .................................................................................................................. California Environmental Quality Act 

CID ..................................................................................................................................Consolidated Irrigation District 

CKH ...................................................... Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 

CVP ................................................................................................................................................... Central Valley Project 

CVPIA ............................................................................................................ Central Valley Project Improvement Act 

DUC .......................................................................................................... Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community 

EIR .................................................................................................................................... Environmental Impact Report  

FID .............................................................................................................................................. Fresno Irrigation District 

FY ......................................................................................................................................................................... Fiscal Year 

GC .......................................................................................................................................................... Government Code 

KBWA ................................................................................................................................. Kings Basin Water Authority 

KRWA .............................................................................................................................. Kings River Water Association 

JID ................................................................................................................................................. James Irrigation District 

KRCD ......................................................................................................................... Kings River Conservation District 

LAFCo .................................................................................................................Local Agency Formation Commission 

LID ............................................................................................................................................. Laguna Irrigation District 

MAGSA ........................................................................................ McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

MRG ....................................................................................................................................... McMullin Recharge Group 

MSR ............................................................................................................................................ Municipal Service Review 

MVWD ..................................................................................................................................... Mid-Valley Water District 

RCWD ....................................................................................................................................... Raisin City Water District 

SGMA ......................................................................................................... Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SOI ....................................................................................................................................................... Sphere of Influence 

SR ........................................................................................................................................................................ State Route 

 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   I-1 

I. INTRODUCTION 

A. Purpose of the MSR 

A Municipal Service Review (MSR) is an in-depth analysis to determine the adequacy of municipal services 
being provided by a local agency under the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). The MSR is used 
by LAFCo, as well as other associated agencies and the public, to gain an understanding of the services 
provided and to identify opportunities for cooperation and greater efficiency among service providers. The 
term “municipal services” generally refers to the full range of services that a public agency provides or is 
authorized to provide. The purpose of this MSR is to evaluate the Raisin City Water District and the Mid-
Valley Water District for these purposes. 

The law governing LAFCos is known as the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act 
of 2000 (CKH), codified at Government Code (GC) Section 56430, et seq. The Act requires that each LAFCo, 
as necessary, review and update the sphere of influence of each city and special district within its county every 
five (5) years and provides that no sphere of influence (SOI) can be updated until the local LAFCo conducts 
an MSR for the agency on a regional level.  

The MSR review and SOI amendment provide a mechanism by which the Commission may shape the orderly 
and logical development of the local government agency. The MSR process includes three primary 
components. 

▪ The MSR Report: Provides a review of the public agency’s service delivery. Examines the agency’s 
infrastructure, governance, and capacity to serve current and future projected growth. Identifies 
planned infrastructure improvements and identifies issues, needs, and/or deficiencies. The MSR 
provides responses to specific questions or determinations as required by the Act. 
 

▪ Public and Stakeholder Input Process: LAFCo provides notice to the public and stakeholders of 
the availability of the MSR report and any planned or requested changes to the public agency’s SOI. 
Comments and/or concerns of the public and stakeholders are taken into consideration by the 
Commission in its decision-making. 
 

▪ The SOI Update/Amendment: Based on information provided in the MSR report, the LAFCo 
staff provides a recommendation to its Commission. Based on all sources of information, including 
public and stakeholder input, the LAFCo Commission may arrive at a decision to retract, expand, or 
maintain SOI boundaries. 

B. Document Organization 

Raisin City Water District and Mid-Valley Water District have been assigned an individual chapter. Each 
District’s chapter is organized as follows: 
 

I. Executive Summary: Provides a background of the agency, the proposed reorganization, and a 
brief overview of the relevant determinations and findings for consideration by LAFCo. 

 
II. Agency Profile:  Describes the agency and its governing structure. Provides an overview of the 

services provided by the agency. 
 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   I-2 

III. Adequacy of Public Services: Provides a comprehensive accounting of the existing and planned 
growth, population, infrastructure, and financial ability of the agency. Evaluates the status of and 
opportunities for shared facilities and other cost avoidance options. 

 
IV. MSR Determinations and Findings: Provides suggested determinations and findings necessary 

for Commission consideration of the MSR pursuant to California GC Section 56430. 
 

V. SOI Statements: Provides suggested statements for Commission consideration of the SOI 
Amendment pursuant to California GC Section 56425(e). 

 
VI. Environmental Compliance: Addresses the statutory framework for consideration of the MSR 

and SOI as it relates to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 

VII. Recommended Actions: Lists actions necessary for consideration by the Commission. 
 

VIII. References: Provides a listing of references used in the preparation of the MSR. 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-1 

II. Raisin City Water District 

A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Summary of District Information 

Raisin City Water District (RCWD or District) was formed in 1962 for the purpose of providing irrigation 
water to lands within its boundaries. The District’s principal act is California Water Code sections 34000-
38500 which enable the formation of Water Districts to acquire, plan, construct, maintain, improve, operate, 
and keep in repair the necessary works for the production, storage, transmission, and distribution of water for 
irrigation, domestic, industrial, and municipal purposes.1 However, the District has not provided water services 
since its inception. At this time, the District provides the following LAFCo authorized services: levying and 
collecting of assessments and standby charges, performing agreements, entering contracts, and planning for 
the distribution of water for irrigation purposes. 

The District’s boundary spans within the central part of Fresno County, approximately nine miles southwest 
of the City of Fresno, 12 miles southeast of the City of Kerman, and five miles northwest of the 
unincorporated community of Caruthers. The District is located six miles west of State Route (SR) 41, 
approximately nine miles south of SR 180, and eight miles east of SR 145. 

The District’s 51,719-acre service area is bounded by American Avenue to the north, S. McMullin Grade to 
the west, Conejo Avenue to the South and Brawley Avenue to the east. The Commission’s adopted Sphere of 
Influence (SOI) includes the entire service area and extends northwest to Jensen Avenue and west to Lake 
Avenue. Total acreage within the District’s SOI amounts to approximately 80,125-acres, which includes the 
District’s service area of 51,719 acres.  

Since its inception, the District has not been able to secure a source of surface water entitlement. Farmers 
within the District obtain water for irrigation purposes by pumping groundwater. The District’s primary 
purpose is to improve groundwater conditions throughout the Raisin City area. 

 

 

1 (Justia U.S. Law, 1913) 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-2 

 

Figure II-1. Existing Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries 

 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

522J (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

;:- =1 Existing Raisin City W.D. SOI 

L-_ 7 Existing Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

- Existing Raisin City W.D. 

- Exisitng Mid-Valley W.D. 

Q McMullin On-Farm Project 

CJ Kings River Conservation District 

D Fresno l.D. 

A-,_ 0-==2 

~ Miles 

Existing Service Area and SOI 
Raisin City Water District 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-3 

 

Figure II-2. McMullin On-Farm Project Ownership 

DINl!JBA'AVE 

KRCD Canal Easement 

James Irrigation 
Ditch Crossing • B 

ESP.ERANZA A\l,E 

KRCD Permanent Flood Easement 

McMullin On-Farm Project 

MANNING /J.V.E 

DINUBA~VE 

~ o•-■oc.2=s==o.s 
~ Miles 

McMullin On-Farm Project Facilities Ownership Map 

l./"10U G:\.Uil.in OfYWUef !>Inna· U11\11lf2J002-MMnlion"'°°GIS\Mlp\MSll_mlpJ\MS-_mlpup .. 

KRCD Ownership: 

1) All Project easements/licenses, 
Permanent flood easement parcels 
2) 500 CFS Turnout 

3) James ID Crossings A & B 

4) All O&M responsibility 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-4 

 

Figure II-3. Proposed Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries 

Portion not included in proposed 
Mid-Valley WD or Raisin City WD SOI or ~ 

Service Area boundaries. 

-- James I.D. Conveyance Facilities 

- Southwest Banking Facility No. 
583 (Fresno I.D. and James I.D.) 

D Fresno I.D. Pond 

- Fresno I.D. Flood Rights Area 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

53ZI (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

c::J McMullin On-Farm Project 

- Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

- Proposed M id-Valley W.D. 

: : ~ Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

c::J Proposed M id-Valley W.D. SOI 

c::J Kings River Conservation District 

D Fresno l.D. 

~ 0-==2 

~ Miles 

,. 

Proposed Service Area and SOI 
Raisin City Water District 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-5 

Summary of Determinations 
Table II-1. Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations 

Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations 

SUBJECT DETERMINATION 

Growth and Population 
No future deficiencies related to growth and population 
are expected. 

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

The District has no public facilities nor provides services 
related to sewer, municipal and industrial water, or 
structural fire protection that would present opportunity 
to extend services to a disadvantaged unincorporated 
community. 

Present and Planned Capacity of Public 
Facilities 

The District does not own any public facilities or physical 
infrastructure.  

Adequacy of Public Services 
Public Services provided by the District are adequate in 
terms of operation and maintenance. 

Infrastructure Needs or Deficiencies 
No direct water services to landowners are currently 
provided by the District. 

Financial Ability of the Agency to provide 
Services 

The District has the financial capacity to continue to 
operate and serve its customers, including future 
customers. 

Status of and Opportunities for Shared Facilities 

It is Fresno LAFCo observation that local agencies within 
the vicinity of RCWD that could present opportunities for 
shared facilities in the form of mutual agreement for 
shared infrastructure could include:  

• Fresno Irrigation District to the north;  

• Consolidated Irrigation District to the east;  

• Liberty Water District to the southeast;  

• Stinson Water District to the southwest;  

• James Irrigation District to the west,  

• Mid-Valley Water District to the northwest. 

Accountability, Government Structure, and 
Operational Efficiencies 

The District has a stable government structure that 
provides for accountability and operational efficiency. 

Other Fresno LAFCo Policies 
The District will not adversely affect agricultural resources 
and will support planned orderly and efficient 
development in the area. 

 
  



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-6 

Table II-2. Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations 

Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations 

SUBJECT DETERMINATION 

Present and Planned Land Uses 
The District has adequate capacity, financial ability, 
accountability, and government structure to serve the 
present and planned land uses. 

Present and Probable Need for Public Facilities and 
Services 

The District does not own any public facilities or 
physical infrastructure. 

Present Capacity of Public Facilities and Agency’s 
Ability to Provide 

The District does not own any public facilities or 
physical infrastructure. 

Existence of Social or Economic Communities of 
Interest 

There are no social or economic communities of 
interest in the area such as disadvantaged 
unincorporated communities for which the 
Commission has determined relevant within the 
District’s proposed boundaries. 

Need for Services by Disadvantaged Unincorporated 
Communities within the SOI 

Not applicable. 

Effect on Orderly Development Including 
Agricultural Land Preservation 

The District has planned for orderly development 
including that which affects agricultural land 
preservation. 

Conformance with Applicable General or Specific 
Plans 

The District and its services are in conformance with 
the Fresno County General Plan and the McMullin 
Area Groundwater Sustainability Plan. 

Background 

This MSR is prepared in support of a request by the RCWD for a change in organization for purposes of 
amending its SOI and annexing additional land to the District. Fresno County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo or Fresno LAFCo) most recently adopted an MSR for the District in October 2015. 
Existing SOI and District boundaries are shown on Figure II-1. This request proposes to increase the 
District’s SOI by 27,137 acres and its service area by 55,543 acres, shown in  Figure II-3.. The SOI Update 
will also result in removing the James Bypass, owned and maintained by Reclamation District No. 1606, from 
RCWD’s SOI. In addition to the District proposed SOI revision and subsequent annexation, the Mid-Valley 
Water District (MVWD) has plans to reduce its SOI to avoid an overlap with RCWD. The proposed RCWD 
SOI and service area in combination with the existing service area of MVWD would be coterminous with the 
boundaries of the McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MAGSA). Request to revise the 
District’s SOI necessitates the preparation of an updated MSR pursuant to GC Section 56430. 
 
As mentioned above, MVWD has plans to reduce its SOI to avoid an overlap with RCWD’s proposed SOI. 
In doing so, a portion of MVWD’s SOI that is being removed would not be added to RCWD’s proposed SOI, 
leaving it out of both districts’ SOI. This is also illustrated in Figure II-3.. This area is not being included in 
the annexation or SOI revision for RCWD. MVWD will take the necessary steps, separate from this SOI 
revision, to reduce its SOI.  

 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-7 

B. AGENCY PROFILE 

Background 

The District was formed in 1962 for the purpose of providing irrigation water to lands within its boundaries. 
The District’s principal act is California Water Code sections 34000-38500 which enable the formation of 
Water Districts to acquire, plan, construct, maintain, improve, operate, and keep in repair the necessary works 
for the production, storage, transmission, and distribution of water for irrigation, domestic, industrial, and 
municipal purposes.2 However, the District has not provided water services since its inception. The District’s 
currently authorized services are planning related as they are authorized to levy and collect assessments and 
standby charges, perform agreements, enter contracts, and plan for the distribution of water for irrigation 
purposes. 

The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services 
regarding statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues affecting local agricultural 
irrigation. The District is a participating member of MAGSA pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA), which was signed into law on September 16, 2014.  

The District is an independent special district which has a five-member board of directors not governed by 
another legislative body (either a city council or a county board of supervisors). Candidates eligible to serve as 
the board of directors must be a holder of title to land within the District boundaries or the legal representative 
of the holder of title to land within the District boundaries. District board members are subject to election of 
four-year staggered terms; in the event no candidates file election papers, members are appointed in lieu of an 
election by the Fresno County Board of Supervisors based on recommendation provided from the District’s 
board of directors. 

In accordance with GC section 56066, Fresno County is the principal county. The Fresno LAFCo is 
responsible for updating the SOI for the District consistent with GC section 56425(g). In order to update the 
agency’s SOI, Fresno LAFCo has prepared this municipal service review in accordance with GC section 56430. 

Lands within the District’s existing and proposed SOI have been subject to extensive environmental analyses 
under CEQA through the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the County of Fresno General Plan.

 

2 (Justia U.S. Law, 1913) 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-8 

Agency Information 

Contact:  Randy Hopkins, Manager - Engineer 
Mailing Address:  455 W. Fir Avenue 
   Clovis, CA 93611 
Physical Address: Same as above 
Phone Number:  (559) 449-2700 
Website   http://rcwd.ca.gov/ 
Types of Services: No direct water service; District provides planning and information services  
Date Formed:  1962 
Board of Directors: The Directors are elected to four-year terms in accordance with the provisions found 

in the California Water Code. 

As of April 2025, the current Board of Directors is constituted as listed in Table II-3.  

Table II-3. Raisin City Water District Board of Directors 

Raisin City Water District Board of Directors 
Member Term Began Term Ends 

R. Gere Gunlund December 2022 December 2026 

Gagandip Batth December 2022 December 2026 

Don Cameron December 2024 December 2028 

Jonathan DeGroot December 2024 December 2028 

John Verwey December 2024 December 2028 

A summary of the District’s statistical information is provided in Table II-4. 

Table II-4. District Information 

District Information 
Statistics 

Area in District: 51,719 acres  

Area in Sphere of Influence: 80,125 acres 

Staff One 

Services Provided 

The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services 
regarding statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues affecting local agricultural 
irrigation. The District is a participating member of MAGSA pursuant to SGMA. 

http://rcwd.ca.gov/


  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-9 

C. ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

Growth and Population 

According to the Draft Fresno Multi-Jurisdictional 2023-2031 Housing Element, the 2022 population of the 
unincorporated areas of Fresno County was 158,846 people. From 2000 to 2022, the population saw an average 
annual decline of 0.2 percent.3 The District contains a total of approximately 51,719 acres. It can be expected 
that growth, which may demand services from RCWD, would be primarily agriculturally driven. The 
unincorporated community of Raisin City is within the District’s service area; however, the Raisin City residents 
do not rely on the District for municipal services. Additionally, urban development outside of Raisin City is 
generally discouraged by County General Plan policies. Since the boundary of the District generally includes 
land in agricultural production, vacant lands, and open space, it can be expected that future demand for service 
from the District would occur within its existing and proposed boundaries and would be primarily related to 
agricultural irrigation demands. The Fresno County General Plan designates majority of the land within the 
District for agricultural use.4 Most of the land within the District service area is occupied by farming operations 
comprising forage crops, row crops, and orchards. Also, most land within the District service area is designated 
Unique Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance, or Prime Farmland.5 For these reasons, it can be 
expected that the existing boundaries of the RCWD are sufficient to accommodate growth for a twenty-year 
planning period.  

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

The CKH requires Fresno LAFCo to make determinations regarding "disadvantaged unincorporated 
communities" ("DUCs") when considering a change of organization, reorganization, SOI expansion, and when 
conducting municipal service reviews.  

For any updates to a SOI of a local agency (city or special district) that provides public facilities or services 
related to sewer, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the Commission shall consider 
and prepare written determinations regarding the present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy 
of public services, and infrastructure needs or deficiencies for any DUC within of contiguous to the SOI of a 
city or special district. 

Senate Bill (SB) 244 defines a DUC as a place containing 10 or more dwelling units in close proximity to one 
another, within a city SOI, an island within a city boundary, or geographically isolated area, having existed for 
more than 50-years; and having a median household income that is 80 percent or less than a statewide median 
household income. These communities often lack the necessary infrastructure or technical and managerial 
abilities to provide their own community services. The primary intent of the new legislation is to enable LAFCos 
to require that cities and urban service districts include these communities in their local planning processes 
when considering annexation of adjacent lands. The District is located in the unincorporated portions of Fresno 
County generally within- US census tracts 39, 75, and 76. While these census tracts may meet the DUC criteria, 
the District does not own public facilities that would present a direct benefit to a potential DUC. The District 
does not provide municipal services that facilitate, support, or induce population growth. The District does not 
provide services related to public sewer, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection that would 
present opportunity to extend services to a DUC. 

 

3 (Fresno Council of Governments, 2023) 
4 (Fresno County, 2024) 
5 (California Department of Conservation, 2023) 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-10 

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Services 

The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services regarding 
statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues affecting local agricultural irrigation. 
The District is a participating member of the MAGSA. The District does not own any public facilities or 
infrastructure, nor does it have any surface water rights. There is no surface water available for irrigation 
purposes within the District. District landowners are solely reliant on groundwater for their farming operations. 
Although the District does not provide any tangible services to its landowners, the District has plans for the 
construction of groundwater storage basins and related infrastructure and pipelines to eventually convey water 
within the District.  

The District’s intangible services include:6 

• Advocacy for, and information to, landowners within the District regarding statewide water policy, 
new legislation, and other issues affecting agricultural irrigation;  

• Participation in the implementation of the State Sustainable Groundwater Management Act on behalf 
of landowners within the District;  

• Exploration of opportunities to develop other District based groundwater recharge facilities;  

• Exploration of opportunities to develop additional sources of water to use in the District’s planned 
groundwater recharge facilities; 

• The District provides representation of its landowners in the administration of water policy within the 
greater Kings Basin;  

• The District provides outreach to District landowners about agricultural irrigation issues. 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

In 2014, the passing of SGMA had created the requirements for governments and water agencies of high and 
medium priority basins to halt overdraft and bring groundwater basins into balanced levels of pumping and 
recharge. Under SGMA, these basins should reach sustainability within 20 years of implementing their 
sustainability plans. 

As mentioned, the District is a participating member of the MAGSA pursuant to SGMA. MAGSA was formed 
as a Joint Powers Authority that is comprised of the County of Fresno, RCWD, and the Mid-Valley Water 
District. The MAGSA Board is the governing and legislative body for MAGSA, and two members represent 
the RCWD area. The proposed RCWD SOI and service area in combination with the existing service area of 
MVWD would be coterminous with the boundaries of the McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 
(see Figure II-4). 

The District’s primary objective is to represent the interests of District landowners and work to achieve 
groundwater sustainability in the Kings Subbasin of Fresno County. The District currently advocates for its 
landowners, gathers information related to MAGSA, and provides updates via board meetings and newsletters 
posted on its website.

 

6 (Raisin City Water District, 2015) 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-11 

 

Figure II-4.  McMullin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Map 

7+ 
Tran 
C 

: : _:! Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

- Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. 

Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

a McMullin Area GSA 

~ 0 1 2 

~ Miles 

McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Raisin City Water District 

~/l/2025G\Ril,MnClly Walc:r~-lll6\Ul623002-Amcmlon\400GIS\M1p\M5R_mapi,\MSIUNJn~• 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-12 

Future Projects and Infrastructure 

RCWD has actively pursued projects and partnerships to enhance flood water capture, groundwater recharge 
programs, purchase water through transfers, and develop infrastructure to deliver water to growers. These 
efforts were pursued to help stabilize the groundwater levels in the area, benefiting both agriculture and the 
disadvantaged community of Raisin City. The McMullin On-Farm Recharge Phase 2 Project is being developed. 
The Project contemplates the potential diversion of up to 500 cubic feet per second Kings River flood flows 
to agricultural land with high infiltration capacity soils, subject to availability of lawful water supply and all 
required approvals. These flood flows could potentially be used for groundwater recharge to help alleviate the 
existing overdraft conditions. The project could potentially include the construction of canal, pump station, 
and canal crossings infrastructure.7 If this project does not yield enough annual supply, recognizing that any 
diversion of Kings River water would require lawful rights and coordination with the Kings River Water 
Association and its member units, to correct the overdraft, then crop patterns may be shifted or land fallowed, 
subsequently impacting not only agricultural production but the community of Raisin City and adjacent areas.  

It is important to note that any future project would be required to go through the full planning process. This 
process includes full CEQA analysis which informs governmental decision-makers and the public about the 
potential, significant environmental effects of proposed activities. The CEQA process provides the public with 
an opportunity to provide their input. In addition, any RCWD project that could potentially result in increased 
assessments would require a Proposition 218 election. This proposition gives voters, those within RCWD’s 
service area, the right to vote on any increases in assessments proposed to be levied by RCWD. 

Financial Ability to Provide Services 

Assessments 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners within the District. 
The District collects an annual land assessment of $0.75 per acre with a minimum assessment of $2 per parcel. 
According to the District, annual land assessments are collected by the District and are used to provide indirect 
services through cooperative agreements with other local agencies. The District uses funding from land 
assessments to administer District operations, fund the development of future District recharge projects, 
conduct groundwater studies, and advocate and represent landowners within the District. The District does not 
presently charge fees for any of these services outside of its assessments.  

Adopted Budgets 

The District board adopts an annual budget each year that projects the cost for District operations for the 
coming years (see Appendix A). As shown in below in Table II-5, the District adopted budget for fiscal year 
(FY) 2023-2024 shows a total of $68,060 with an estimated expenditure of $243,300. The District estimates its 
largest expenses to be allocated towards the following services: $74,000 for Administration Professional Fees, 
$50,000 for Infrastructure Planning, $45,000 for Proposition 218 Election, and $30,000 for Legal Professional 
Fees.   

 

7 (Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, 2022) 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-13 

Table II-5. RCWD 2023-2024 Adopted Budget  

 2022-2023 
Budget 

2022-2023 
Actual 

2023-2024 
Budget 

Advertising – Public Notices $500 $0 $500 

Directors Fees $0 $0 $0 

Dues – ACWA/KBWA $11,000 $11,930 $11,000 

Insurance $3,200 $3,129 $3,000 

Office Expense $500 $0 $500 

Professional Fees - Administration $74,000 $31,699 $74,000 

Professional Fees - Auditor $6,000 $6,090 $6,900 

Professional Fees - Legal $30,000 $4,078 $30,000 

Professional Fees – Other (Annex) $10,000 $0 $10,000 

Project Fees & Costs 

McMullin Recharge Phase 2 $0 $0 $0 

Infrastructure Planning $50,000 $20,831 $50,000 

Prop. 218 Election $45,000 $0 $45,000 

Water Management Program $0 $0 $0 

Website and Outreach $10,000 $2,677 $10,000 

Unbudgeted Expense $2,200 $13 $2,200 

Total Expended $242,400 80,448 $243,300 

Projected Income 

Current Year Assessments $38,560 $38,863 $38,560 

Delinquent Assessments $1,500 $2,158 $1,500 

Interest $2,400 $7,620 $8,000 

Grant Funding $20,000 $11.904 $20,000 

Total Income $62,460 $60,545 $68,060 

Audit Compliance 

The District is in compliance with their annual financial audits. The District’s financial audits from fiscal years 
2018-2023 are attached as Appendix B. According to the District’s latest audit, FY 2022-2023, the following 
financial highlights are noted: 

1. The District’s total net position decreased $30,023 or 3.17% over the course of the year operations.  
2. The District’s operating revenue was $39,151 for the year ended June 30, 2023. Operating expenses 

for the year ended June 30, 2023, were $91,139.  
3. The District had no capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
4. The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2023. 

While the District’s net position decreased from FY 2021-2022 to FY 2022-2023, this was due to the increase 
in engineering expenses related to the McMullin On-Farm Recharge Project and other planning and engineering 
expenses. According to the proposed budget for the District (see Table II-5), no expenses related to the 
McMullin On-Farm Recharge Project is specifically called out for FY 2023-2024. However, the District 
anticipates spending approximately $95,000 related to infrastructure planning and a Prop. 218 election. 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-14 

Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities 

The opportunity for shared facilities has the potential to reduce costs of services. It is up to LAFCo to determine 
if sharing facilities with other service providers is feasible.  

The District’s boundaries are located within the vicinity of various local agencies that could present 
opportunities for shared facilities in the form of mutual agreements for shared infrastructure. The neighboring 
agencies with surface water infrastructure or access to surface water include James Irrigation District (JID), 
Consolidated Irrigation District (CID), Fresno Irrigation District (FID), Mid-Valley Water District (MVWD), 
Laguna Irrigation District (LID), Kings River Conservation District (KRCD), and the Kings River Water 
Association (KRWA). The District is a member of the Kings Basin Water Authority (KBWA), a group of 60 
public and private organizations dedicated to the preservation and implementation of the Kings Basin 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan. The District is also a member of the McMullin Recharge Group 
(MRG), formed in 1999 to address the long-term water supply imbalance in the Raisin City area. 

Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure and 
Operational Efficiencies 

The District is served by a governing Board of Directors that provides governance and accountability. The 
District’s stable management structure provided by the Board consists of the elected five (5) members listed in 
this report. The Board of Directors are elected to four-year terms. The District Board meetings are held the 
third Tuesday of each month at 1:30 p.m. at 455 W. Fir Avenue, Clovis, CA 93611. Meetings are conducted in 
accordance with the Brown Act and the meeting locations and facilities are in compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. The District posts its official agenda at the meeting location at least 72 hours prior to its 
regular meetings, specifying the time and location of the meeting and briefly describing items to be discussed 
and/or acted on. The District will also post the official agenda and accompanying information on the District 
website at least 72 hours prior to its regular meeting. Based on the information provided above, there are no 
other means available to improve the District’s accountability and government structure. 

Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, as Required by 
Commission Policy 

Fresno County General Plan Consistency 

All proposals shall be consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and standards of the Fresno County General 
Plan and any applicable area plan. The Commission may find a proposal consistent with the General Plan or 
area plan as a whole, although the proposal is found to be inconsistent with one or more standards, if the 
Commission identifies the inconsistencies and finds that: 

1. The negative effect in a particular instance is outweighed by the overall positive impact of the proposal 
on the County;  

2. The proposal will not materially detract from the General Plan or area plan as a whole; and  

3. The proposal is inconsistent with one or more standards of the General Plan or area plan due to the 
unique nature of the proposal and/or special or unusual circumstances in the area or the County at the 
time that could not have been anticipated when the General Plan was developed, and that the situation 
is not likely to occur frequently enough so as to warrant amending the General Plan or area plan. 

District Policies 

The District is in compliance with its bylaws, last updated August 11, 2015 (see Appendix C). 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-15 

Website 

The District maintains its own website, which is located at http://rcwd.ca.gov/. The website provides basic 
contact information, a location map, board member information, meeting agendas/minutes, newsletters, and 
other helpful insights into the workings of the District. 

  

http://rcwd.ca.gov/


  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-16 

D. DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS 

California GC Section 56430 provides that LAFCos, upon receipt and consideration of an MSR, are required 
to adopt written findings addressing topics as follows. 

Growth and Population 

According to the Draft Fresno Multi-Jurisdictional 2023-2031 Housing Element, the 2022 population of the 
unincorporated areas of Fresno County was 158,846 people. From 2000 to 2022, the population saw an average 
annual decline of 0.2 percent.8 The District contains a total of approximately 51,719 acres. It can be expected 
that growth, which may demand services from RCWD, would be primarily agriculturally driven. The 
unincorporated community of Raisin City is within the District’s service area, but the Raisin City residents do 
not rely on the District for municipal services. Nonetheless, urban development would most likely occur within 
the community of Raisin City. Urban development outside of Raisin City is generally discouraged by County 
General Plan policies. Since the boundary of the District generally includes land in agricultural production, 
vacant lands, and open space, it can be expected that future demand for service from the District would occur 
within its existing and proposed boundaries and would be primarily related to agricultural irrigation demands. 
The Fresno County General Plan designates majority of the land within the District for agricultural use.9 Most 
of the land within the District service area is occupied by farming operations comprising forage crops, row 
crops, and orchards. Also, most land within the District service area is designated Unique Farmland, Farmland 
of Statewide Importance, or Prime Farmland.10 For these reasons, it can be expected that the existing 
boundaries of the RCWD are sufficient to accommodate growth for a twenty-year planning period. 

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

There are two DUCs located within the District’s boundaries, Raisin City and Perrin Colony.11 While both 
communities meet the DUC criteria, the District does not own public facilities that would present a direct 
benefit to a potential DUC. The District does not provide municipal services that facilitate, support, or induce 
population growth. The District does not provide services related to public sewer, municipal and industrial 
water, or structural fire protection that would present opportunity to extend services to a DUC.  

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Services 

The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services regarding 
statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues affecting local agricultural irrigation. 
The District is a participating member of the MAGSA. The District does not own any public facilities or 
infrastructure, nor does it have any surface water rights. There is no surface water available for irrigation 
purposes within the District. District landowners are solely reliant on groundwater for their farming operations. 
Although the District does not provide any tangible services to its landowners, the District has plans for the 
construction of groundwater storage basins and related infrastructure and pipelines to eventually convey water 
within the District. 

The District states that it is in place to be a vocal advocate and representative agency on behalf of its landowners 
throughout the implementation of SGMA and the ever-changing water climate. 

 

8 (Fresno Council of Governments, 2023) 
9 (Fresno County, 2024) 
10 (California Department of Conservation, 2023) 
11 (Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission, 2020) 



Raisin City Water District

2025 Municipal Service Review

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 II-17

Furthermore, the District proposed SOI Update and annexation will not impact existing facilities of other 
special districts such as JID, FID, or KRCD. Facilities owned and operated by JID, FID, and KRCD which are 
within the area to be annexed by the District include: 

• JID currently holds and operates a well field, with accompanying infrastructure and easements
therefore, on the parcels more particularly described in the legal description attached hereto as
Appendix F. JID Wells, and shown on Figure II-1 and Figure II-3.

• FID currently holds and operates canals, ponds, flood rights, with accompanying infrastructure and
easements therefore, shown on Figure II-1 and Figure II-3.

• JID and FID share in the ownership and operation of the Southwest Banking Facility shown on Figure
II-1 and Figure II-3.

• KRCD currently holds and operates conveyance facilities and easements therefore, including flood
easements in the area shown on Figure II-1 and Figure II-3 as the McMullin On-Farm Project.  The
easements and facilities are more specifically shown in Figure II-2.

The District shall not attempt to operate, encumber, or otherwise prevent JID’s or FID’s operation of their 
respective facilities, either independently or jointly owned, without their respective written consent. 

As mentioned, the District’s currently authorized service is groundwater management planning. If the District 
decides to provide additional services, it would have to be activated through a formal process pursuant to the 
CKH. 

Financial Ability of the Agency to Provide Services 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners within the District. 

Annual land assessments are collected by the District and are utilized to allow the District to provide indirect 
services through cooperative agreements with other local agencies. The District uses land assessment to 
maintain the operation of the District, help fund the development of future District recharge projects, conduct 
groundwater studies, and represent and advocate for landowners within the District.  

The District does not presently charge fees for any of its provided services; however, it historically has relied 
on the collection of land assessments and state grant opportunities to fund its ongoing operation. These existing 
land assessments and revenues generated by the District are sufficient to cover the District's operating costs. 

In FY 2018-2019, the District’s net position was at $1,159,690. As of the latest audit report for FY 2022-2023, 
the District’s net position is at $918,197.  The District has seen a steady decrease in net position over that period 
with a total net decrease in 23.2%. The primary factors contributing to the net position decrease are due to the 
fact that expenses have either increased each year and/or the District is incurring additional costs, primarily 
planning and engineering costs. The full audit reports for fiscal years 2018 through 2023 can be found in 
Appendix B.  

Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities 

The opportunity for shared facilities has the potential to reduce costs of services. It is up to LAFCo to determine 
if sharing facilities with other service providers is feasible. There are various local agencies in the vicinity of 
RCWD that could present opportunities for shared facilities. An effort should be made to explore what those 
opportunities could entail. 

The District is a member of the KBWA, a group of 60 public and private organizations dedicated to the 
preservation and implementation of the Kings Basin Integrated Regional Water Management Plan. The District 
is also a member of the MRG, formed in 1999 to address the long-term water supply imbalance in the Raisin 
City area. 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025   II-18 

Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure and 
Operational Efficiencies 

The District was formed in 1962 for the purpose of providing irrigation water to lands within its boundaries. 
The District currently provides its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services regarding 
statewide water policy, water rights, new state legislation, and other issues affecting local agricultural irrigation. 
The District has an elected five-member Board of Directors. The Board meets regularly on the third Tuesday 
of each month at 1:30 p.m. at 455 W. Fir Avenue, Clovis, California 93611. The Board meetings are publicly-
noticed and are conducted in compliance with the Brown Act. The meeting locations and facilities are in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, as Required by 
Commission Policy 

Fresno LAFCo has a Policies and Procedures document, adopted on April 3, 1986, and last revised on June 8, 
2022. It can be found at the following link: 

https://www.fresnolafco.org/files/0aec8ac1d/LAFCo+Policy+Manual+2022.pdf  

The District is in compliance with its bylaws, which were last updated August 11, 2015. 

https://www.fresnolafco.org/files/0aec8ac1d/LAFCo+Policy+Manual+2022.pdf


  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 II-19 

E. SOI STATEMENTS 

GC Section 56425(e) requires LAFCo to consider and make a written statement with respect to each of the 
following: 

1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands. 

2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 

3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is 
authorized to provide.  

4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the Commission 
determines that they are relevant to the agency. 

Raisin City Water District currently encompasses approximately 51,719 acres of varying land uses in Fresno 
County. The total acreage planned within the District is 80,125 acres. The District currently comprises land 
zoned and used for agricultural purposes.  

With the proposed annexation, the District proposes to amend its service area by 55,543 acres and SOI 
boundary by 27,137 acres. As evaluated in this report relative to: 1) present and planned land uses; 2) present 
and probable need for public facilities and services; 3) present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of 
public services that the agency provides or is authorized to provide; and 4) the existence of any social or 
economic communities of interest in the area (i.e. disadvantaged unincorporated communities) for which the 
Commission may determine relevant, it is recommended that the SOI of the Raisin City Water District be 
amended to include the boundary indicated in Figure II-3. 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 II-20 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE (CEQA) 

An MSR and SOI amendment are considered to be a “project” as defined by the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA; Public Resources Code Section 21000, et seq.), and therefore are subject to analysis for potential 
environmental effects. In LAFCo’s role as lead agency under CEQA, the Commission generally will determine that 
adoption of the MSR is categorically exempt from CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines Section 15306, 
Information Collection, which states: 

“Class 6 consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource  
evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental 
resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a study leading 
to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded.” 

The supporting findings for this CEQA exemption are as follows: 

• The purpose of an MSR is to collect data for the purpose of evaluating an agency’s ability to provide 
services within its sphere of influence.  

• Adoption of an MSR does not result in any change to land use or zoning, nor does it grant an entitlement 
or permit of any kind, either directly or indirectly.  

• Nothing resulting from adoption of an MSR has the potential to create any physical change to the 
environment. 

 

 



  Raisin City Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  II-21 

G. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

Staff recommends that the Commission takes the following actions: 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

A. Recommended Action: Find the proposal to be exempt from CEQA under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15306, Information Collection.  

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW 

Recommended Action: ADOPT the seven determinations required in GC Section 56430 for the RCWD as 
identified in this municipal service review report.  

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENT 

Recommended Action: ADOPT statements as discussed in this report, pursuant to GC Section 56425(e) as 
follows: 

1)  The District has adequate capacity, financial ability, accountability, and government structure to serve 
the present and planned land uses;  

2)  The District has the capacity, financial ability, accountability, and government structure to provide for 
the present and probable need for public facilities and services;  

3)  The District has the present capacity of public facilities and has adequate public services to provide 
for the area it is authorized to provide;  

4)  There are no social or economic communities of interest in the area such as disadvantaged 
unincorporated communities for which the Commission has determined relevant within the District’s 
proposed boundaries; 

5) Upon pursuit of additional activation of powers enumerated in the principal act, the District will 
conduct CEQA analysis according to State guidelines and amend the MSR to convey an action plan 
for providing water services, which may include administration of a Proposition 218 election to fund 
water projects. It is important to note that future projects would be required to go through the full 
planning process. This process would include compliance with CEQA. The intent of the CEQA 
analysis is to inform governmental decision-makers and the public about the potential, significant 
environmental effects of proposed activities. The CEQA process provides the public with an 
opportunity to provide their input. In addition, RCWD would comply with Proposition 218 for any 
projects that would potentially result in new or increased assessments. Proposition 218 gives voters 
within RCWD’s service area the right to vote on new or increased  assessments proposed to be levied 
by RCWD. 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-1 

III. Mid-Valley Water District 

A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Summary of District Information 

Mid-Valley Water District (MVWD or District) was formed in 1984 for the purpose of obtaining a contract 
for surface water supply from the United States Bureau of Reclamation’s then-proposed Mid-Valley Canal 
Unit of the Central Valley Project (CVP). At that time there was a Mid-Valley Water Authority comprising 
approximately 30 water agencies from Madera County to Kern County, including Fresno County. The purpose 
of the Authority was to seek Congressional authority to construct the Mid-Valley Canal. The first action the 
District took was to establish a contract with Fresno County to be the primary benefactor of any water 
obtained. 

In 1992, the passing of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) reallocated 800,000 acre-feet 
(AF) of Delta flows for environmental needs. The loss of the water to the CVP created a permanent water 
shortage, effectively putting an indefinite hold on construction of the Mid-Valley Canal. As a result of 
environmental restrictions like the CVPIA, there is now very little chance of obtaining a long-term surface 
water supply from the Delta. In addition, local surface water supplies are fully committed. It is therefore highly 
unlikely the District will be able to acquire a reliable surface water supply in the foreseeable future. 

The District’s boundary spans within the northwestern region of Fresno County, approximately 2.5 miles 
north of the City of San Joaquin and five miles southwest of the City of Kerman. The District is located two 
miles south of State Route (SR) 180, approximately six miles west of SR 145, and 10.5 miles northeast of SR 
33. 

The District’s 13,678-acre service area is bounded by the California Avenue alignment to the north, the Napa 
Avenue alignment to the west, the Parlier Avenue alignment to the south and Lake Avenue to the east. The 
Commission’s adopted Sphere of Influence (SOI) includes the entire service area and extends northwest to 
the San Joaquin River. Total acreage within the District’s SOI amounts to approximately 42,552 acres, which 
includes the District’s service area of 13,678 acres.  

 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-2 

 

Figure III-1. Existing Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries 

-- James I.D. Conveyance Facilities 

-

Southwest Banking Facility No. 

583 (Fresno I.D. and James I.D.) 

Fresno I.D. Pond 

- Fresno I.D. Flood Rights Area 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

~ (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

=- -=" Existing Raisin City W.D. SOI 

L--7 Existing Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

- Existing Raisin City W.D. 

- Exisitng Mid-Va lley W.D. 

CJ McMullin On-Farm Project 

c:J Ki ngs River Conservation District 

LJ Fresnol.D. 

~ 0-===2 

~ Miles 

•14/lOU G:\UIJJn City Wit.tr D!ttnct -1.lllli\UlUlOCll-MnUJ!ll On\400G~V•IIPV.Ull_m1ps\MSll_ lftllpUpnl 

Existing Service Area and SOI 
Mid-Va lley Water Distri ct 

PRO VOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-3 

 

Figure III-2.  Proposed Sphere of Influence and District Boundaries 

Portion not included in proposed 
Mid-Valley WD or Raisin City WD SOI or ~ 

Service Area boundaries. 

-- James I.D. Conveyance Faci lities 

- Southwest Banking Facility No. 
583 (Fresno I.D. and James I.D.) 

c::::J Fresno I.D. Pond 

- Fresno I.D. Flood Rights Area 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

~ (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

LJ McMullin On-Farm Project 

- Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

- Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. 

~ : ~ Proposed Rai sin City W.D. SOI 

c:J Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

c:J Kings River Conservation District 

c::::J Fresnol.D. 

~ 0-===1 2 

~ Miles 

II'! 

U..,lOll G:\ R•mn C.ly W•tar ~,nna -1lll\ 1.116B00l ...... ntuDan\40DG15\M1p\MSR_m1prtMS R_m1pu,pnc 

Proposed Service Area and SOI 
Mid-Vall ey W ater Dist r ict 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-4 

Summary of Determinations 
Table III-1. Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations 

Summary of Municipal Service Review Determinations 

SUBJECT DETERMINATION 

Growth and Population 
No future deficiencies related to growth and population 
are expected. 

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

The District has no public facilities nor provides services 
related to sewer, municipal and industrial water, or 
structural fire protection that would present opportunity 
to extend services to a disadvantaged unincorporated 
community. 

Present and Planned Capacity of Public 
Facilities 

The District does not own any public facilities or physical 
infrastructure.  

Adequacy of Public Services 
Public Services provided by the District are adequate in 
terms of operation and maintenance. 

Infrastructure Needs or Deficiencies 
No direct water services to landowners are currently 
provided by the District. 

Financial Ability of the Agency to provide 
Services 

The District has the financial capacity to continue to 
operate and serve its customers, including future 
customers. 

Status of and Opportunities for Shared Facilities 

It is Fresno LAFCo’s observation that local agencies 
within the vicinity of MVWD that could present 
opportunities for shared facilities in the form of mutual 
agreement for shared infrastructure could include:  

• Fresno Irrigation District to the north;  

• Consolidated Irrigation District to the east;  

• Liberty Water District to the southeast;  

• Stinson Water District to the southwest;  

• James Irrigation District to the west,  

• Raisin City Water District to the east. 

Accountability, Government Structure, and 
Operational Efficiencies 

The District has a stable government structure that 
provides for accountability and operational efficiency. 

Other Fresno LAFCo Policies 
The District will not adversely affect agricultural resources 
and will support planned orderly and efficient 
development in the area. 

 
  



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-5 

Table III-2. Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations 

Summary of Sphere of Influence Determinations 

SUBJECT DETERMINATION 

Present and Planned Land Uses 
The District has adequate capacity, financial ability, 
accountability, and government structure to serve the 
present and planned land uses. 

Present and Probable Need for Public Facilities and 
Services 

The District does not own any public facilities or 
physical infrastructure. 

Present Capacity of Public Facilities and Agency’s 
Ability to Provide 

The District does not own any public facilities or 
physical infrastructure. 

Existence of Social or Economic Communities of 
Interest 

There are no social or economic communities of 
interest in the area such as disadvantaged 
unincorporated communities for which the 
Commission has determined relevant within the 
District’s proposed boundaries. 

Need for Services by Disadvantaged Unincorporated 
Communities within the SOI 

Not applicable. 

Effect on Orderly Development Including 
Agricultural Land Preservation 

The District has planned for orderly development 
including that which affects agricultural land 
preservation. 

Conformance with Applicable General or Specific 
Plans 

The District and its services are in conformance with 
the Fresno County General Plan and the McMullin 
Area Groundwater Sustainability Plan. 

Background 

This MSR is prepared in support of a separate but related request by Raisin City Water District (RCWD) for 
the purpose of expanding its SOI, which would result in a corresponding reduction to the MVWD SOI. Fresno 
LAFCo most recently adopted an MSR for the District in August 2007. Existing SOI and District boundaries 
are shown on Figure III-1. The current request proposes to decrease the District’s SOI by 28,874 acres, shown 
in Figure III-2. Furthermore, the reduction of MVWD’s SOI would result in a portion of land to be completely 
out of both districts’ SOI. This area is highlighted in Figure III-2.  

This request for an amendment to the District’s SOI necessitates the preparation of an updated MSR pursuant 
to GC Section 56430.  



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-6 

B. AGENCY PROFILE 

Background 

The District was formed to obtain a contract for surface water supply from the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation’s then proposed Mid-Valley Canal Unit of the Central Valley Project. However, due to 
environmental restrictions imposed by the Central Valley Improvement Act, the District has been unable to 
maintain a long-term water supply. 

The District is a participating member of MAGSA pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
(SGMA), which was signed into law on September 16, 2014.  

The District is an independent special district which has a five-member board of directors, not governed by 
another legislative body (either a city council or a county board of supervisors). Candidates eligible to serve as 
the board of directors must be a holder of title to land within the District boundaries or the legal representative 
of the holder of title to land within the District boundaries. District board members are subject to election of 
four-year staggered terms; in the event no candidates file election papers, members are appointed in lieu of an 
election by the Fresno County Board of Supervisors based on recommendation provided from the District’s 
board of directors. 

In accordance with GC section 56066, Fresno County is the principal county. The Fresno LAFCo is 
responsible for updating the SOI for the District consistent with GC section 56425(g). In order to update the 
agency’s SOI, Fresno LAFCo has prepared this municipal service review in accordance with GC section 56430. 

Lands within the District’s existing and proposed SOI have been subject to extensive environmental analyses 
under CEQA through the EIR for the County of Fresno General Plan. .



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-7 

Agency Information 

Contact:  Randy Hopkins, Engineer-Manager 
Mailing Address:  455 W. Fir Avenue 
   Clovis, CA 93611 
Physical Address: Same as above 
Phone Number:  (559) 449-2700 
Website   N/A  
Types of Services: Authorized to deliver irrigation water; however, the District does not have a long-

term water supply. Currently the District does not provide any direct services. 
Date Formed:  1984 
Board of Directors: The Directors are elected to four-year terms in accordance with the provisions found 

in the California Water Code. 

As of April 2025, the current Board of Directors is constituted as listed in Table III-3. 

Table III-3. Mid-Valley Water District Board of Directors 

Raisin City Water District Board of Directors 
Member Term Began Term Ends 

Ariel Namvar 2022 2026 

Fara Raban 2022 2026 

Varinder Nijjar 2024 2028 

Jasbir Sidhu 2024 2028 

Farokh Saadat 2022 2026 

A summary of the District’s statistical information is provided in Table III-4. 

Table III-4. District Information 

District Information 
Statistics 

Area in District: 13,678 acres  

Area in Sphere of Influence: 42,552 acres 

Staff One 

Services Provided 

The District currently does not provide any services to landowners with its service area. The District was 
formed to obtain a contract for surface water via Reclamation’s CVP; however, a long-term water supply 
contract has not been secured since the District’s inception. The District is a participating member of MAGSA 
pursuant to SGMA. 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-8 

C. ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

Growth and Population 

According to the Draft Fresno Multi-Jurisdictional 2023-2031 Housing Element, the 2022 population of the 
unincorporated areas of Fresno County was 158,846 people. From 2000 to 2022, the population saw an average 
annual decline of 0.2 percent.12 The District contains a total of approximately 13,678 acres. The District 
contains 73 parcels consisting of 32 landowners. Current land uses within the District boundaries are 
agricultural and are expected to remain as such. No growth or population increase is anticipated by the District. 

The ability of the District to serve the existing population has been intermittent. A long-term water supply has 
not been available, and the District has not provided much water due to the lack of water available to the 
District. The District will continue to work with other agencies in the region to secure a water supply contract. 

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

The CKH requires Fresno LAFCo to make determinations regarding DUCs when considering a change of 
organization, reorganization, SOI expansion, and when conducting municipal service reviews.  

For any updates to a SOI of a local agency (city or special district) that provides public facilities or services 
related to sewer, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the Commission shall consider 
and prepare written determinations regarding the present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy 
of public services, and infrastructure needs or deficiencies for any DUC within of contiguous to the SOI of a 
city or special district. 

SB 244 defines a DUC as a place containing 10 or more dwelling units in close proximity to one another, within 
a city SOI, an island within a city boundary, or geographically isolated area, having existed for more than 50-
years; and having a median household income that is 80 percent or less than a statewide median household 
income. These communities often lack the necessary infrastructure or technical and managerial abilities to 
provide their own community services. The primary intent of the new legislation is to enable LAFCos to require 
that cities and urban service districts include these communities in their local planning processes when 
considering annexation of adjacent lands. There are no DUCs within or adjacent to the District. 

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Services 

Since its formation, the District has not been able to secure a long-term water supply from Reclamation’s CVP. 
The primary reason the District was formed was to receive CVP water from the then-proposed Mid-Valley 
Canal Unit. In 1992, the CVPIA reallocated 800,000 AF of Delta flows for environmental needs. The District 
was originally set to receive a portion of those flows once the Mid-Valley Canal Unit was built. Now that there 
are no upcoming plans to build the Mid-Valley Canal Unit, it is highly unlikely the District will be able to acquire 
a reliable surface water supply in the foreseeable future. In addition, local surface water supplies are fully 
committed.  

Throughout its existence, the District has received minor amounts of short-term water supplies from various 
sources. In 1985 the District delivered 1,119 AF, by direct delivery through the Mendota Pool, from 
groundwater obtained from the Britz family. James Irrigation District (JID), a neighboring district, expressed 
concern that the District’s pumping from the Mendota Pool could interfere with its own pumping. To alleviate 
those concerns, the District entered into a contract with JID agreeing to cut off pumping in the event of a 
Mendota Pool channel constriction problem.  

 

12 (Fresno Council of Governments, 2023) 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-9 

In 1986, the District delivered 786 AF of Bureau of Reclamation Section 215 water from the Delta. A greater 
volume of water could have been delivered at that time, but infrastructure was insufficient.  

In 1987, the District secured a three-year water supply contract from Reclamation for 1,500 AF on behalf of 
three landowners. In the same year, the District delivered 7,509 AF of groundwater through the Mendota Pool 
and 371 AF of floodwater. 

In 1988, 9,617 AF of groundwater were delivered through the Mendota Pool to six landowners. 

In 1989, District had the opportunity to obtain a long-term water supply contract from Reclamation for 2.0 AF 
per acre pending the conclusion of the Delta Hearings. An Improvement District was formed in 1990 covering 
the land at the North side of the District for the purpose of long-term contracting with Fresno County for the 
purchase of its Cross Valley Bureau of Reclamation water. However, to this day, an agreement has never been 
reached.  

In 1992, Governor Wilson signed AB 3030, which allowed local water agencies to adopt groundwater 
management plans. The major purpose of AB 3030 was to permit local control of groundwater to reduce the 
risk of controls at the state level. To keep costs down, the District contracted with Kings River Conservation 
District (KRCD) to be included in the KRCD Groundwater Management Plan, while retaining the option of 
doing its own plan at any future time. In 1994, the District obtained a contract with the Kings River Water 
Association for the diversion of water during Kings River flood releases. This contract was renewed every three 
years until 2021, at which time the agreement was not renewed. Throughout the year proposals were presented 
by the District, as well as RCWD, to take delivery of the City of Fresno sewer effluent. The City continued 
discussions through 1996, but no agreement was reached.  

In 1999, the initial steps of construction began on a canal intended to deliver water to a proposed reservoir in 
the southern portion of the District. Test holes were dug by backhoe, topographical surveys were completed, 
and the canal was designed. KRCD became involved as it was pursuing projects to recharge District 
groundwater. However, the project was dropped for a more favorable project at another location.  

Since 2003, the District has received deliveries of surplus water shown in Table III-5: 

Table III-5. MVWD Surplus Water Since 2003 

Year USBR Section 215 
(AF) 

Kings River Floodwater 
(AF) 

Total 

2003 368   368 

2005 846  846 

2006 268 3,648 3,916 

2011 2,899  2,899 

2017  7,889 7,889 

 

Currently, the District owns and operates a diversion pumping structure. The pumping structure is located in 
the James Bypass Channel on property owned by RD 1606 lands. The District and RD 1606 entered into a 
license agreement to allow the District to install, operate, maintain, repair, and replace the pumping structure 
on RD 1606 property which is located approximately 500 feet south of James Road on the easterly side of the 
James Bypass.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

In 2014, the passing of SGMA had created the requirements for governments and water agencies of high and 
medium priority basins to halt overdraft and bring groundwater basins into balanced levels of pumping and 
recharge. Under SGMA, these basins should reach sustainability within 20 years of implementing their 
sustainability plans. 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-10 

As mentioned, the District is a participating member of the MAGSA pursuant to SGMA. MAGSA was formed 
as a Joint Powers Authority that is comprised of the County of Fresno, RCWD, and the MVWD. The MAGSA 
Board is the governing and legislative body for the McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Area and one 
member represents the MVWD area. The District will still be in the confines of MAGSA once the proposed 
SOI amendment is approved (see Figure III-3). 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-11 

 

Figure III-3. McMullin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Map 

J 

=: _:! Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

- Proposed Mid-Va lley W.D. 

Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

a McMullin Area GSA 

~ 0 1 2 

~ MIies 

McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Mid-Valley Water District 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-12 

Financial Ability to Provide Services 

Assessments 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners within the District. 
The District collects an annual land assessment of $3.00 per acre. According to the District, annual land 
assessments are collected by the District and are used to provide indirect services through cooperative 
agreements with other local agencies. The District uses funding from land assessments to administer District 
operations, fund the development of future District projects and to advocate and represent landowners within 
the District. The District does not charge fees aside from its assessments.  

Adopted Budgets 

The District board adopts an annual budget each year that projects the cost for District operations for the 
coming years. The District adopted budget for fiscal year (FY) 2023-2024 shows a total of $38,750. See Table 
III-6 for a breakdown for the FY 2023-2024 budget and the previous year FY 2022-2023. 

Table III-6. MVWD Adopted 2023-2024 Budget 

 2022-2023 
Budget 

2022-2023 
Actual 

2023-2024 
Budget 

Administration Budget 

Management $12,000 $7,446 $8,000 

Legal $5,000 $1,510 $5,000 

Accounting $12,000 $12,765 $12,000 

Audit $4,000 $3,540 $4,000 

Legal Notices $500 $260 $500 

ACWA - $5,153 $5,200 

Miscellaneous $4,000 $7,978 $3,800 

Total Administration Budget $37,500 $38,653 $38,500 

Water Management Budget 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act - - - 

Integrated Regional Water Management $250 - $250 

Total Water Procurement Budget $250 - $250 

Grand Total $37,750 $38,653 $38,750 

Audit Compliance 

The District is in compliance with its annual audits. The most recent audit for FY 2022-2023 is attached as 
Appendix C. According to the FY 2022-2023 audit prepared for the District, the following financial highlights 
are noted: 

1. The District’s total net position increased $1,941 or 1.72% over the course of the year operations.  
2. The District’s operating revenue was $36,830 for the year ended June 30, 2023. Operating expenses 

for the year ended June 30, 2023 were $36,640. The District’s operating revenue is solely generated 
from landowner assessments. 

3. The District had no capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023.  
4. The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2023. 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-13 

Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities 

The opportunity for shared facilities has the potential to reduce costs of services. It is up to LAFCo to determine 
if sharing facilities with other service providers is feasible.  

The District’s boundaries are located within the vicinity of various local agencies that could present 
opportunities for shared facilities in the form of mutual agreements for shared infrastructure. The neighboring 
agencies with surface water infrastructure or access to surface water include JID, CID, FID, RCWD, LID, 
KRCD, and the KRWA. The District does not own or operate any infrastructure so any sort of sharing with 
another entity would not be symbiotic. However, if other Districts were to allow MVWD to utilize their 
facilities, total costs to landowners could be reduced. 

The District is a participating member of the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA). ACWA is the 
largest statewide coalition of public water agencies in the country. ACWA contains 430 public agency members 
which are collectively responsible for 90% of the water delivered to cities, farms and businesses in California.13  

Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure and 
Operational Efficiencies 

California Water Code section 34000-38500 enables the formation of Water Districts. The District is an 
independent special district with a separate board of directors not governed by other legislative bodies (either 
a city council or a county board of supervisors). 

The District does not have any employees and has contracted with a private consulting firm, Provost & 
Pritchard Consulting Group, to provide services on an as-needed basis. Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
was the first District Engineer and has been contracted by the District ever since. 

A body of five officials, elected to four-year terms, serves as the Board of Directors governing the District.  

The Board creates policy by adopting resolutions or ordinances at duly noticed public hearings. The Board 
designates the third Wednesday of each month at 1:30 p.m. as its official meeting date. However, the District 
does not need to meet monthly so meetings are on an as-needed basis, typically once a year. Board meetings 
are held at the offices of the Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group. Meetings are noticed and posted consistent 
with Brown Act requirements, although the frequency of meetings is not in compliance with the Brown Act. 
There appears to be opportunities for public involvement and input at the yearly meeting.  

Based on the information provided above, there are no other means available to improve the District’s 
accountability and government structure. 

Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, as Required by 
Commission Policy 

Fresno County General Plan Consistency 

All proposals shall be consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and standards of the Fresno County General 
Plan and any applicable area plan. The Commission may find a proposal consistent with the General Plan or 
area plan as a whole, although the proposal is found to be inconsistent with one or more standards, if the 
Commission identifies the inconsistencies and finds that: 

1. The negative effect in a particular instance is outweighed by the overall positive impact of the proposal 
on the County;  

 

13 (Association of California Water Agencies, 2024) 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-14 

2. The proposal will not materially detract from the General Plan or area plan as a whole; and  

3. The proposal is inconsistent with one or more standards of the General Plan or area plan due to the 
unique nature of the proposal and/or special or unusual circumstances in the area or the County at the 
time that could not have been anticipated when the General Plan was developed, and that the situation 
is not likely to occur frequently enough so as to warrant amending the General Plan or area plan. 

District Policies 

The District is in compliance with its bylaws, amended and restated in 1995 (see Appendix E). 

Website 

The District does not maintain its own website. Currently, there is no publicly accessible available information 
regarding the District’s workings. A website would provide information such as meeting times and locations, 
budgets, rates, ordinances, agendas, completed/upcoming projects, and other District affairs. 

  



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-15 

D. DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS 

California GC Section 56430 provides that LAFCos, upon receipt and consideration of an MSR, are required 
to adopt written findings addressing topics as follows. 

Growth and Population 

According to the Draft Fresno Multi-Jurisdictional 2023-2031 Housing Element, the 2022 population of the 
unincorporated areas of Fresno County was 158,846 people. From 2000 to 2022, the population saw an average 
annual decline of 0.2 percent.14 The District contains a total of approximately 13,678 acres. Current land uses 
for the 73 parcels consisting of 32 landowners within the District boundaries are agricultural and are expected 
to remain agricultural. No growth or population increase is anticipated by the District. 

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

There are no DUCs within or adjacent to the District. Additionally, the District does not provide municipal 
services that facilitate, support, or induce population growth. The District does not provide services related to 
public sewer, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection that would present opportunity to 
extend services to a DUC.  

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Services 

Since its formation, the District has not been able to secure long-term water supply from Reclamation’s CVP. 
The primary reason the District was formed was to receive CVP water from the then-proposed Mid-Valley 
Canal Unit. In 1992, the CVPIA reallocated 800,000 AF of Delta flows for environmental needs. The District 
was originally set to receive a portion of those flows once the Mid-Valley Canal Unit was built. Now that there 
are no upcoming plans to build the Mid-Valley Canal Unit, it is highly unlikely the District will be able to acquire 
a reliable surface water supply in the foreseeable future. In addition, local surface water supplies are fully 
committed.  

Currently, the District owns and operates a diversion pumping structure. The pumping structure is located in 
the James Bypass Channel on property owned by RD 1606 lands. The District and RD 1606 entered into a 
license agreement to allow the District to install, operate, maintain, repair, and replace the pumping structure 
on RD 1606 property which is located approximately 500 feet south of James Road on the easterly side of the 
James Bypass. 

Financial Ability of the Agency to Provide Services 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all landowners within the District. 

Annual land assessments are collected by the District and are utilized to allow the District to provide indirect 
services through cooperative agreements with other local agencies. The District uses land assessment to 
maintain the operation of the District, help fund the development of future District projects, conduct 
groundwater studies, and represent and advocate for landowners within the District.  

The District does not presently charge fees to landowners within its service area. These existing land 
assessments generated by the District are sufficient to cover the District's operating costs as seen in the most 
recent financial audit. 

 

14 (Fresno Council of Governments, 2023) 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025  III-16 

Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities 

The opportunity for shared facilities has the potential to reduce costs of services. It is up to LAFCo to determine 
if sharing facilities with other service providers is feasible. There are various local agencies in the vicinity of 
MVWD that could present opportunities for shared facilities. Sharing opportunities can bring landowner costs 
down for each agency involved. An effort should be made to explore what those opportunities could entail. 

The District is a participating member of the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA). ACWA is the 
largest statewide coalition of public water agencies in the country. ACWA contains 430 public agency members 
which are collectively responsible for 90% of the water delivered to cities, farms and businesses in California.  

Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure and 
Operational Efficiencies 

The District was formed in 1984 for the purpose of securing a water supply for agricultural irrigation purposes. 
The District currently does not provide any direct services. The District has an elected five-member Board of 
Directors. The Board designates the third Wednesday of each month at 1:30 p.m. as its official meeting date. 
In reality, the District meets on an as-needed basis, typically once a year at the specified day and time noted 
above. The Board meetings are publicly-noticed and are conducted in compliance with the Brown Act. The 
meeting locations and facilities are in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. There appears to 
be opportunities for public involvement and input at the yearly meeting.  

Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, as Required by 
Commission Policy 

Fresno LAFCo has a Policies and Procedures document, adopted on April 3, 1986 and last revised on June 8, 
2022. It can be found at the following link: 

https://www.fresnolafco.org/files/0aec8ac1d/LAFCo+Policy+Manual+2022.pdf  

The District is in compliance with its bylaws, amended and restated in 1995. 

The District does not have a website and should design one moving forward pursuant to SB 929. 

 

 

https://www.fresnolafco.org/files/0aec8ac1d/LAFCo+Policy+Manual+2022.pdf


  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 III-17 

E. SOI STATEMENTS 

GC Section 56425(e) requires LAFCo to consider and make a written statement with respect to each of the 
following: 

1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands. 

2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 

3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is 
authorized to provide.  

4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the Commission 
determines that they are relevant to the agency. 

Mid-Valley Water District currently encompasses approximately 13,678 acres of varying land uses in Fresno 
County. The total acreage planned within the District is 42,552 acres. The District currently comprises land 
zoned and used for agricultural purposes.  

The District proposes to reduce its SOI boundary by 28,874 acres resulting in a SOI of 13,678 acres. As 
evaluated in this report relative to: 1) present and planned land uses; 2) present and probable need for public 
facilities and services; 3) present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency 
provides or is authorized to provide; and 4) the existence of any social or economic communities of interest in 
the area (i.e. disadvantaged unincorporated communities) for which the Commission may determine relevant, 
it is recommended that the SOI of the Mid-Valley Water District be amended to what is shown in Figure III-2.  



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 III-18 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE (CEQA) 

An MSR and SOI amendment are considered to be a “project” as defined by the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA; Public Resources Code Section 21000, et seq.), and therefore are subject to analysis for potential 
environmental effects. In LAFCo’s role as lead agency under CEQA, the Commission generally will determine that 
adoption of the MSR is categorically exempt from CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines Section 15306, 
Information Collection, which states: 

“Class 6 consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource  
evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental 
resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a study leading 
to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded.” 

The supporting findings for this CEQA exemption are as follows: 

4. The purpose of an MSR is to collect data for the purpose of evaluating an agency’s ability to provide 
services within its sphere of influence.  

5. Adoption of an MSR does not result in any change to land use or zoning, nor does it grant an entitlement 
or permit of any kind, either directly or indirectly.  

6. Nothing resulting from adoption of an MSR has the potential to create any physical change to the 
environment. 

 

 



  Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 III-19 

G. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

Staff recommends that the Commission takes the following actions: 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

B. Recommended Action: Find the proposal to be exempt from CEQA under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15306, Information Collection.  

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW 

Recommended Action: ADOPT the seven determinations required in GC Section 56430 for the MVWD as 
identified in this municipal service review report.  

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENT 

Recommended Action: ADOPT statements as discussed in this report, pursuant to GC Section 56425(e) as 
follows: 

1)  The District has adequate capacity, financial ability, accountability, and government structure to serve 
the present and planned land uses;  

2)  The District has the capacity, financial ability, accountability, and government structure to provide for 
the present and probable need for public facilities and services;  

3)  The District has the present capacity of public facilities and has adequate public services to provide for 
the area it is authorized to provide;  

4)  There are no social or economic communities of interest in the area such as disadvantaged 
unincorporated communities for which the Commission has determined relevant within the District’s 
proposed boundaries.  

 
 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 IV-1 

IV. References 
Association of California Water Agencies. (2024). ACWA. Retrieved from ACWA: 

https://www.google.com/search?q=acwa&sca_esv=0a31b4c8707f31fc&sca_upv=1&source=hp&ei
=MIRwZvHOOYKLkPIPsumo-
A4&iflsig=AL9hbdgAAAAAZnCSQG4ex2zbDfn46TWQBJWYbdqnALwo&ved=0ahUKEwjxps_o
peOGAxWCBUQIHbI0Cu8Q4dUDCBc&uact=5&oq=acwa&gs_lp=Egdnd3Mtd2l6IgRhY3dhMgg
QABiA 

California Department of Conservation. (2023). Important Farmland Categories. Retrieved from Calfornia 
Department of Conservation: https://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/fmmp/Pages/Important-
Farmland-Categories.aspx 

Fresno Council of Governments. (2023). Fresno Multi-Jurisdictional 2023-2031 Housing Element HCD Review 
Draft. Retrieved from https://www.fresnocountyca.gov/files/assets/county/v/1/2023-
2031_mjhe_regional_fresnocounty.pdf 

Fresno County. (2024). Fresno County General Plan Policy Document. Retrieved from 
https://www.fresnocountyca.gov/files/sharedassets/county/v/3/public-works-and-
planning/development-services/planning-and-land-use/environmental-impact-reports/general-plan-
review/fcgpr_general-plan_prd-county_01-12_24-clean.pdf 

Justia U.S. Law. (1913). CA Water Code Section 35401. Retrieved from Justia U.S. Law: 
https://law.justia.com/codes/california/2022/code-wat/division-13/part-5/chapter-2/article-
1/section-35401/ 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group. (2022). Mcmullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan. Retrieved from https://www.mcmullinarea.org/wp-
content/uploads/2023/07/MAGSA-GSP-2022-Update-Secure-1.pdf 

Raisin City Water District. (2015). Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update. Retrieved from 
https://www.fresnolafco.org/files/d62651f64/Raisin+City+WD+MSR-Final.pdf 

 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-1 

Appendix A. RCWD Adopted Budget (FY 23-24)



Raisin City Water District
2023-2024 Budget

Description

 Adopted 
2023-24 
Budget 

Advertising - Public Notices $500
Directors Fees 0
Dues - ACWA/KBWA 11,000
Insurance 3,200
Office Expense 500
Professional Fees - Administration 74,000
Professional Fees - Auditor 6,900
Professional Fees - Legal 30,000
Professional Fees - Other (Annex) 10,000
Project Fees & Costs 0

McMullin Recharge Phase 2 0
Infrastructure Planning 50,000

Prop. 218 Election 45,000
Water Management Program 0

Website and Outreach 10,000
Unbudgeted Expense 2,200

Total Expenses $243,300

Projected Income
Current Year Assessments $38,560
Delinquent Assessments 1,500
Interest 8,000
Grant Funding 20,000

Total Income $68,060

G:\Raisin City Water District - 1116\1116 On-going\200-Financial\Budget Proposal.xlsx



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-2 

Appendix B. RCWD Financial Audit (FYs 18-23) 
  



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Table of Contents 

Board of Directors and Administration 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1 

2-3 

4-6 

7 

8 

9 

10-12 



R. Gere Gunlund 

Jusdip Jerry Rai 

Gagandip Batth 

Don Cameron 

Doug Moles 

Randy Hopkins 

Rick Besecker 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Board of Directors 

Administration 

President 

Vice-President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Manager 

Treasurer 



cuTTone & masTro 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Fresno, California 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raisin City Water District (a special district) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of conten ts. 

M anagement' s Responsibi lity for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fa ir presentation of these financia l statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; th is includes 

the design, implementation, and maintenance of in ternal control relevant to the preparation and fa ir 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonab le assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design aud it procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes eva luating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the f inancial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Raisin City Water District, as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in financial position 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis information on pages 4-6 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

December 11, 2019 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the Raisin City Water District {the District), we offer readers of the District's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019. Please read in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management's discussion and analysis, the independent 
auditor's report and the basic financial statements of the District. The financial statements also include 
notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the District report information of the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net position includes all of the District's 
assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in 
resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities}. It also provides the basis for 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the 
District. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position. This statement can be used to determine whether the District 
has successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its 
credit worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is "Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District's activities in a 
way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the District 
and the changes in them. One can think of the District's net position-the difference between assets 
and liabilities-as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in 
economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District frqm year-end to year-end. This comparison is 
presented in the following table: 

4 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued} 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Dollar Percentage 

2019 2018 Change Change 

Current Assets $1,102,132 $1,211,901 $ {109,769) -9.06% 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 1,102,132 1,211,901 (109,769) -9.06% 

Current Liabilities 

Total liabilities 57,758 70,531 (12,773) -18.11% 

Unrestricted Assets 1,044,374 1,141,370 (96,996) -8.50% 

Total Net Position $1,044,374 $1,141,370 $ (96,996} -8.50% 

0 Net assets, primarily cash, has decreased from the prior year due to the District incurring 
additional planning costs for the year. 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position for each year will 
explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating activities during that year. This 
comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Dollar Percentage 

2019 2018 Change Change 

Operating Revenues $ 37,802 $ 38,327 $ (525) -1.37% 

Operating Expenses 161,945 466,151 (304,206) -65.26% 

Operating Income (Loss) (124,143) (427,824) 303,681 -70.98% 

Non-Operating Revenues 27,147 19,504 7,643 39.19% 

Change In Net Position (96,996) (408,320) 311,324 -76.25% 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,141,370 1,549,690 (408,320) -26.35% 

Net Position - End of Year $1,044,374 $1,141,370 $ (96,996) -8.50% 

0 Revenues are consistent with the prior year and while expenses have decreased from the prior 
year, the District is incurring additional costs, primarily planning costs, over the prior year. 

Budgetary Highlights 
The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations for the coming 
year. The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing them. 

5 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 

Management throughout the year analyzes the District's budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shows in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

The budget is divided into the following categories. 
o Administration 
o Advertising 

• Audit 
o Dues 

o Insurance 
o Legal 

o Miscellaneous 
o Office 

• Planning 
o Project Costs 

o Website 

At June 30, 2019 actual to budget comparison is presented in the following table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Actual Budget Difference Percentage 

Total Expenses $ 161,945 $ 785,450 $ (623,505) -79.38% 

Contacting the District's Management 
This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact: Raisin City Water District, 286 W. 
Cromwell Avenue, Fresno, California 93711. 

6 



Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Accrued Interest Receivable 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

$1,091,012 

6,987 

2,308 

1,825 

1,102,132 

1,102,132 

57,758 

57,758 

1,044,374 

$1,044,374 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Operating Revenues 
Assessments 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Advertising 

Dues 

Engineering and Planning 

Insurance 

Legal and Accounting 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Income 
Interest Income 

Change In Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 

Net Position at End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 

$ 37,802 

37,802 

215 

10,265 

116,190 

2,430 

32,845 

161,945 

(124,143) 

27,147 

{96,996) 

1,141,370 

$1,044,374 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received from Customers 

Cash Paid to Suppliers 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received From Interest Earned 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash at the Beginning of Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows 

from Operating Activities: 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
9 

$ 37,235 

(174,721) 

(137,486) 

26,236 

(111,250) 

1,202,262 

$1,091,012 

$ (124,143) 

(567) 

(3) 

{12,773) 

$ (137,486) 



(1) Description of Entity 

(a) Description of Operations 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Raisin City Water District (the "District") was formed in 1962 as a special district in the State of 
California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors. The District operates entirely within 
the County of Fresno, California. The principal function of the District is to obtain a surface water 
supply for the benefit of lands within the District. A surface water supply has not yet been made 
available. 

(b) Reporting Entity 

In accordance with the requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the financial statements must present the District (the 
primary government) and its component units. Pursuant to this criterion, no component units were 
identified for inclusion in the accompanying financial statements. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Raisin City Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's 
policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 
District, the reporting entity. The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 
operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 
investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. This includes funds on deposit with the State of California Local 
Agency Investment Fund. 



(c) Accounts Receivable 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(continued) 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial. Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenues and 
expenses, and capital contributions. 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following: 

Checking - WestAmerica Bank 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Total Cash 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

$ 10,830 
1,080.182 

$. l,.09J,,.0_12. 

The District does not have an investment policy that contains limitations on the amount that can be 
invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party. 

\ 

11 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(continued) 

The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires California banks and 
savings and loan associations to collateralize a district's deposits by pledging government securities. The 
market value of the pledged securities must equal at least 110 percent of a district's deposits. California 
law also allows financial institutions to collateralize a district's deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of a district's total deposits. The district may waive 
collateral requirements for deposits on interest bearing accounts which are fully insured by Federal 
Deposit insurance up to $250,000. 

At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the District's cash deposits in an interest-bearing account was 
$10,830 and the bank balance was $22,152. The difference between the bank balance and the carrying 
amount represents outstanding checks in transit. At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount and LAIF balance 
of the Districts cash deposits in an interest-bearing account was $1,080,182. 

12 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Table of Contents 

Board of Directors and Administration 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

(Required Supplementary Information) 

Basic Fina ncia I Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Page 

1 

2-3 

4-6 

7 

8 

9 

10-12 



R. Gere Gunlund 

Jusdip Jerry Rai 

Gagandip Batth 

Don Cameron 

Doug Moles 

Randy Hopkins 

Rick Besecker 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Administration 

President 

Vice-President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Manager 

Treasurer 



cunone & masTro 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Fresno, California 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raisin City Water District {a special district) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements· in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness :of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Raisin City Water District, as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis information on pages 4--6 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management1 s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

November 13, 2020 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the Raisin City Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District1s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020. Please read in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management's discussion and analysis, the independent 
auditor's report and the basic financial statements of the District. The financial statements also include 

notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements . 
The financial statements of the District report information of the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies_. These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net position includes all of the Distrids 
assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in 
resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors {liabilities). It also provides the basis for 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the 
District. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position. This statement can be used to determine whether the District 
has successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its 
credit worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 

and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the n10st important questions asked about the District's finances is "Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District's activities in a 

way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the District 
and the changes in them. One can think of the District's net position-the difference between assets 

and liabilities-as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 

decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in 
economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District from year-end to year-end. This comparison is 
presented in the following table; 

4 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued} 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Dollar Percentage 

2020 2019 Change Change 

Current Assets $ 886,497 $1,102,132 $ (215,635) -19.57% 
Capital Assets 182,718 20,180 162,538 805.44% 

Total Assets 1,069,215 1,122,312 (53,097) -4.73% 

Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 169,125 57,758 111,367 192.82% 

Unrestricted Assets 900,090 1,064,554 (164,464) -15.45% 

Total Net Position $ 900,090 $1,064,554 $ (164,464} -15.45% 

• Net assets, primarily cash, has decreased from the prior year due to the District incurring 

additional planning costs and construction in progress for the year. 

• In 2020, the District continued toward the construction of the McMullin Recharge Project. Total 

costs to date that have been capitalized are $182,715. 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position for each year will 

explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating activities during that year. This 
comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Dollar 

2020 2019 Change 

Operating Revenues $ 39,296 $ 37,802 $ 1,494 

0peratinG Expenses 223,775 141,765 82,010 

Operating Income {Loss) (184,479) (103,963) (80,516) 

Non-Operating Revenues 20,015 27,147 (7,132) 

Change In Net Position (164,464) (76,816) (87,648) 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,064,554 1,141,370 (76,816) 

Net Position - End of Year $ 900,090 $1,064,554 $ (164,464) 

Percentage 

Change 

3.95% 

57.85% 

77.45% 

-26.27% 

114.10% 

-6.73% 

-15.45% 

• Revenues are consistent with the prior year and while expenses have increased from the prior 
year, the District is incurring additional costs, primarily planning costs, over the prior year. 

5 



Budgetary Highlights 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 

The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations for the coming 

year. The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing them. 

Management throughout the year analyzes the District's budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shows in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

The budget is divided into the following categories. 

• Administration 

• Advertising 

• Audit 

• Dues 

• Insurance 

• Legal 

• Miscellaneous 

• Office 

• Planning 

(JI Project Costs 

• Website 

At June 30, 2020, the actual to budget comparison is presented in the following table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Actual Budget Difference Percentage 

Total Expenses $ 223,775 $1,005,450 $ (781,675) -77.74% 

Contacting the District's Management 
This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 

overview of the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact: Raisin City Water District, 286 W. 

Cromwell Avenue, Fresno, California 93711. 

6 



Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Accrued Interest Receivable 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

Capital Assets - Net 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

$ 878,348 

3,180 

3,119 

1,850 

886,497 

182,718 

1,069,215 

169,125 

169,125 

900,090 

$ 900,090 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Operating Revenues 
Assessments 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Advertising 

Bad Debt 

Dues 

Engineering and Planning 

Insurance 

Legal and Accounting 

Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income { Loss) 

Nonoperating Income 
Interest Income 

Change In Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated 

Net Position at End of Year 

The accompanying notes arc an integral pat1 of these financial statements. 
8 

$ 39,296 

39,296 

104 

1,600 

10,230 

153,291 

2,482 

57,275 

(1,207) 

223,775 

(184,479} 

20,015 

( 1.64,464) 

1,064,554 

$ 900,090 



.. RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received from Customers 

Cash Paid to Suppliers 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received From Interest Earned 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital Assests Acquired 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash at the Beginning of Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows 

from Operating Activities: 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 
9 

$ 38,485 

(112,433) 

(73,948) 

23,822 

(162,538) 

(212,664) 

$ 878,348 

$ (184,479) 

(811) 

(25) 

111,367 

$ {73,948) 



... 

(1) Descri ption of Entity 

(a) Descri ption of Operations 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Raisin City Water District (the "District") was formed in 1962 as a special district in the State of 
California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors. The District operates entirely within 
the County of Fresno, California. The principal function of the District is to obtain a surface water 
supply for the benefit of lands within the District. A surface water supply has not yet been made 
available . 

(b) Re porting Entity 

In accordance with the requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity,, of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB), the financial statements must present the District (the 
primary government) and its component units. Pursuant to this criterion, no component units were 

identified for inclusion in the accompanying financial statements. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accountin g Policies 

{a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Raisin City Water District (District} have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States as applied to government units. The 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's 

policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 

District, the reporting entity. The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 

operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. No nope rating 

revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 

investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities . 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 

purchased to be cash equivalents. This includes funds on deposit with the State of California Local 

Agency Investment Fund. 

10 



(c) Accounts Receivable 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 
(continued) 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial. Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenues and 
expenses, and capital contributions. 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

Checking - WestArnerica Bank 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Total Cash 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

$ 19,370 
858,978 

,$-82&,3413-

The District's investment policy authorizes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund 

{LAIF). The District's investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit its exposure 

to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 

to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy that would 

further limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 

increasing rates 



Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 
(continued) 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, the Local Agency Investment Fund is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a 
single issuer of securities. When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration presents a 
heightened risk of potential !oss. The District's deposit portfolio with governmental agencies consists of 
Local Agency Investment Fund at 97 .8% as of June 30, 2020, of the District's total depository and 
investment portfolio. The District does not have a formal investment policy that would further limit 
exposure to concentration of credit risk 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code does not contain 

legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than 

the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 

secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 

pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 

market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 

deposited by the public agencies. As of June 30, 2020, the District did not have cash with banks that 

exceeded federal depository insurance limits. 

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a 

transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 

that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code does not contain legal or 

policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to 

investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. 

Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the 

use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Local Agency Investment Fund). 

As of June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the District's cash deposits in an interest-bearing account and 
the bank balance was $19,370. As of June 30, 2020, the carrying amount and LAIF balance of the Districts 

cash deposits in an interest-bearing account was $858,978. 

11 



(4) Ca pital Assets 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 
{continued) 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 consisted of the fol lowing: 

Balance 

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases 
CIP $ 20,180 $ 162,538 $ 
Less Accumulated Depreciation -

$ 20,180 $ 162,538 $ 

(5) Restatement of Beginning Financial Position 

Balance 

June 30, 2020 

$ 182,718 

$ 182,718 

The beginning net position has been restated to reflect the capitalization of assets by the district for a 
capital project which was in progress as of June 30, 2019. The amount of the capitalized was $20,180. 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, As Previously Stated 

Restatement Amount 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated 

12 

$1,044-,374 

20.180 



cunone & masTro 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

November 13, 2020 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Raisin City, California 

We have audited the financial statements of Raisin City Water District for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 17, 2020. Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Raisin City Water District are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. We 
noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because Of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the Raisin City Water District's financial statements was management's 
estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical loss levels, and an analysis of the 
collectability of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance 
in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. Management expects 
to eventually collect a material amount of the assessments due to the land securing most of the assessments. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result 
of audit procedures and correct by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each 
opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 13, 2020. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion11 on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the District's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in 
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 

opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of board of directors and management of Raisin City Water District 

and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

~ ! /7l~ 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Board of Directors and Administration 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 

Table of Contents 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1 

2-3 

4-6 

7 

8 

9 

10-14 



R. Gere Gunlund 

Jonathan DeGroot 

Gagandip Batth 

Don Cameron 

John Verwey 

Randy Hopkins 

Rick Besecker 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Board of Directors 

Administration 

President 

Vice-President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Manager 

Treasurer 



cuTTone & masTro 
C ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Clovis, California 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raisin City Water District (a special district), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of interna l control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements t hat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's interna l control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as eva luating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Raisin City Water District, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial 
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other-Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

November 4, 2021 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the Raisin City Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2021. Please read in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 
• The District's total net position decreased $84,863 or 7.90% over the course of the year 

operations. 
• The District's operating revenue was $37,492 for the year ended June 30, 2021. Operating 

expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $127,359. 
• The District had construction in progress in the amount of $467,000 for June 30, 2021. 
• The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2021. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management's discussion and analysis, the independent 
auditor's report and the basic financial statements of the District. The financial statements also include 
notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the District report information of the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net position includes all of the District's 
assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in 
resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the 
District. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position. This statement can be used to determine whether the District 
has successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its 
credit worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is "Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District's activities in a 
way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the District 
and the changes in them. One can think of the District's net position-the difference between assets 
and liabilities-as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in 
economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 

4 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District from year-end to year-end. This comparison is 
presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Current Assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Restricted for Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

Unrestricted Assets 

Total Net Position 

$ 

2021 

526,002 

467,000 

993,002 

3,262 

467,000 

522,740 

$ 989,740 

$ 

2020 

886,497 

357,231 

1,243,728 

169,125 

357,231 

717,372 

$1,074,603 

Dollar 

Change 

$ (360,495) 

109,769 

(250,726) 

(165,863) 

109,769 

(194,632) 

$ {84,863) 

Percentage 

Change 

-40.67% 

30.73% 

-20.16% 

-98.07% 

30.73% 

-27.13% 

-7.90% 

The table shows that the District's net position decreased $84,863 or 7.90% for the year ended June 30, 
2021. Factors cpntributing to this change include: 

• Net assets, primarily cash, has decreased from the prior year due to the District incurring 
additional planning costs and construction in progress for the year. 

• In 2021, the District continued toward the construction of the McMullin Recharge Project. Total 
costs to date that have been capitalized are $467,000. 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position for each year will 
explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating activities during that year. This 
comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Dollar 

2021 2020 Change 

Operating Revenues $ 37,492 $ 39,296 $ (1,804} 

Operating Expenses 127,359 49,262 78,097 

Operating Income (Loss) (89,867) (9,966} (79,901} 

Non-Operating Revenues 5,004 20,015 (15,011) 

Change In Net Position (84,863) 10,049 (94,912) 

Net Position- Beginning of Year 1,074,603 1,064,554 10,049 

Net Position - End of Year $ 989,740 $1,074,603 $ {84,863) 

5 

Percentage 

Change 

-4.59% 

158.53% 

801.74% 

-75.00% 

-944.49% 

0.94% 

-7.90% 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The table shows that the District's net position increase was $84,863 or 7.90% for the year ended June 

30, 2021. Factors contributing to this change include: 
• Revenues are consistent with the prior year and expenses have increased from the prior 

year. 

Budgetary Highlights 
The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations for the coming 
year. The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing them. 
Management throughout the year analyzes the District's budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shows in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

At June 30, 2021, the actual to budget comparison is presented in the following table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Actual Budget Difference Percentage 

Total Expenses $ 127,359 $ 500,000 $ (372,641) 

Capital Assets 
The District had Construction in progress in the amount of $467,000 for June 30, 2021. The 
District's construction in progress consists of the design for the McMullin Recharge Project. It is 
estimated that the design was at approximately 30% completion at June 30, 2021. 

Debt Service Requirements 
The District has no long-term debt. 

Contacting the District's Management 

-74.53% 

This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact Raisin City Water District, 455 W. Fir 
Avenue, Clovis, California 93611. 

6 



Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Accrued Interest Receivable 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

Capital Assets - Net 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Restricted for Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

$ 520,192 

420 

3,413 

1,977 

526,002 

467,000 

993,002 

3,262 

3,262 

467,000 
522,740 

$ 989,740 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Operating Revenues 
Assessments 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Advertising 

Dues 

Election Expense 

Engineering and Planning 

Insurance 

Legal and Accounting 

Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income {Loss) 

Nonoperating Income 

Interest Income 
GSA Reimbursement 

Total Nonoperating Income 

Change In Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated 

Net Position at End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 

$ 37,492 

37,492 

301 

10,715 

8,194 

61,384 

2,508 

44,222 

35 

127,359 

{89,867) 

3,642 
1,362 

5,004 

{84,863) 

1,074,603 

$ 989,740 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received from Customers 

Cash Paid to Suppliers 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

GSA Reimbursements and Other Income 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Cash Received From Interest Earned 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital Assests Acquired 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash at the Beginning of Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows 

from Operating Activities: 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
9 

$ 37,198 

(293,349) 

(256,151) 

1,362 

6,402 

(109,769) 

(358,156) 

878,348 

$ 520,192 

$ (89,867) 

(294) 

(127) 

(165,863) 

$ (256,151) 



(1) Description of Entity 

(a) Description of Operations 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Raisin City Water District (the "District") was formed in 1962 as a special district in the State of 
California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors. The District operates entirely within 
the County of Fresno, California. The principal function of the District is to obtain a surface water 
supply for the benefit of lands within the District. A surface water supply has not yet been made 
available. 

(b) Reporting Entity 

District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity by 
applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The District concluded that there are no potential component units which should be 
included in the reporting entity. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Raisin City Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's 
policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 
District, the reporting entity. The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 
operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 
investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. It is the policy of the District to invest only in banks or savings and 
loans and the California Local Agency Investment Fund. 



(c) Accounts Receivable 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial. Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established. For those customers that do become 
uncollectible, liens can be placed on property for future collection. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources. The District reports three categories of net position as follows: 

a. Net investment in capital assets-Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings (if any) that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. The District did not have 
a net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2021. 

b. Restricted net position-Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District did not have a 
restricted net position as of June 30, 2021. 

c. Unrestricted net position-All remaining net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "invested in capital assets". 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021 consisted of the following: 

Checking - WestAmerica Bank 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Total Cash 

11 

$ 19,815 
500.377 

$ 520.192 



Fair Value Measurements 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) 
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs -other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Investments by fair value level: 

State of California - LAIF $ 500,377 $ $ 500,377 $ 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair 
value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
This account is considered Level 2. 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

The District's investment policy authorizes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund 
{LAIF). The District's investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit its exposure 
to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

12 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy that 
would further limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing rates 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, the LAIF is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a 
single issuer of securities. When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration presents 
a heightened risk of potential loss. The District's deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, is LAIF at 
96.19% as of June 30, 2021, of the District's total depository and investment portfolio. The District does 
not have a formal investment policy that would further limit exposure to concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker dealer) to a transaction, a government 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the 
following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits. The District did not have cash with financial institutions that exceeded federal depository 
insurance limits as of June 30, 2021. 

13 



(4) Capital Assets 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 consisted of the following: 

Balance Balance 

July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021 

Construction In Progress $ 357,231 $ 109,769 $ $ 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 

$ 357,231 $ 109,769 $ $ 

The District's construction in progress consists of the design for the McMullin Recharge Project. It is 
estimated that the design was at approximately 30% completion at June 30, 2021. 

(5) Restatement of Beginning Financial Position 

The beginning net position has been restated to reflect the capitalization of assets by the district for a 
capital project which was in progress as of June 30, 2021. The amount of the capitalized costs were 
$174,513. 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, As Previously Stated 

Restatement Amount 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated 

(6) Subsequent Events 

$ 900,090 

174.513 

$1.074.603 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 4, 2021, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no adjustments are necessary to the 
amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

14 

467,000 

467,000 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Table of Contents 

Board of Directors and Administration 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Required Supplementary Information) 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1 

2-3 

4-6 

7 

8 

9 

10-14 



R. Gere Gunlund 

Jonathan DeGroot 

Gagandip Batth 

Don Cameron 

John Verwey 

Randy Hopkins 

Rick Besecker 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Board of Directors 

Administration 

President 

Vice-President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Manager 

Treasurer 



cuTTone & masTro 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Clovis, California 

Opinion 

Independent Aud itor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying statements of Raisin City Water District (the district) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fa irly, in all material respects, t he 
financia l position of the Raisin City Water District, as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its financial 
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States o f America . 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with aud iting standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Our responsibili ties under those standards are further described in the Audi tor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Sta tements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Raisin City Water District , and to meet our other ethical responsibili t ies, in 
accordance with the relevant ethica l requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of M anagement for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and fo r the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of interna l control relevant to the preparation and fa ir 
presentation of financial statements that are free from materia l misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve l o f assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an aud it conducted in accordance wi th generally 
accepted auditing standards wi ll always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve co llusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they wou ld influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
t he financial statements. 

phone 559-261 -4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Raisin City Water District District's internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate 
that raise substantial doubt about the Raisin City Water District District's ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4-6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

November 28, 2022 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the Raisin City Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2022. Please read in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 
• The District's total net position decreased $40,012 or 4.04% over the course of the year 

operations. 
• The District's operating revenue was $39,331 for the year ended June 30, 2022. Operating 

expenses for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $81,240. 
• The District had no capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
• The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2022. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management's discussion and analysis, the independent 
auditor's report and the basic financial statements of the District. The financial statements also include 
notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 
The financial stat~ments of the District report information of the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net position includes all of the District's 
assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in 
resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (lia~ilities). _ It also provides the basis for 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and fina.ncial flexibility of the 
District. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position. This statement can be used to determine whether the District 
has successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its 
credit worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is "Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District's activities in a 
way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the District 
and the changes in them. One can think of the District's net position-the difference between assets 
and liabilities-as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in 
economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 

4 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District from year-end to year-end. This comparison is 
presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Current Assets 

Capital Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Restricted for Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

Unrestricted Assets 

Total Net Position 

2022 

$ 486,286 

467,000 

953,286 

5,076 

948,210 

$ 948,210 

$ 

2021 

526,002 

467,000 

993,002 

3,262 

467,000 

522,740 

$ 989,740 

Dollar 

Change 

$ {39,716) 

$ (467,000) 

467,000 

(39,716) 

1,814 

{467,000) 

425,470 

$ (41,530) 

Percentage 

Change 

-7.55% 

-100.00% 

#DIV/01 

-4.00% 

55.61% 

-100.00% 

81.39% 

-4.20% 

The table shows that the District's net position decreased $41,530 or 4.2% for the year ended June 30, 
2022. Factors contributing to this change include: 

• Net assets, primarily cash, has decreased from the prior year due to the District's expenses 
exceeding revenues for the year. 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position for each year will 
explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating activities during that year. This 
comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Dollar 

2022 2021 Change 

Operating Revenues $ 37,813 $ 37,492 $ 321 

Operating Expenses 81,240 127,359 (46,119} 

Operating Income (Loss) (43,427) (89,867) 46,440 

Non-Operating Revenues 1,897 5,004 (3,107) 

Change In Net Position (41,530) (84,863) 43,333 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 989,740 1,074,603 (84,863) 

Net Position - End of Year $ 948,210 $ 989,740 $ {41,530) 

5 

Percentage 

Change 

0.86% 

-36.21% 

-51.68% 

-62.09% 

-51.06% 

-7.90% 

-4.20% 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The table shows that the District's net position decrease was $41,530 or 4.2% for the year ended June 
30, 2022. Factors contributing to this change include: 

• Revenues are consistent with the prior year and expenses have decreased from the prior 
year by $46,119 or 36.21%. However, expenses continued to exceed revenue. 

Budgetary Highlights 
The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations for the coming 
year. The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing them. 
Management throughout the year analyzes the District's budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shows in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

At June 30, 2022, the actual to budget comparison is presented in the following table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Actual Budget Difference Percentage 

Total Expenses $ 81,240 $ 256,000 $ (174,760) -68.27% 

Capital Assets 
The District has no capital assets. 

Debt Service Requirements 
The District has no long-term debt. 

Contacting the District's Management 
This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact Raisin City Water District, 455 W. Fir 

Avenue, Clovis, California 93611. 

6 



Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Accrued Interest Receivable 

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 

Prepaid Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Other Receivables 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

$ 477,993 

884 
5,236 

2,173 

486,286 

467,000 

953,286 

5,076 

5,076 

948,210 

$ 948,210 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Operating Revenues 
Assessments 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Advertising 

Dues 

Engineering and Planning 

Insurance 

Legal and Accounting 

Miscellaneous 

Outreach 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Income 
Interest Income 

Total Nonoperating Income 

Change In Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 

Net Position at End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 

$ 37,813 

37,813 

139 

11,465 

44,555 

2,697 

16,744 

139 

5,501 

81,240 

(43,427) 

1,897 

1,897 

(41,530) 

989,740 

$ 948,210 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Paid to Suppliers 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received From Interest Earned 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash at the Beginning of Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows 
from Operating Activities: 

Operating Loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Delinquent Assessments Receivable 
Prepaid Insurance 
Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
9 

$ 35,990 

(79,622) 

(43,632) 

1,433 

(42,199) 

520,192 

$ 477,993 

$ (43,427) 

(1,823) 

(196) 

1,814 

$ (43,632) 



(1) Description of Entity 

(a) Description of Operations 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Raisin City Water District (the "District") was formed in 1962 as a special district in the State of 
California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors. The District operates entirely within 
the County of Fresno, California. The principal function of the District is to obtain a surface water 
supply for the benefit of lands within the District. A surface water supply has not yet been made 
available. 

(b) Reporting Entity 

District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity by 
applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The District concluded that there are no potential component units which should be 
included in the reporting entity. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Raisin City Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's 
policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 
District, the reporting entity. The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 
operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 
investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. It is the policy of the District to invest only in banks or savings and 
loans and the California Local Agency Investment Fund. 

IO 



(c) Accounts Receivable 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial. Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established. For those customers that do become 
uncollectible, liens can be placed on property for future collection. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources. The District reports three categories of net position as follows: 

a. Net investment in capital assets-Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings (if any) that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. The District did not have 
a net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2022. 

b. Restricted _net position-Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District did not have a 
restricted net position as of June 30, 2022. 

c. Unrestricted net position-All remaining net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "invested in capital assets". 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 

Checking - WestAmerica Bank 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

Total Cash 

11 

$ 15,230 
462.763 

$ 477 993 



Fair Value Measurements 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) 
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs -other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Investments by fair value level: 

State of California - LAIF $ 462,763 $ $ 462,763 $ 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair 
value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
This account is considered Level 2. 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

The District's investment policy authorizes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF). The District's investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit its exposure 
to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

12 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy that 
would further limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing rates 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, the LAIF is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a 
single issuer of securities. When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration presents 
a heightened risk of potential loss. The District's deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, is LAIF at 
96.81% as of June 30, 2022, of the District's total depository and investment portfolio. The District does 
not have a formal investment policy that would further limit exposure to concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker dealer) to a transaction, a government 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the 
following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits. The District did not have cash with financial institutions that exceeded federal depository 
insurance limits as of June 30, 2022. 

13 



(4) Capital Assets 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 

Balance 

Jul~ 1, 2022 Increases Decreases 

Construction In Progress $ 467,000 $ $ 467,000 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

$ 467,000 $ $ 467,000 

Balance 

June 30, 2022 

$ 

$ 

The District's construction in progress consists of the design for the McMullin Recharge Project was 
transferred to McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MAGSA) during the year ending June 
30, 2022. At June 30, 2922 the District had no capital assets. 

(S) McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency Receivable 

The District funded the McMullin Recharge Project designs, an asset valued at $467,000 for the year 
ending June 30, 2021. The District transferred the assets to McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (MAGSA) during the year ending June 30, 2022 for them to begin construction of the project. 
MAGSA will reimburse the District in full for the designs. The District anticipates receiving reimbursement 
in 2024. 

{6) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 28, 2022, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no adjustments are necessary to the 
amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

14 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Table of Contents 

Page 

Board of Directors and Administration      1 

Independent Auditor’s Report    2-3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 (Required Supplementary Information)    4-6 

Basic Financial Statements: 

  Statement of Net Position     7 

  Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position     8 

  Statement of Cash Flows     9 

Notes to Financial Statements 10-14 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Board of Directors 

R. Gere Gunlund President   

Jonathan DeGroot Vice-President 

Gagandip Batth Director 

Don Cameron Director   

John Verwey Director   

Administration 

Randy Hopkins Manager 

Rick Besecker Treasurer   



cuTTone & masTro 
C ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

To the Board of Directors 
Raisin City Water District 
Clovis, California 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying statements of Raisin City Water District (the district) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Raisin City Water District, as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards genera lly accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Aud itor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Raisin 
City Water District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Raisin City Water District's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Raisin City Water District District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate that 
raise substantial doubt about the Raisin City Water District District's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4-6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

September 4, 2023 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

4 

As management of the Raisin City Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2023.  Please read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 
 The District’s total net position decreased $30,023 or 3.17% over the course of the year 

operations. 
 The District’s operating revenue was $39,151 for the year ended June 30, 2023.  Operating 

expenses for the year ended June 30, 2023 were $91,139. 
 The District had no capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2023. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management’s discussion and analysis, the independent 
auditor’s report and the basic financial statements of the District.  The financial statements also include 
notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial statements. 

Required Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the District report information of the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities.  The Statement of Net position includes all of the District’s 
assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in 
resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the 
District. 

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position.  This statement can be used to determine whether the District 
has successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its 
credit worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows.  This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is “Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District’s activities in a 
way that will help answer this question.  These two statements report the net position of the District 
and the changes in them.  One can think of the District’s net position—the difference between assets 
and liabilities—as one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating.  However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in 
economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

5 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District from year-end to year-end.  This comparison is 
presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 

The table shows that the District’s net position decreased $30,023 or 3.17% for the year ended June 30, 
2023.  Factors contributing to this change include: 

 Net assets, primarily cash, has decreased from the prior year due to the use of current assets to 
meet the needs of the District.

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position for each year will 
explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating activities during that year.  This 
comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

Dollar Percentage

2023 2022 Change Change

Current Assets 467,127$     486,286$     (19,159)$      -3.94%

Noncurrent Assets 467,000 467,000 - 0.00%

Total Assets 934,127 953,286 (19,159) -2.01%

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities 15,940 5,076 10,864 214.03%

Unrestricted Assets 918,187 948,210 (30,023) -3.17%

Total Net Position 918,187$     948,210$     (30,023)$      -3.17%

Dollar Percentage

2023 2022 Change Change

Operating Revenues 39,151$        37,813$        1,338$          3.54%

Operating Expenses 91,139 81,240 9,899 12.18%

Operating Income (Loss) (51,988) (43,427) (8,561) 19.71%

Non-Operating Revenues 21,965 1,897 20,068 1057.88%

Change In Net Position (30,023) (41,530) 11,507 -27.71%

Net Position - Beginning of Year 948,210 989,740 (41,530) -4.20%

Net Position - End of Year 918,187$     948,210$     (30,023)$      -3.17%



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

6 

The table shows that the District’s net position decrease was $30,023 or 3.17% for the year ended June 
30, 2023.  Factors contributing to this change include: 

 Revenues are consistent with the prior year and expenses have increased from the prior 
year by $9,899 or 12.18% due to increased engineering expenses. 

Budgetary Highlights 
The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations for the coming 
year.  The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing them.  
Management throughout the year analyzes the District’s budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shows in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

At June 30, 2023, the actual to budget comparison is presented in the following table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Capital Assets
The District has no capital assets. 

Debt Service Requirements
The District has no long-term debt. 

Contacting the District’s Management 
This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact Raisin City Water District, 455 W. Fir 
Avenue, Clovis, California 93611.

Actual Budget Difference Percentage

Total Expenses 91,139$        242,400$     (151,261)$    -62.40%



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

Assets

Current Assets
Cash 458,090$    

Accrued Interest Receivable 3,324

Delinquent Assessments Receivable 3,366

Prepaid Insurance 2,347

Total Current Assets 467,127

Noncurrent Assets
Other Receivables 467,000

Total Assets 934,127

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 15,940

Total Liabilities 15,940

Net Position
Unrestricted 918,187

Total Net Position 918,187$    



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 

Operating Revenues
Assessments 39,151$      

Total Operating Revenues 39,151

Operating Expenses

Advertising 130

Dues 11,930

Engineering and Planning 58,693

Insurance 2,955

Legal and Accounting 14,741

Miscellaneous 13

Outreach 2,677

Total Operating Expenses 91,139

Operating Loss (51,988)

Nonoperating Income

Interest Income 10,061
Grant Income 11,904

Total Nonoperating Income 21,965

Change In Net Position (30,023)

Net Position at Beginning of Year 948,210

Net Position at End of Year 918,187$    



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
9

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Customers 41,021$       

Cash Paid to Suppliers (80,449)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (39,428)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Grants Received 11,904

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received From Interest Earned 7,621

Net Change in Cash (19,903)

Cash at the Beginning of Year 477,993

Cash at the End of Year 458,090$    

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows

  from Operating Activities:

Operating Loss (51,988)$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss

  to net cash provided by operating activities:

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

   Delinquent Assessments Receivable 1,870

   Prepaid Insurance (174)

   Accounts Payable 10,864

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (39,428)$     



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

10 

(1) Description of Entity 

(a) Description of Operations 

Raisin City Water District (the “District”) was formed in 1962 as a special district in the State of 
California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors.  The District operates entirely within 
the County of Fresno, California.  The principal function of the District is to obtain a surface water 
supply for the benefit of lands within the District.  A surface water supply has not yet been made 
available. 

(b) Reporting Entity 

District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity by 
applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  The District concluded that there are no potential component units which should be 
included in the reporting entity. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Raisin City Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States as applied to government units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the government’s 
policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 
District, the reporting entity.  The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 
operations of the District.  Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services.  Nonoperating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 
investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents.  It is the policy of the District to invest only in banks or savings and 
loans and the California Local Agency Investment Fund. 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued)

11 

(c) Accounts Receivable 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial.  Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established.  For those customers that do become 
uncollectible, liens can be placed on property for future collection. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources.  The District reports three categories of net position as follows: 

a. Net investment in capital assets—Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings (if any) that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  The District did not have 
a net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2023. 

b. Restricted net position—Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   The District did not have a 
restricted net position as of June 30, 2023. 

c. Unrestricted net position—All remaining net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “invested in capital assets”. 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2023 consisted of the following: 

Checking – WestAmerica Bank  $    34,710 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)     423,380 

Total Cash $  458,090 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued)

12 

Fair Value Measurements 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels.  The fair value hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) 
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2:     Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs – other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3:     Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  
This account is considered Level 2. 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

The District’s investment policy authorizes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF).  The District’s investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit its exposure 
to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level:

State of California - LAIF 423,380$     -$                   423,380$     -$                   



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued)

13 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates.  The District does not have a formal investment policy that 
would further limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing rates 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, the LAIF is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District’s investment in a 
single issuer of securities.  When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration presents 
a heightened risk of potential loss.  The District’s deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, is LAIF at 
92.42% as of June 30, 2023, of the District’s total depository and investment portfolio.  The District does 
not have a formal investment policy that would further limit exposure to concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker dealer) to a transaction, a government 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the 
following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure District 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits.  The District did not have cash with financial institutions that exceeded federal depository 
insurance limits as of June 30, 2023. 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued)

14 

(4) McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency Receivable 

The District funded the McMullin Recharge Project designs, an asset valued at $467,000.  The District 
transferred the assets to McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MAGSA) during the year 
ending June 30, 2022 for them to begin construction of the project.  MAGSA will reimburse the District for 
the eligible design costs provided MAGSA receives grant funding for the project.  The District anticipates 
receiving reimbursement in 2024.   

(5) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 4, 2023, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no adjustments are necessary to the 
amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements. 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-3 

Appendix C. RCWD By-Laws 

  



AMENDED AND RESTATED 
BYLAWS OF 

RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 

These are the Bylaws of Raisin City Water District (the "District"). The purposes 
of the Bylaws are to provide for the orderly conduct of the members of the District's Board of 
Directors (the "Board"), and meetings of the Board, and encourage public participation in such 
Board meetings. These Bylaws are stated and adopted as of August 11, 2015, and shall govern 
the District from this point forward and shall supersede any previous Bylaws adopted by the 
District. 

ARTICLE II. DISTRICT POWERS 

All District powers shall be those established by the California Water District 
Law and shall be exercised by, under, and by virtue of the authority of the Board. All powers for 
the management, government, and control of the District and its affairs, not by law or these 
Bylaws conferred upon any other person, officer, or official are hereby reserved in the Board of 
the District to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

ARTICLE III. OFFICE 

1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. 

The principal office for the transaction of the business of the District is hereby 
fixed and located at 1100 West Shaw A venue, Fresno, California 93 711. 

2. METHOD OF CHANGING LOCATION OF OFFICE. 

If for any reason it is necessary that the location of the District office be changed 
or that a change of location of such office will better suit the convenience of the District and its 
members, the Board is hereby expressly authorized and empowered to enact a resolution by a 
majority vote to be entered upon its minutes to change the location of the District office to some 
other place or location. The District office need not be located within the District. 

ARTICLE IV. MEETINGS OF THE DISTRICT 

1. LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors shall hold regular and special meetings of the Directors at 
Raisin City Elementary School, located at 6425 West Bowles, Raisin City, California 93652. 

2. ORGANIZATION MEETING. 

At the first regular meeting after the Directors take office following the general 
election of the District, the Directors shall meet and organize as a Board, and may transact any 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 



other business of the District. At its organizational meeting, the Board shall elect the President 
and the Vice President from its members and appoint a Secretary, a Treasurer and an Assessor­
Tax Collector, who need not be members of the Board. 

3. REGULAR MEETINGS. 

The Board shall hold a regular meeting, in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown 
Act, Government Code Section 54950 et seq., on the second Tuesday of each month at the 
location designated in Article IV, Section 1, at the hour of 3 :00 p.m. At least 72 hours before a 
regular meeting, the Board or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general 
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items 
to be discussed in closed session. The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular 
meeting and shall be posted in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public. No 
action or discussion shall be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. However, 
members of the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by persons 
exercising their public testimony rights. Also, either on their own initiative or in response to 
questions posed by the public, members of the Board may ask a question for clarification, 
provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter. 

a. ITEMS NOT POSTED ON AGENDA 

Any member of the Board or the Board may also take action to direct staff to 
place a matter of business on a future agenda. The Board may take action on items of business 
not appearing on the posted agenda under any of the following conditions: (i) upon a 
determination by a majority vote of the Board that an emergency situation exists, which for 
purposes of these Bylaws shall mean any of the following: (A) work stoppage or other activity 
which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the 
members of the Board, or (B) crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or 
both, as determined by a majority of the members of the Board; (ii) upon a determination of a 2/3 
vote of the Board, or, if less than 2/3 of the members of the Board are present, a unanimous vote 
of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and the need to take 
action arose came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted as 
specified herein; or (iii) the item was posted pursuant to this Article III, Section 2 for a prior 
meeting of the Board occurring not more than five ( 5) calendar days prior to the date action is 
taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which the 
action is being taken. 

b. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide an opportunity for members of 
the public to directly address the Board on any item of interest to the public, before or during the 
Board's consideration of the item, that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. 
The agenda need not provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
any item that has already been considered by a committee composed exclusively of the Board at 
a public meeting wherein all interested members of the public were afforded an opportunity to 
address the committee on the item (before or during the committee's consideration of the item) 

{7 595/002/00566198 .DOC} 2 



unless the item has been substantially changed since the committee heard the item. Whether an 
item has been substantially changed shall be determined by the Board. 

c. ADOPTION OF REGULATIONS 

No action or discussion shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda 
unless the action is otherwise authorized by these Bylaws. The Board may adopt reasonable 
regulations to ensure that the intent of the preceding sentence is carried out including, but not 
limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on 
particular issues and for each individual speaker but the Board may not prohibit public criticism 
of the policies, procedures, programs or services of the District or of the acts or omissions of the 
Board. 

4. CHANGE OF TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR MEETINGS. 

The Board, by resolution entered upon its minutes, may change the place, date 
and/or time of the regular meeting at any time. Regular and special meetings of the Directors 
shall be held within the boundaries of the territory over which the District exercises jurisdiction 
unless exceptional circumstances exist as set forth by California Government Code § 54954(b ), 
or as otherwise may be authorized under the Brown Act. 

5. ADJOURNED MEETINGS. 

The Board, or any members of the Board if less than a quorum, may adjourn any 
regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in 
the order of adjournment. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54955.) Any act done at an adjourned meeting shall 
have the same force and effect as if done at the meeting from which it was adjourned. A notice 
specifying the time and place of the adjourned meeting together with the order of adjournment 
shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the regular, adjourned 
regular, special or adjourned special meeting was held, as well as at the District office, within 
twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment. 

6. SPECIAL MEETINGS. 

A special meeting may be called at any time by the President or the General 
Manager by delivering personally or by any other legally permissible means to each member of 
the Board in accordance with Section 54956 of the Government Code. The written notice shall 
be given personally or by any other permitted means to each Board member and to whoever has 
requested notice in writing. At such time as the District establishes a website, the notice shall 
also be posted on the District's website at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting as 
specified in the notice. The special meeting notice shall specify the time and place of the special 
meeting and the business to be transacted. No other business shall be considered a special 
meeting. The special meeting notice must be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in the 
usual agenda posting location. The written notice may be dispensed with as to any director who 
at any time prior to the time the meeting convenes files with the secretary written waiver of 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 3 



notice. The written notice may also be dispensed with as to any director who is actually present 
at the meeting at the time it convenes. 

7. CLOSED SESSIONS. 

The Board may enter into a closed session during a regular, adjourned regular, 
special or adjourned special meeting to consider matters as may lawfully be considered in such 
sessions. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) Prior to any closed session, the item(s) to be discussed 
shall be disclosed and only those matters covered in such disclosure may be considered in such 
closed session, and the Board shall make a finding regarding which individuals' participation is 
deemed essential for discussion of which closed session items. Disclosure may take the form of 
a reference to the item(s) as listed by number or letter on the agenda. Due to the fact that the 
national and state water, environmental, and political issues are so complex, the Board may find 
that the participation of the District's directors and their alternates in closed sessions of the 
Board meetings is essential in order to allow the Alternate Directors to be able to keep abreast of 
these matters so that they may vote meaningfully upon issues presented at meetings when they 
are called on to do so. After a closed session, the Board shall report publicly, orally or in writing, 
any action taken in closed session, as well as the vote or abstention of every member present as 
provided by law. Any information provided in closed session shall maintain its privileged and 
confidential nature, pursuant to the provisions included in section 54956.96 of the Government 
Code. 

8. QUORUM. 

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business 
and a vote of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting attended by a quorum shall 
determine any proposition or resolution presented. 

9. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. 

The President, or in his absence the Vice President, shall preside and conduct all 
meetings of the Board. In the absence of the President and Vice President at any meeting where a 
quorum is present, the Board shall appoint a President Pro Tempore (who shall be a Director), 
who shall preside over the meeting. Any representative abstaining from a vote shall be counted 
for purposes of determining the existence of a quorum, but shall not be deemed to be voting. 

10. MEETINGS ARE PUBLIC. 

All meetings of the Board and every committee shall be called, held, noticed and 
conducted according to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code 
Sections 54950 et seq.), except such committee meetings that are not subject to said Act. All 
meetings of the Board and every committee subject to the aforementioned Act, are open to the 
public, but the public does not have any right to vote on any matter being determined by any 
District committee. Accordingly, all District committees shall comply with the provisions of this 
Article IV, with regard to conducting their meetings. 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 4 



11. MINUTES 

The Secretary of shall prepare minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors 
and, as soon as possible after each meeting, provide each Director with a copy of the draft 
minutes 

12. COMPENSATION 

Compensation and reimbursable expenses of the Board and any committee 
members shall be set from time to time by the Board in accordance with California law and 
Article VI of these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE V. ELECTIONS 

1. GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION. 

The general district election of the District shall be held at the time provided by 
the California Elections Code. (California Elections Code Section 23500, et seq.), and any other 
applicable laws of the State of California. Such election shall be called, noticed, held and 
conducted in a manner determined by the Board which is consistent with such California 
Elections Code, the California Water District Law, and all other applicable laws of the State of 
California, and the Directors and the elective officers (if any) of the District shall be elected at 
said election. 

2. SPECIAL ELECTIONS. 

The Board by resolution may call a special election on any proposition which the 
Board desires to present or is required by law to present to the voters of the District. Such special 
election shall be called, noticed, held and conducted in a manner determined by the Board which 
is consistent with the California Elections Code, the California Water District Law, and all other 
applicable laws of the State of California. 

3. NOTICE OF ELECTIONS. 

The Board or the Fresno County Clerk shall, before any general or special district 
election is held, give notice of the time and place and purpose of the election as required by law. 
The polling place or places in all elections shall be determined by the Board and set forth in the 
notice of election, or as may be provided by the applicable laws of the State of California. 

4. QUALIFIED VOTERS. 

All persons voting at a general or special election of the District shall be qualified 
as provided by the California Elections Code, the California Water District Law and all other 
applicable laws of the State of California and shall be entitled to the number of votes as therein 
provided. (Cal. Water Code §§ 35003 & 35003.1.) When any parcel, or parcels of land lying 
within the boundaries of this District are assessed to more than one person, as shown by the next 
preceding assessment book of the District, each person whose name appears on said assessment, 

{7595/002/00566198 .DOC} 5 



book for said parcel shall be entitled to his or her pro rata share of all votes cast by the reason of 
ownership of said parcel. Every qualified voter, or his or her legal representative, may vote either 
in person or by proxy at any District election. The manner of voting either in person or by proxy 
shall he as specified in the California Elections Code, the California Water District Law, and 
these Bylaws. 

5. PROXY. 

No appointment of a proxy shall be valid, accepted, or vote allowed thereon at 
any general or special District election unless it meets all of the following requirements: 

a. It is in writing. 

b. It is executed by the person or legal representative of the person who 
under California law and these Bylaws is entitled to the votes for which the proxy is given. 

c. It is acknowledged or certified in accordance with Section 2015.5 of the 
California Code of Civil Procedure. 

d. It specifies the election at which it is to be used. An appointment of a 
proxy shall be used only at the election specified. 

e. It shall be on a form prescribed by the Fresno County Clerk meeting the 
above requirements. 

Every appointment of a proxy is revocable at the pleasure of the person executing 
it at any time before the person appointed as proxy shall have cast a ballot representing the votes 
for which the appointment was given. Before a legal representative votes at a District election, he 
shall present to the precinct board a certified copy of his authority, which shall be kept and filed 
with the returns of the election. (Cal. Water Code. §§ 35004 & 35005.) 

6. NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS. 

All Directors and any other officers to be voted upon at a general or special 
District election, for election to the offices of the District, shall first qualify for their names to be 
placed on the ballot to be voted upon for the respective office to which they seek election as set 
forth in the California Elections Code, by the California Water District Law, Article VI of these 
Bylaws, and by any other applicable laws of the State of California. 

7. RECALL ELECTIONS. 

Recall elections shall be called, held and conducted as prescribed in Division 16 
of the California Elections Code (Elections Code Section 27000, et seq.) and the California 
Water District Law. 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 6 



ARTICLE VI. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

1. QUALIFICATIONS. 

Each Director of the District must be a holder of title to land in the District or the 
legal representative of a landholder. (Cal. Water Code § 34700 .. ) If the landholder is a 
corporation, the president of the corporation or a person selected by resolution of its board of 
directors, may serve as a Director. The Directors and officers of the District must be over 
eighteen (18) years of age, and be otherwise qualified in accordance with California law. 

2. DUTIES. 

The Board and the officers and employees of the District shall perform all duties 
set forth in the California Water District Law and these Bylaws, and shall at all times comply 
with the Constitution and the laws of the State of California. 

3. OFFICERS. 

The officers of the District shall be a President, a Vice president a Secretary, 
Treasurer and an Assessor-Tax Collector. Officers other than the President and Vice President 
are not required to be Directors. One person may hold two or more offices, except that no one 
person shall hold any two or more of the offices of President, Vice President and Secretary. 

4. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS. 

The Board shall employ and appoint such other officers and employees as the 
business of the District may require. Each such officer or employee shall hold such office for 
such period, have such authority and perform such duties, and receive such salary, as provided in 
the Bylaws or as the Board may from time to time determine. 

5. TENURE OF OFFICE. 

Directors and elective officers (if any) shall hold their office for the term provided 
in the California Elections Code or the California Water District Law. (Cal. Water Code § 
34705.) The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assessor-Tax Collector and any 
other officer appointed by the Board shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed 
either with or without cause by a majority of the Directors at any time in office, at any regular or 
special meeting of the Board or, except in the case of an officer chosen by the Board, by any 
officer upon whom such power of remove may be conferred by the Board. Any Director or 
officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or to the President or to the 
Secretary of the District. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such 
notice or a later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of 
such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

Ill 

Ill 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 7 



6. TIME AND MANNER OF APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 
AND OFFICERS. 

The Board and elective officers (if any) shall be elected at the general election as 
provided at Article V., except as otherwise provided in the California Elections Code or the 
California Water District Law. The Secretary, the Treasurer and The Assessor-Tax Collector 
shall be appointed by the Board and the Board shall have the power to segregate the offices of 
Assessor and Tax Collector in any manner permitted by the California Elections Code or 
California Water District Law. 

7. VACANCIES. 

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or 
any other cause may be filled by appointment by the Board within sixty (60) days immediately 
subsequent to the effective date of such vacancy, and a notice of the vacancy shall be posted in 
three (3) more conspicuous places in the District at least fifteen (15) days before the appointment 
is made. (Cal. Water Code. § 3470; Gov. Code § 1780.) A person appointed to fill a vacancy on 
the Board shall hold office until the next district general election that is scheduled 130 or more 
days after the effective date of the vacancy, unless an election is also held on the same date for 
the purpose of electing a director to serve a full term in the same office to which the person was 
appointed, in which even the person appointed to the vacancy shall fill the balance of the 
unexpired term of his predecessor. In lieu of making an appointment to fill a vacancy on the 
Board, the remaining members of the Board may within 60 days of the vacancy call an election 
to fill the vacancy, which election shall be held on the next available election date provided by 
Chapter 1 of Division 4 of the California Elections Code that is 130 or more days after the 
vacancy occurs. In the event the Board elects not to fill a vacancy on the Board as provided by 
this Bylaw, it shall be filled in accordance with California Government Code Section 1780 or its 
successor. 

8. PRESIDENT. 

The Board shall elect one of its members as President of the District. The 
President shall be the chief executive officer of the District and shall have general supervision, 
direction, and control of the business and affairs of the District. The President shall preside at all 
meetings of the members and all meetings of the Board. The President shall have the general 
powers and duties of management usually vested in the office of President of a corporation, and 
shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the Bylaws. 

9. VICE PRESIDENT. 

The Board shall elect one of its members as Vice President of the District. In the 
absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of the 
President and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions 
upon, the President. The Vice President shall have such other powers and perform such other 
duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws. 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 8 



10. SECRETARY. 

The Secretary of the District shall be appointed by the Board. The Secretary shall 
keep a record of all proceedings had at meetings of the Board at the principal office of the 
District, or such other place as the Board may order. Such record shall include the time and 
place of holding the meetings, whether regular or special, and if special, how authorized, the 
notice thereof given, the names of those present at Directors' meetings, and the number of 
members present or represented at members' meetings, and the proceedings thereof. The 
Secretary shall file all documents pertaining to the District's affairs at the office of the District 
and the same shall be open to inspection at all times by any person interested. The Secretary 
shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and of the members of the 
District as required by California law or the Bylaws, and shall keep the seal of the District in safe 
custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may from time to 
time be prescribed and required by the Board or the Bylaws. 

11. TREASURER. 

The Treasurer shall be appointed by the Board. (Cal. Water Code § 34711.) The 
Treasurer shall receive the credit of the District and in trust for its use and benefit all monies 
belonging to the District, and shall deposit all such monies and other valuables in the name of 
and to the credit of the District with such depositories as may be · designated by the Board. The 
Treasurer shall disburse funds of the District as may be ordered by the Board and shall render to 
the President and the Directors, whenever they request it, an account of all his or her transactions 
as Treasurer and the financial condition of the District. Books of account as maintained by the 
Treasurer shall at all times be open to inspection by any Director. The Treasurer shall do and 
perform such other duties as are required of the Treasurer by the California Water District Law 
or other applicable laws of the State of California. 

12. ASSESSOR-TAX COLLECTOR. 

The Assessor-Tax Collector shall be appointed by the Board. (Cal. Water Code § 
34711.) The Assessor-Tax Collector shall in each fiscal year prepare the District assessment 
book, prepare and mail any assessments to the levied upon landowners within the District, 
submit to the Board of Supervisors a statement of all assessments levied against property in the 
District and do and perform such by the California Water District Law or other applicable laws 
of the State of California. The Assessor-Tax Collector shall render to the President and 
Directors, whenever they request it, an account of all his or her transactions as Assessor-Tax 
Collector. The Board is expressly authorized to provide for the election of the office of 
Assessor-Tax Collector ( or, if segregated, the offices of Assessors and/or Tax Collector) in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Water District Law. 

13. DEPUTIES AND EMPLOYEES. 

The Board may employ agents, officers and employees as required and prescribe 
their duties and fix their compensation. The Board may appoint deputies or assistants for the 
offices of Secretary, Treasurer and Assessor-Tax Collector in such numbers as may be necessary 
to perform the functions of said offices. The Board may consolidate the duties of any deputy or 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 9 



assistant so that such deputy or assistant may act as deputy or assistant to more than one officer 
of the District. 

14. BONDS OF OFFICERS. 

The Board may require a bond in an amount to be determined by the Board for 
any Director, officer or employee. The premium for any such bond shall be paid by the District. 

ARTICLE VII. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

1. DIRECTORS. 

Unless otherwise provided by a resolution adopted by the Board, no Director shall 
receive compensation for his or her attendance at meetings of the Board or for any other services 
rendered as a Director. Any resolution adopted by the board providing compensation to Directors 
shall not exceed the amount of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each day's attendance 
at meetings of the Board and for each day's service rendered as a Director by request of the 
Board, not exceeding a total of six ( 6) days in any calendar month, together with any expenses 
incurred in the performance of duties required or authorized by the Board. (Cal. Water Code § 
34741.) 

2. SECRETARY. 

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the Secretary of the District shall 
serve without compensation, other than to receive such allowance as may be authorized by the 
Board from time to time to cover expenses incurred by the Secretary in the performance of his or 
her duties on behalf of the District. (Cal. Water Code § 34741.) 

3. TREASURER AND ASSESSOR-I AX COLLECTOR. 

The Treasurer and Assessor-Tax Collector shall each be paid such amounts as 
may be determined by the Board for each fiscal year that they shall perform the duties of those 
offices, and if their services shall be terminated prior to the expiration of a fiscal year, their 
salaries shall be prorated to the date of termination, and such salaries shall be paid in one lump 
sum as soon as the District has sufficient funds with which to pay the same. (Cal. Water Code§ 
34741.) 

4. MISCELLANEOUS OFFICERS. 

The Board, by resolution, may compensate officers, employees and deputies other 
than those set forth above in these Bylaws, with such sums as shall be fixed by the Board. (Cal. 
Water Code§ 34741.) 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 



ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES 

1. FORMATION OF COMMITTEES. 

The Board may establish committees it deems necessary to carry out the purposes 
of the District. 

a. ROLE OF COMMITTEE 

At the time the Board establishes a committee, the Board shall specify (a) the 
purpose of the committee; (b) the duties of the committee; ( c) the authority, if any, delegated to 
the committee; ( d) whether the committee is a standing or ad hoc committee; and ( e) any other 
reporting or other information required by law. 

b. REPORTING TO BOARD 

All committees shall provide reports and recommendations to the Board. 

c. BOARD RETAINS DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY 

To the extent the Board delegates any authority to a committee under this Article 
VI, the Board shall have final discretionary authority over any decision made by such committee. 

2. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 

The Board shall appoint the members of each committee. Ad hoc committees 
shall be compromised of two Directors. All other committees shall be comprised of two 
Directors and at least one member of staff. Ad hoc committees shall not include alternates. All 
other committees may include alternates, if appointed by the Board. 

3. TIME PERIOD FOR OPERATION OF COMMITTEES 

Upon the formation of any ad hoc committee, the Board shall specify a date 
certain - no more than one-year following the formation of such committee - upon which the 
existence of such ad hoc committee shall cease without further action of the Board. The Board 
may establish similar timeframes for the operation of all other committees. 

4. TERMS 

Each committee member shall have a term of four years or less. If for any reason 
there is a member vacancy on any committee, the Board shall select a new member. At least one 
committee member shall be replaced on each committee no less than once every two years. 

5. GOVERNANCE OF COMMITTEES 

Each committee will select its own officer who will become the Chairman of the 
committee. The Board Secretary shall take minutes and prepare agendas and packets. The 
committee and District staff shall coordinate meeting schedules and work efforts to allow the 
maximum time possible for preparation and distribution of committee reports and clear and 

{7595/002/00566198 .DOC} 11 



concise recommendations. If the committee has been delegated any decision-making authority 
by the Board, each committee member shall have one vote. 

ARTICLE VIIII. FINANCES, BUDGET, EXPENSES 

1. BUDGET 

By a date set by the Board of Directors each Fiscal year, the Board of Directors 
shall adopt a budget for the District for the ensuring Fiscal year. The Fiscal Year of the District 
shall be from July 1 through June 30 of each year. 

2. INSPECTION 

All books and records are subject to disclosure under to the Public Records Act. 

3. EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS 

The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to 
enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, 
and such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances except as otherwise 
provided by these Bylaws. Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent, or 
employee shall have any power to bind the District by any contract or engagement, to pledge its 
credit, or to render it liable for any purpose or in any amount 

4. ANNUAL REPORT AND AUDIT 

The Board of Directors shall cause an annual report and annual audit to be 
prepared and made available for inspection pursuant to Article VIIII, section 2 and the Public 
Records Act after the close of the fiscal year. The minimum requirements of the audit shall be 
prescribed by the State Controller, as provided in section 26909 of the California Government 
Code. 

ARTICLE X. MISCELLANEOUS 

5. INSURANCE 

The District shall procure, carry and maintain commercial general liability 
insurance to include coverage for all operations of the District under these Bylaws, including, but 
not limited to the following: (a) premises, operations and mobile equipment liability; (b) 
completed operations and products liability; ( c) blanket contractual liability; ( d) explosion, 
collapse, and underground hazards; (e) personal injury liability; and (f) protective liability for 
impacts on the Parties' operations. The Authority shall provide the Commercial General 
Liability Insurance with limits not less than the following: (i) $3,000,000.00 on each occurrence, 
or for a combined occurrence of bodily injury and property damage; (ii) $1,000,000.00 
completed operations and products liability; and (iii) $1,000,000.00 personal and advertising 
injury. The District shall provide the policy with an endorsement for a general aggregate limit 
per project. Defense costs may not be included in said general aggregate limit. 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 12 



6. COUNSEL 

The Board of Directors may retain general or special counsel to serve at its 
pleasure to represent the District. 

ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENT OR REPEAL OF BYLAWS 

These Bylaws of the District may be repealed or amended or new Bylaws adopted 
by the assent of two-thirds (2/3) of the total vote the District, given either in writing or by ballot 
cast at a District election. The Bylaws may also be amended by four-fifths (4/5) vote of the 
Directors and approval of the Board of Supervisors of Fresno County. 

ARTICLE XII. INCURRING INDEBTEDNESS BY DISTRICT 

By resolution adopted by a majority of the Board, the District may, in any fiscal 
year, borrow money to pay its expenses and anticipated expenses for that fiscal year in the event 
the revenues received by the District to that date are insufficient to discharge such expenses as 
they mature, and to issue evidences of indebtedness for such borrowings executed by the 
President and the Secretary in the name of and on behalf of the District; provided, however, that 
the District shall not borrow any money or incur any indebtedness except by a bond issue or by 
warrants authorized as provided by California Water District Law, or as may otherwise be 
authorized by the laws of the State of California. 

ARTICLE XIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE 

Should any provision of these Bylaws be inconsistent with the laws of the State of 
California, such laws (and not these Bylaws) shall govern and these Bylaws shall be interpreted 
to be consisted with such laws. 

{7595/002/00566198.DOC} 13 



AUGUST 11, 2015 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-4 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 
RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 

APPROVING RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT BYLAWS 

RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Raisin City Water District ("District"), at a regular 
meeting duly called and held on August 11, 2015, at the meeting place of the District, Raisin City 
Elementary School, 6425 West Bowles, Raisin City, California 93652 as follows: 

WHEREAS, the District was formed and organized as a special district in the State of California 
in 1962; and 

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted Bylaws on October 3, 1995, under which the District 
has operated since that time; and 

WHEREAS, the Directors believe it is desirable for the District to amend its Bylaws to provide 
additional guidelines regarding the governance of the District, provide greater clarity, and to account for 
modifications to applicable statutes and regulations; and 

WHEREAS, District staff has prepared draft Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Raisin City 
Water District, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A," to, inter alia, provide rules of order and 
procedure for the governance of the District; and 

WHEREAS, upon their adoption, the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Raisin City Water 
District shall supersede any and all previously adopted bylaws, if any, utilized by the District; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Raisin City Water 
District hereby adopt the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Raisin City Water District, in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A," as the District's official bylaws for the purpose of providing rules of order 
and procedure for the governance of the District. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by the 
Board of Directors of the Raisin City District, at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 11th of August, 
2015, by the following vote: 

AYES: 4 

NOES: 0 

ABSENT: 1 

ABSTAIN: 0 

{7595/002/00566213.DOCX} 



ATTEST: 

President 

~-?~ 

/~ 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Raisin City Water District hereby certifies that the 
foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2015-4 adopted August 11, 2015. 

Secretary 

{7595/002/00566213.DOCX} 2 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-4 

Appendix D. MVWD Adopted Budget (FY 23-24)  



Mid-Valley Water District
2023/24 Cash Disbursements

Date
Check 

Number Payee Amount Management Legal Accounting Audit Legal Notices IRWM
Miscel-
laneous

07/15/23 Bank Charge 65.96 65.96
07/31/23 1091 Provost & Pritchard 1,164.54 1,078.77 85.77
08/15/23 Bank Charge 58.49 58.49
09/19/23 1092 KerWest Inc 230.00 230.00
09/19/23 1093 Law Offices of David E Holland 316.00 316.00
09/19/23 1094 Provost & Pritchard 7,174.50 375.00 6,256.03 543.47
09/15/23 Bank Charge 86.88 86.88
10/16/23 1095 Cuttone & Mastro 4,300.00 4,300.00
10/16/23 1096 Kings Basin Water Authority 250.00 250.00
10/16/23 1097 Provost & Pritchard 1,672.88 82.11 1,590.77
10/15/23 Bank Charge 66.53 66.53
11/15/23 Bank Charge 86.71 86.71
11/27/23 1098 Calfornia Farm Water Coalition 125.00 125.00
11/27/23 1099 Provost & Pritchard 1,522.87 179.87 1,343.00
12/07/23 1041 ACWA/JPIA 2,182.00 2,182.00
12/11/23 Check Purchase Charge 167.34 167.34
12/15/23 Bank Charge 60.14 60.14
01/17/24 1100 ACWA/JPIA 3,060.00 3,060.00
01/17/24 1101 Provost & Pritchard 1,034.31 1,034.31
01/15/24 Bank Charge 73.69 73.69
02/15/24 Bank Charge 73.30 73.30
03/20/24 1102 Provost & Pritchard 620.84 620.84

Total Budgeted Disbursements 24,391.98 636.98 1,906.77 10,332.95 4,300.00 230.00 250.00 6,735.28

Actual 2022/23 34,403 7,446 1,510 12,765 3,540 260 0 8,881
Adopted 2023/24 Budget 37,750 12,000 5,000 12,000 3,000 500 250 5,000

Percent of Adopted 2023/24 Budget 65 5 38 86 143 46 100 135

Off-Budget Disbursements
10/05/23 USBR 12,230.98 12,230.98

Total Off-Budget Disbursements 12,230.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,230.98

Total Disbursements 36,622.96 636.98 1,906.77 10,332.95 4,300.00 230.00 250.00 18,966.26

3/19/2024G:\Mid - Valley WD - 1058\DOCUMENTS\200\MVWD Budget.xlsx



Mid-Valley Water District
2023/24 Cash Receipts

Date Number Customer Amount
1st Benefit 

Assessment
2nd Benefit 
Assessment

Delinquent 
Benefit 

Assessment
Penaties and 

Fees Interest Other
08/21/23 County of Fresno 1,198.66 1,198.66
09/21/23 B & P Singh and K Sangha 3,475.58 2,245.89 20.00 1,209.69
02/05/24 County of Fresno 21,250.39 21,250.39

Total Receipts 25,924.63 21,250.39 0.00 3,444.55 20.00 1,209.69 0.00

2023/24 Bank Balance
Local Agency Investment Fund

Date Description Withdrawals Deposits Balance
07/01/23 Balance Forward 68,256.94
07/15/23 Interest Earned 535.91 68,792.85
10/13/23 Interest Earned 752.82 69,545.67
08/08/23 Transfer from General 25,000.00 94,545.67
10/04/23 Transfer to General 13,000.00 81,545.67
10/30/23 Transfer to General 5,000.00 76,545.67
12/08/23 Transfer to General 5,000.00 71,545.67
01/24/24 Transfer to General 5,000.00 66,545.67
01/12/24 Interest Earned 775.90 67,321.57

Interest Earned 67,321.57
Transfer to General 67,321.57
Transfer from General 67,321.57

06/30/23 Ending Balance 67,321.57

General Checking Account

Date Description Withdrawals Deposits Balance
07/01/23 Balance Forward 33,033.25

Receipts 25,924.63 58,957.88
Transfers from LAIF 28,000.00 86,957.88
Transfers to LAIF 25,000.00 61,957.88
Disbursements 36,622.96 25,334.92

06/30/24 Ending Balance 25,334.92

3/19/2024G:\Mid - Valley WD - 1058\DOCUMENTS\200\MVWD Budget.xlsx



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Board of Directors and Administration     1 

Independent Auditor’s Report    2-3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 (Required Supplementary Information)    4-6 

Basic Financial Statements: 

  Statement of Net Position     7 

  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position       8 

  Statement of Cash Flows     9 

Notes to Financial Statements 10-13 



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Board of Directors 

Ariel Namvar President  

Nadav Ichaki Vice President/Secretary  

Jay Gill Treasurer  

Farokh Saadat Assessor-Collector  

Fara Raban Director  

Administration 

Randy Hopkins Manager – Engineer  

Rick Besecker Assistant Assessor-Collector & Treasurer  

David Holland Attorney  



cuTTone & masTro 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors 
Mid-Valley Water District 
Clovis, California 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying statements of Mid-Valley Water District (the district) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia l respects, the financial 
position of the Mid-Valley Water District, as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibi lities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Mid­
Valley Water District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethica l 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Mid-Valley Water District's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia l statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with genera lly accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentiona l omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. M isstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantia l likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

phone 559-261-4300 

7543 North Ingram, Suite 102 
Fresno, California 93711 

fax 559-261-4301 



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Mid-Valley Water District District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate that 
raise substantial doubt about the Mid-Valley Water District District's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

September 28, 2023 



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

4 

As management of the Mid-Valley Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the year 
ended June 30, 2023.  Please read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow 
this section. 

Financial Highlights 
 The District’s total net position increased $1,941 or 1.72% over the course of the year 

operations. 
 The District’s operating revenue was $36,830 for the year ended June 30, 2023.  Operating 

expenses for the year ended June 30, 2023 were $36,640. 
 The District had no capital assets for June 30, 2023. 
 The District had no long-term debt for June 30, 2023. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual financial report includes this management’s discussion and analysis, the independent auditor’s 
report, the basic financial statements of the District and selected additional information.  The financial 
statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the financial 
statements. 

Required Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the District report information of the District using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short- and long-term financial 
information about its activities.  The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s assets and 
liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and 
the obligations to District creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital 
structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. 

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position.  This statement can be used to determine whether the District has 
successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees and other charges, its profitability, and its credit 
worthiness. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows.  This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, 
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is “Is the District, as a whole, 
better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District’s activities in a 
way that will help answer this question.  These two statements report the net position of the District and 
the changes in them.  One can think of the District’s net position—the difference between assets and 
liabilities—as one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases 
in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, 
population growth, and new or changed government legislation. 



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 

5 

Net Position 
A comparison of the Statement of Net Position can determine the change in the components of financial 
position (the assets and liabilities) of the District from year-end to year-end.  This comparison is presented 
in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 

The table shows that the District’s net position increased $1,941 or 1.72% for the year ended June 30, 
2023.  Factors contributing to this change include: 

 Current liabilities decreasing by $2,024, as a result of utilizing less of the attorney services. 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
A comparison of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 will explain the changes in financial position that resulted from the operating 
activities during that period.  This comparison is presented in the following table: 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

Dollar Percentage

2023 2022 Change Change

Current Assets 115,981$ 116,064$ (83)$          -0.07%

Capital Assets - - - -

Total Assets 115,981 116,064 (83) -0.07%

Current Liabilities 1,165 3,189 (2,024) -63.47%

Long Term Debt - - - -

Total Liabilities 1,165 3,189 (2,024) -63.47%

Total Net Position 114,816$ 112,875$ 1,941$     1.72%

Dollar Percentage

2023 2022 Change Change

Operating Revenues 36,830$   36,988$   (158)$       -0.43%

Operating Expenses 36,640 29,431 7,209 24.49%

Operating Income (Loss) 190 7,557 (7,367) -97.49%

Non-Operating Revenues 1,751 358 1,393 389.11%

Change In Net Position 1,941 7,915 (5,974) -75.48%

Net Position - Beginning of Year 112,875 104,960 7,915 7.54%

Net Position - End of Year 114,816$ 112,875$ 1,941$     1.72%



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 

6 

The table shows that the District’s net position increase was $1,941 or 1.72% for the year ended June 
30, 2023.  Factors contributing to this change include: 

 Total revenue did not differ much from the prior year.  Revenue for the year ended June 30, 
2023 was $36,830.  Expenses increased compared to prior year by $7,209 or 24.49%.   

Budgetary Highlights 
The District adopts an annual budget each year to project the costs for operations, capital, and debt 
service for the coming year.  The budget includes these projected expenses and the means of financing 
them.  Management throughout the year analyzes the District’s budget; however, it is not reported on, 
nor shown in the financial statements section of this annual report. 

At June 30, 2023 an actual to budget comparison is presented in the following summarized table: 

Actual vs. Budget Comparison 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Capital Assets
The District has no capital assets. 

Debt Service Requirements
The District has no long-term debt. 

Contacting the District’s Management 
This annual financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview 

of the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need 

additional financial information, contact Mid-Valley Water District, 455 W. Fir Avenue, Clovis, California 

93611. 

Actual Budget Difference Percentage

Total Expenses 36,640$    37,750$    (1,110)$     -2.94%



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
7 

Assets

Current Assets

Cash 101,290$ 

Assessments Receivable 14,155

Accured Interest Receivable 536

Total Current Assets 115,981

Total Assets 115,981

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 1,165

Total Liabilities 1,165

Net Position

Unrestricted 114,816

Total Net Position 114,816$



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 

Operating Revenues

Assessments 36,830$  

Total Operating Revenues 36,830

Operating Expenses

Administration 18,502

Legal and Accounting 17,888

Sustainable Groundwater Management 250

Total Operating Expenses 36,640

Operating Income 190

Nonoperating Revenues

Interest Income 1,751

Total Nonoperating Revenues 1,751

Change In Net Position 1,941

Net Position at Beginning of Year 112,875

Net Position at End of Year 114,816$



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
9 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received From Customers 35,624$   

Cash Paid to Suppliers (38,664)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (3,040)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received From Interest Earned 1,360

Net Change in Cash (1,680)

Cash at Beginning of Year 102,970

Cash at End of Year 101,290$

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows

  from Operating Activities:

Operating Income 190$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income

  to net cash provided by operating activities:

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

   Assessments Receivable (1,206)

   Accounts Payable (2,024)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (3,040)$   



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

10

(1) Description of Entity 

(a) Description of Operations 

Mid-Valley Water District (the District) was formed September 11, 1984 as a special district in the 
State of California and is governed by a five-person Board of Directors.  The District was formed to 
obtain a surface water supply for use by landowners in the District.  In 1987, approval was granted to 
obtain the right of way for the acquisition and construction of canals to be utilized by the District. 

(b) Reporting Entity 

District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity by 
applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  The District concluded that there are no potential component units which should be 
included in the reporting entity. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements of the Mid-Valley Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as applied to 
government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard 
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more 
significant of the government’s policies are described below. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and reflect transactions on behalf of the 
District, the reporting entity.  The District accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal 
operations of the District.  Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services.  Nonoperating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and 
investing type of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

(b) Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents.  It is the policy of the District to invest only in banks or savings and 
loans and the California Local Agency Investment Fund. 



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued) 

11

(c) Accounts Receivable 

Uncollectible accounts included in accounts receivable are considered to be immaterial.  Therefore, no 
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established.  For those customers that do become 
uncollectible, liens can be placed on property for future collection.  There are $12,949 of receivables 
that are considered delinquent, however the properties have liens for the unpaid assessments and the 
District believes the assessments will be collected. 

(d) Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources.  The District reports three categories of net position as follows: 

a. Net investment in capital assets—Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings (if any) that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  The District did not have 
a net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2023. 

b. Restricted net position—Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   The District did not have a 
restricted net position as of June 30, 2023. 

c. Unrestricted net position—All remaining net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “net invested in capital assets”. 

(e) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following: 

Cash In Bank - Bank of America 33,033$   

Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund 68,257

Total Cash 101,290$



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued) 

12

Fair Value Measurements 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels.  The fair value hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) 
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2:     Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs – other than quoted prices included within Level 1 
that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3:     Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  
This account is considered Level 2. 

Authorized Deposits and Investments 

The District’s investment policy authorizes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF).  The District’s investment policy does not contain specific provisions intended to limit its exposure 
to interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level:

State of California - LAIF 68,257$        -$                   68,257$        -$                   



MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
(Continued) 

13

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates.  The District does not have a formal investment policy that would 
further limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing rates 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization; however, the LAIF is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District’s investment in a 
single issuer of securities.  When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration presents a 
heightened risk of potential loss.  The District’s deposit portfolio with governmental agencies, is LAIF at 
67.4% as of June 30, 2023, of the District’s total depository and investment portfolio.  The District does not 
have a formal investment policy that would further limit exposure to concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk 
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker dealer) to a transaction, a government will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the 
following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits 
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.  The 
District did not have cash with financial institutions that exceeded federal depository insurance limits as of 
June 30, 2023. 

(4) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2023, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no adjustments are necessary to the 
amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements. 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-5 

Appendix E. MVWD Bylaws  



Recording Requested By: 
Mid-Valley Water District 

When Recorded Return To: 

Gary W. Sawyers, Esq. 
Bolen, Fransen, Boostrom & Sawyers 
1322 East Shaw Avenue, Suite 430 
Fresno, CA 93710 

NO RECORDING OR FILING FEE REQUIRED 
(GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 6103 AND 27383 ) 

(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY) 

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 

We, the undersigned, certify that we are all of the Directors 
and the Secretary of the Mid-Valley Water District, a California 
water district, and that the Amended and Restated Bylaws of 
Mid-Valley Water District, a true and correct copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and consisting of 12 pages, are the 
Bylaws of this District, as adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the District at a meeting duly held on January 28, 199t~ The 
resolution of the Board of Directors formally adopting the Amended 
and Restated Bylaws of Mid-Valley Water District is attached to 
the Bylaws. The resolution of the Fresno County Board of 
Supervisors approving the Bylaws ched h to as Exhibit B. 

DATED: 

Silveno Botelho, Director 

Lar{,7l,8ir~ctor 

u Couto, Director 

~ ~ 
Silveno Botelho, Secretary 

-1-
a005/51453. 001/CertAdopt 

/0/ 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

couNTY OF F,e~no 
) 
)SS. 
) 

On Q j cict \95 , before me, l..o~E. ~(\'<'I 'a\-:€¥~, 
personally appeared Y"\01('(\o...x\ C\a..,K, , 
persoi:i.a.lly knmm t.o me ( or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence) to be the person()icO whose name():::i is/-ftre. 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
hefehe/~he¥ executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity( ies), and that by his/her/th1ai1= signature DK) on the 
instrument the person~, or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Ann Stephe 
ueuc -CAUFORN 
SNOCOUNTY 
Expires Aug. 8, 1995 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF F,esVIO 

) 
)SS. 
) 

On ~Qcl./95" , before me, Nlui."<>£ Ann '51::ef\:ius , 
personally pp'eared -:Seuco,e.."";:) Cou±c , 
personally kneWR to mQ (or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence) to be the person()() whose name()() is~ 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he,lshc/t::hey executed the same in hie:/hor/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(~ on the 
instrument the person(>(), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person~ acted, executed the instrument-. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

OFFICIAL SEAL 
M'l-~,~ .... "~.,U~,.._~~-;\ Louise Ann Stephens 

NOTARY PUBLIC· CALIFORNIA 
\aH~.a-:~ FRESNO COUNTY 

My Comm. Expires Aug. 8, 15195 

a00S/51453 .001/CertAdopt 

-2-



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF F,e"::>V'1 o 

) 
)SS. 
) 

On Q.~olcl.k 9s , before me, l.ow..$.s Ann stey\-iew,.,~ 
personally ap ea ed h p...r-r-~ Su..\\i\fAO , 
pe:rsenall:y known to nre (or paved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence) to be the person()iO_ whose name()rj' is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
hefshe/they executed the same in his7'her/dielr authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signaturef:¢) on the 
instrument the person~, or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(r1 acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
)SS. 

COUNTY OF _______ ) 

On ------------personally appeared 
, before me, ----------' 

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

-3-
a005/51453.001 /CertAdopt 



'SUBSCRIBING-WITNESS CE ... .ilFICATE ("WITNESS JURAT") No. 5908 

State of CAt--1 ,&:-o1e.,-1// A 

County of Fk~/J o 

On this the __ 2_1_sr __ day of --~-w.-~_c_# ___ 19 95 , before me, the undersigned 

Notary Public, personally appeared_~_',4_,A,t_~_:s __ ,e_. __ A_~_o_v_e:,_s_r _________ _ 
NAME OF SUBSCRIBING WITNESS 

~ personally known to me - OR D proved to ms on the oath/affirmation of 
_______________________ , who is personally known to me, 

NAME OF PERSON (CREDIBLE WITNESS) WHO IDENTIFIES SUBSCRIBING WITNESS 

}ttoooooooaootf 

.... .DII E.11151111 i, ~ Ollal lG.13101 < 
:> -...a:-CMRIIM< 
Q. ... ea,, lJ -Cllla.---14.1911-~v O O O O O O C Q C el 

to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the within instrument as a witness thereto, who, 
being by me duly sworn, deposes and says that 

IIE (hetsae) was present and saw 

NAME OF ABSENT PRINCIPAL SIGNER 

the same person described in and whose name 
is subscribed to the within and annexed 
instrument as a party thereto, execute the 
same, and that said affiant subscribed 

Al/ s (his/-eer) name to the within 
instrument as a witness at the request of 

NAME OF PRINCIPAL SIGNER (AGAIN) 

z;;z{f~ 
----------•OPTIONAL----------• 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER (PRINCIPAL) 

0 INDIVIDUAL 

0 CORPORATE OFFICER 

TITLE(S) 

0 PARTNER(S) 

0 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 

0 TRUSTEE(S) 

0 LIMITED 

□ GENERAL 

0 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
0 OTHER: __________ _ 

ABSENT SIGNER (PRINCIPAL) IS REPRESENTING: 
NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY\IES) 

DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 

NUMBER OF PAGES 

DATE OF DOCUMENT 

SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 

©1993 NATIONAL NOTARY ASSOCIATION• 8236 Remmel Ave., P.O. Box 7184 • Canoga Park, CA 91309-7184 



EXHIBIT A 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

BYLAWS OF 

MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

ARTICLE I. DISTRICT POWERS 

All District powers shall be those established by the 
California Water District Law and shall be exercised by, under, 
and by virtue of the authority of the Board of Directors. All 
powers for the management, government and control of the District 
and its affairs, not by law or these Bylaws conferred upon any 
other person, officer, or official are hereby reserved in the 
Board of Directors of the District to the maximum extent permitted 
by law. 

ARTICLE II. OFFICE 

1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. 

The principal office for the transaction of the business 
of the District is hereby fixed and located at 286 West Cromwell, 
Fresno, California. 

2. METHOD OF CHANGING LOCATION OF OFFICE. 

If for any reason it is necessary that the location of 
the District office be changed or that a change of location of 
such office will better suit the convenience of the District and 
its members, the Board of Directors is hereby expressly authorized 
and empowered to enact a resolution by a majority vote to be 
entered upon its minutes to change the location of the District 
office to some other place or location within the County of 
Fresno. 

ARTICLE III. MEETINGS 

1. ORGANIZATION MEETING. 

At the first regular meeting after the Directors take 
office following the general election of the District, the 
Directors shall meet and organize as a Board, and may transact any 
other business of the District. At its organizational meeting, 
the Board shall elect the President and the Vice President from 
its members and appoint a Secretary, a Treasurer and an 
Assessor-Tax Collector, who need not be members of the Board of 
Directors. 

-1-
a005/51453.00l/AmdBy1ws 111293 



2. REGULAR MEETINGS. 

The Board shall hold a regular meeting on the third 
Thursday of each month at the District office at the hour of 
10:00 a.m. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Board 
or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general 
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed 
at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session. 
The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular 
meeting and shall be posted in a location that is freely 
accessible to members of the public. No action or discussion 
shall be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 
However, members of the Board may briefly respond to statements 
made or questions posed by persons exercising their public 
testimony rights. Also, either on their own initiative or in 
response to questions posed by the public, members of a 
legislative body may ask a question for clarification, provide a 
reference to staff or other resources for factual information or 
request staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting 
concerning any matter. A member of the Board or the Board may 
also take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on 
a future agenda. The Board may take action on items of business 
not appearing on the posted agenda under any of the following 
conditions: (i) upon a determination by a majority vote of the 
Board that an emergency situation exists, which for purposes of 
these Bylaws shall mean any of the following (a) work stoppage or 
other activity which severely impairs public health, safety, or 
bo~h, as determined by a majority of the members of the Board, or 
(b) crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, 
safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of the 
Board; (ii) upon a determination of a 2/3 vote of the Board, or, 
if less than 2/3 of the members of the Board are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to 
take immediate action and the need to take action came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being 
posted as specified herein; or (iii) the item was posted pursuant 
to this Article III, Section 2 for a prior meeting of the Board 
occurring not more than five (5) calendar days prior to the date 
action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was 
continued to the meeting at which the action is being taken. 
Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide an opportunity for 
members of the public to directly address the Board on any item of 
interest to the public, before or during the Board's consideration 
of the item, that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of 
the Board. The agenda need not provide an opportunity for members 
of the public to address the Board on any item that has already 
been considered by a committee composed exclusively of the Board 
at a public meeting wherein all interested members of the public 
were afforded an opportunity to address the committee on the item 

· (before or during the committee's consideration of the item) 
unless the item has been substantially changed since the committee 
heard the item. Whether an item has been.substantially changed 
shall be determined by the Board. No action or discussion shall 
be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action 

-2-
a005/51453.001/Arnd8ylws 111293 



is otherwise authorized by these Bylaws. The Board may adopt 
reasonable regulations to ensure that the intent of the preceding 
sentence is carried out including, but not limited to, regulations 
limiting the total amount of time allocated for public testimony 
on particular issues and for each individual speaker but the Board 
may not prohibit public criticism of the policies, procedures, 
programs or services of the District or of the acts or omissions 
of the Board. 

3. CHANGE OF TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR MEETINGS. 

The Board, by resolution entered upon its minutes, may 
change the place, date and/or time of the regular meeting at any 
time. Unless otherwise permitted by law, every meeting shall take 
place within the territorial boundaries of the District. 

4. ADJOURNED MEETINGS. 

The Board, or any members of the Board if less than a 
quorum, may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or 
adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the 
order of adjournment. Any act done at an adjourned meeting shall 
have the same force and effect as if done at the meeting from 
which it was adjourned. A notice specifying the time and place of 
the adjourned meeting together with the order of adjournment shall 
be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the 
regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting 
was held, as well as at the District office, within twenty-four 
(24) hours after the time of adjournment. 

5. SPECIAL MEETINGS. 

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time 
by the President or by three (3) members of the Board by 
delivering personally or by mail written notice to each member of 
the Board. The notice shall be given at least five (5) days 
before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice. Notice 
shall be given personally or by mail to each local newspaper of 
general circulation, radio or television station requesting notice 
in writing and shall be received at least 24 hours before the time 
of the meeting as specified in the notice. The call and notice 
shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the 
business to be transacted, and no other business shall be 
considered at such special meeting. Unless otherwise permitted by 
law, every special meeting shall be held within the territorial 
boundaries of the District. The Board or its designee shall post 
an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of 
business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including 
items to be discussed in closed session. The agenda shall be 
posted in a location that is freely accessible to members of the 
public. The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of 
the public to directly address the Board on any item _of at which 
action is proposed to be taken prior to action on the item. The . 
Board may adopt reasonable regulations to ensure that the intent 

-3 -
a005/51453.001/Amd8ylws 111293 



of the preceding sentence is carried out including, but not 
limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time 
allocated for public testimony on particular issues and for each 
individual speaker. The Board shall not prohibit public criticism 
of the policies, procedures, programs or services of the District 
or of the acts or omissions of the Board. The written notice may 
be dispensed with as to any member of the Board who, prior to the 
time the meeting convenes, files with the Secretary a written 
waiver of notice or as to any member who is actually present at 
the meeting at the time it convenes. The waiver may be given by 
telegram. The call and notice of the special meeting shall be 
posted at least 24 hours prior to the special meeting in a 
location that is freely accessible to members of the public, which 
may be the District office. 

6. CLOSED SESSIONS. 

The Board may enter into a closed session during a 
regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting 
to consider such matters as may lawfully be considered in such 
sessions. Prior to any closed session, the item(s) to be 
discussed shall be disclosed and only those matters covered in 
such disclosure may be considered in such closed session. 
Disclosure may take the form of a reference to the item(s) as 
listed by number or letter on the agenda. After any closed 
session, the Board shall report publically, orally or in writing, 
any action taken in closed session, as well as the vote or 
abstention of every member_present in the manner provided by law. 

7 . QUORUM. 

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for 
the transaction of business and a vote of a majority of the 
Directors present at any meeting attended by a quorum shall 
determine any proposition or resolution presented. 

8. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. 

The President, or in his absence the Vice President, 
shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In the absence of the 
President and Vice President at any meeting where a quorum is 
present, the Board shall appoint a President Pro Tern (who shall be 
a Director ) , who shall preside at the meeting. 

ARTICLE IV. ELECTIONS 

1 . GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION. 

The general district election of the District shall be 
held at the time provided by the Uniform District Election Law. 
(California Elections Code Section 23500, et seq.), and any other 
applicable laws of the State of California. Such election shall 
be called, noticed, held and conducted in a manner determined by 
the Board of Directors which is consistent with such Uniform 

-4-
a00S/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



District Election Law, the California Water District Law, and all 
other applicable laws of the State of California, and the 
Directors and the elective officers (if any) of the District shall 
be elected at said election. 

2. SPECIAL ELECTIONS. 

The Board of Directors by resolution may call a special 
election on any proposition which the Board desires to present or 
is required by law to present to the voters of the District. Such 
special election shall be called, noticed, held and conducted in a 
manner determined by the Board of Directors which is consistent 
with the California Water District Law, the California Elections 
Code and all other applicable laws of the State of California. 

3. NOTICE OF ELECTIONS. 

The Board of Directors or the Fresno County Clerk shall, 
before any general or special district election is held, give 
notice of the time and place and purpose of the election as 
required by law. The polling place or places in all elections 
shall be determined by the Board of Directors and set forth in the 
notice of election, or as may be provided by the applicable laws 
of the State of California. 

4 . QUALIFIED VOTERS. 

All persons voting at a general or special election of 
the District shall be qualified as provided by the Uniform 
District Election Law, California Water District Law and all other 
applicable laws of the State of California and shall be entitled 
to the number of votes as therein provided. When any parcel or 
parcels of land lying within the boundaries of this District are 
assessed to more than one person, as shown by the next preceding 
assessment book of the District, each person whose name appears on 
said assessment book for said parcel shall be entitled to his or 
her pro rata share of all votes cast by the reason of ownership of 
said parcel. Every qualified voter, or his or her legal 
representative, may vote either in person or by proxy at any 
District election. The manner of voting either in person or by 
proxy shall be as specified in the Uniform District Election Law, 
the California Water District Law, and these Bylaws. 

5. PROXY. 

No appointment of a proxy shall be valid, accepted, or 
vote allowed thereon at any special or general District election 
unless it meets all of the following requirements: 

a. It is in writing. 

b. It is executed by the person or legal 
representative of the person who under California law and these 
Bylaws is entitled to the votes for which the proxy is given. 

-5-
a00S/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



c. It is acknowledged or certified in accordance with 
Section 2015.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. 

d. It specifies the election at which it is to be 
used. An appointment of a proxy shall be used only at the 
election specified. 

e. It shall be on a form as specified by the Fresno 
County Clerk meeting the above requirements. Every appointment of 
a proxy is revocable at the pleasure of the person executing it at 
any time before the person appointed as proxy shall have cast a 
ballot representing the votes for which the appointment was given. 
Before a legal representative votes at a District election, he 
shall present ,to the precinct board a certified copy of his 
authority, which shall be kept and filed with the returns of the 
election. 

6. NOMINATION OF OFFICERS. 

All Directors and any other officers to be voted upon at 
a general or special District election, for election to the 
offices of the District, shall first qualify for their names to be 
placed on the ballot to be voted upon for the respective office to 
which they seek election as set forth in the Uniform District 
Election Law, by the California Water District Law, and by any 
other applicable laws of the State of California. 

7. RECALL ELECTIONS. 

Recall elections shall be called, held and conducted as 
prescribed in Division 16 of the California Elections Code 
(Elections Code Section 27000, et seq.) and the California Water 
District Law. 

ARTICLE V. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

1 . QUALIFICATIONS. 

Each Director of the District must be a holder of title 
to land in the District or the legal representative of a 
landholder. If the landholder is a corporation, the president of 
the corporation or the person selected by resolution of its board 
of directors, may serve as a Director. The Directors and officers 
of the District must be over eighteen (18) years of age, and be 
otherwise qualified in accordance with California law. 

2. DUTIES. 

The Board of Directors and the officers and employees of 
the District shall perform all duties set forth in the California 
Water District Law and these Bylaws, and shall at all times comply 
with the Constitution and the laws of the State of California. 

-6-
a00S/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



3. OFFICERS. 

The officers of the District shall be a President, a 
Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and an Assessor-Tax 
Collector. Officers other than the President and Vice President 
are not required to be Directors. One person may hold two or more 
offices, except that no one person shall hold any two or more of 
the offices of President, Vice President and Secretary. 

4. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS. 

The Board of Directors shall employ and appoint such 
other officers and employees as the business of the District may 
require. Each such officer or employee shall hold such office for 
such period, have such authority and perform such duties, and 
receive such salary, as provided in the Bylaws or as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time determine. 

5. TENURE OF OFFICE. 

Directors and elective officers (if any) shall hold 
their office for the term provided in the California Water 
District Law or the Uniform District Election Law. The President, 
Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assessor-Tax Collector and 
any other officer appointed by the Board of Directors shall serve 
at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and may be removed 
either with or without cause by a majority of the Directors at any 
time in office, at any regular or special meeting of the Board or, 
except in case of an officer chosen by the Board of Directors, by 
any officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by 
the Board of Directors. Any Director or officer may resign at any 
time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or to the 
President or to the Secretary of the District. Any such 
resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such 
notice or a later time specified therein and, unless otherwise 
specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be 
necessary to make it effective. 

6 . TIME AND MANNER OF APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 
AND OFFICERS. 

The Board of Directors and elective officers (if any) 
shall be elected at the general election as herein provided, 
except as otherwise provided in the California Water District Law 
or the Uniform District Election Law. The Secretary, the 
Treasurer and the Assessor-Tax Collector shall be appointed by the 
Board of Directors and the Board of Directors shall have the power 
to segregate the offices of Assessor and Tax Collector in any 
manner permitted by the Uniform District Election Law or 
California Water District Law. 

-7-
a005/51453.00l/AmcSylws 111293 



7. VACANCY. 

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, 
removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled by 
appointment by the Board of Directors. Any vacancy on the Board 
of Directors shall be filled by appointment of the Board of 
Directors within sixty (60) days immediately subsequent to the 
effective date of such vacancy, and a notice of the vacancy shall 
be posted in three (3) or more conspicuous places in the District 
at least fifteen (15) days before the appointment is made. A 
person appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors shall 
hold office until the next district general election that is 
scheduled 130 or more days after the effective date of the 
vacancy, unless an election is also held on the same date for the 
purpose of electing a director to serve a full term in the same 
office to which the person was appointed, in which event the 
person appointed to the vacancy shall fill the balance of the 
unexpired term of his predecessor. In lieu of making an 
appointment to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors, the 
remaining members of the Board of Directors may within 60 days of 
the vacancy call an election to fill the vacancy, which election 
shall be held on the next available election date provided by 
Chapter 1 of Division 4 of the California Elections Code that is 
130 or more days after the vacancy occurs. In the event a vacancy 
on the Board of Directors is not filled as provided by this Bylaw, 
it shall be filled in accordance with California Government Code 
Section 1780 or its successor. 

8. PRESIDENT. 

The Board of .Directors shall elect one of its members as 
President of the District. The President shall be the chief 
executive officer of the District and shall, subject to the 
control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, 
direction and control of the business and affairs of the District. 
He shall preside at all meetings of the members and all meetings 
of the Board of Directors. He shall be an ex-officio member of 
all standing committees, including the executive committee, if 
any, and shall have the general powers and duties of management 
usually vested in the office of President of a corporation, and 
shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by 
the Board of Directors or the Bylaws. 

9. VICE PRESIDENT. 

The Board of Directors shall elect one of its members as 
Vice President of the District. In the absence or disability of 
the President, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of 
the President and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and 
be subject to all the restrictions upon, the President. The Vice 
President shall have such other powers and perform such other 
duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board of 
Directors or these Bylaws .. 

-8-
aOOS/51453 .00l/,\Jlld8ylws 111293 



10. SECRETARY. 

The Secretary of the District shall be appointed by the 
Board of Directors. The Secretary shall keep a record of all 
proceedings had at meetings of the Board of Directors at the 
principal office of the District, or such other place as the Board 
of Directors may order. Such record shall include the time and 
place of holding the meetings, whether regular or special, and if 
special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of 
those present at Directors' meetings, and the number of members 
present or represented at members' meetings, and the proceedings 
thereof. The Secretary shall file all documents pertaining to the 
District's affairs at the office of the District and the same 
shall be open to inspection at all times by any person interested. 
The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all 
meetings of the Board of Directors and of the members of the 
District as required by California law or the Bylaws, ands/he 
shall keep the seal of the District in safe custody and shall have 
such other powers and perform such other duties as may from time 
to time be prescribed and required by the Board of Directors or 
the Bylaws. 

11. TREASURER. 

The Treasurer shall be appointed by the Board of 
Directors. The Treasurer shall receive to the credit of the 
District and in trust for its use and benefit all monies belonging 
to the District, and shall deposit all such monies and other 
valuables in the name of and to the credit of the District with 
such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. 
The Treasurer shall disburse funds of the District as may be 
ordered by the Board of Directors and shall render to the 
President and the Directors, whenever they request it, an account 
of all his or her transactions as Treasurer and the financial 
condition of the District. Books of account as maintained by the 
Treasurer shall at all times be open to inspection by any 
Director. The Treasurer shall do and perform such other duties as 
are required of the Treasurer by the California Water District Law 
or other applicable laws of the State of California. 

12. ASSESSOR-TAX COLLECTOR. 

The Assessor-Tax Collector shall be appointed by the 
Board of Directors. The Assessor-Tax Collector shall in each 
fiscal year prepare the District assessment book, prepare and mail 
any assessments to be levied upon landowners within the District, 
submit to the Board of Supervisors a statement of all assessments 
levied against property in the District and do and perform such 
other duties as are required by the Assessor and/or Tax Collector 
by the California Water District Law or other applicable laws of 
the State of California. The Assessor-Tax Collector shall ren~er 
to the President and Directors, whenever they request it, an 
account of all his or her transactions as Assessor-Tax Collector. 
The Board of Directors is expressly authorized to provide for the 

-9-
a00S/51453.001/AlndBylws 111293 



election of the office of Assessor-Tax Collector (or, if 
segregated, the offices of Assessor and/or Tax Collector) in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Water District 
Law. 

13. DEPUTIES AND EMPLOYEES. 

The Board of Directors may employ agents, officers and 
employees as required and prescribe their duties and fix their 
compensation. The Board of Directors may appoint deputies or 
assistants for the offices of Secretary, Treasurer and 
Assessor-Tax Collector in such numbers as may be necessary to 
perform the functions of said offices. The Board of Directors may 
consolidate the duties of any deputy or assistant so that such 
deputy or assistant may act as deputy or assistant to more than 
one officer of the District. 

14. BONDS OF OFFICERS. 

The Board of Directors may require a bond in an amount 
to be determined by the Board of Directors for any Director, 
officer or employee. The premium for any such bond shall be paid 
by the District. 

ARTICLE VI. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

1. DIRECTORS. 

Unless otherwise provided by a resolution adopted by the 
Board of Directors, no Director shall receive compensation for his 
or her attendance at meetings of the Board or for any other 
services rendered as a Director. Any resolution adopted by the 
board providing compensation to Directors shall not exceed the 
amount of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each day's 
attendance at meetings of the Board and for each day's service 
rendered as a Director by request of the Board, not exceeding a 
total of six (6) days in any calendar month, together with any 
expenses incurred in the performance of duties required or 
authorized by the Board. 

2. SECRETARY. 

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the Secretary 
of the District shall serve without compensation, other than to 
receive such allowance as may be authorized by the Board of 
Directors from time to time to cover expenses incurred by the 
Secretary in the performance of his or her duties on behalf of the 
District. 

3. TREASURER AND ASSESSOR-TAX COLLECTOR. 

The Treasurer and Assessor-Tax Collector shall each be 
paid such amounts as may be determined by the Board of Directors 
for each fiscal year that they shall perform the duties of those 

-10-
a0OS/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



offices, and if their services shall be terminated prior to the 
expiration of a fiscal year, their salaries shall be prorated to 
the date of termination, and such salaries shall be paid in one 
lump sum as soon as the District has sufficient funds with which 
to pay the same. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS OFFICERS. 

The Board of Directors, by resolution, may compensate 
officers, employees and deputies other than those set forth above 
in these Bylaws, with such sums as shall be fixed by the Board of 
Directors. 

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT OR REPEAL OF BYLAWS 

The Bylaws of the District may be repealed or amended or new 
Bylaws adopted by the assent of two-thirds (2/3) of the total vote 
of the District, given either in writing or by ballot cast at a 
District election. The Bylaws may also be amended by four-fifths 
(4/5) vote of the Directors and approval of the Board of 
Supervisors of Fresno County. 

ARTICLE VIII. INCURRING INDEBTEDNESS BY DISTRICT 

By resolution adopted by a majority of the Board of 
Directors, the District may, in any fiscal year, borrow money to 
pay its expenses and anticipated expenses for that fiscal year in 
the event the revenues received by the District to that date are 
insufficient to di~charge such expenses as they mature, and to 
issue evidences of indebtedness for such borrowings executed by 
the President and the Secretary in the name of and on behalf of 
the District; provided, however, that the District shall not 
borrow any money or incur any indebtedness except by a bond issue 
or by warrants authorized as provided by California Water District 
Law, or as may otherwise be authorized by the laws of the State of 
California. 

ARTICLE IX. PENALTIES 

Any person governed by these Bylaws who shall violate the 
same shall be subject to suitable penalties to be levied and 

-11-
a005/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



assessed by the Board of Directors not to exceed Two Hundred 
Dollars ($200.00) for any one offense. 

RESOLVED: 

The Board of Directors of Mid-Valley Water District hereby 
amends the bylaws of the District to read in their entirety as set 
forth in the within Amended and Restated Bylaws for the government 
and control of the affairs of the District. 

Dated this 28th day of January 

~~ 
Silveno Botelho 

~ ~ LarY&iifivan 

Jim Cou \o 

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION 

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the presently elected 
and acting Secretary of the Mid-Valley Water District, a 
California Water District, and the above Bylaws, consisting of 12 
pages, are the Bylaws of this District as adopted by the Board of 
Directors at a meeting duly held on January 28th , 19 94 . 

Dated: _J_a_n_u_a_r...._y_2_8_th ___ , 19 9 4 

Silveno Botelho, Secretary 

-12-
a0OS/51453.001/AmdBylws 111293 



File 111 2136 
March 8, 1994 

EXHIBIT B 

~=~._.~1¼ _____ A_g_e_n_d_a_lt_e_m _____ _ 
-----.-n■ ---·· ai• 

Date: March 8, 1994 

To: Board of Supervisors 5J1. 
From: Shari Greenwood, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Subject: Mid-Valley Water District Bylaws 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Approve amended and restated bylaws for Mid-Valley Water 
District. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

DISCUSSION: 

Pursuant to California Water Code, Section 35306, district bylaws 
may be amended by a 4/5 vote of the directors and approval of the 
Board of Supervisors of the principal county of the district. 
The Mid-Valley Water District Board of Directors has amended and 
restated its bylaws and is requesting that your Board approve the 
same. 

REVIEWING AGENCY: 

County Counsel has reviewed the amended and restated bylaws. 

Page _1_ of 1 
APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED ___ X __ OTHER ____ _ 

X UNANIMOUS ___ _ CONRAD KOLIGIAN LEVY OKEN VAGIM 



  Raisin City Water District 
Mid-Valley Water District 

2025 Municipal Service Review 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group • April 2025 Appendix A-6 

Appendix F. JID Wells 



' -..,: ~ 

. "' \ ... ~ 
',! -

:. 1· 

!)!;'.~) 

'll!I!I ?:!D!!ll';llru:, :;n:111 tji;e_ i:!":4 da.y or ,\prll' ~, r;, 111:::0 

!3, f.!':l !'l::!~''.'i:-:! S:n Joaquin'Lller r,:rai L:;i d:r ~P~t,- A-poJ'PQrr.Ha; 
· cn;~hed :t,.d: exintina t.r1aer: 111:4 bt yi:rtue. of ~:~ !Iµ!': ~f ~:..i,.~tu.te, 9!: ~lJfgm·l~ 

()ne Dollar lllid other vru.:m.ole co.>?n.icl_e~ll.tion to, it iJi h:i-,c. Jl'\-d·· bj" tho 111.ia. Gr:r. f.11 

t i.a rtoclpt whna~r- 11- ho;-c-hJ i::onrecaod ard 1l.,J~1o'll'l'odi;ad -ha.o t:rl!tlt~d, bari=;~l[itd,-

l. T!.a:t ccrt:i.in. o;.-pnQ?l ai:.uate in an¢ i,r.der .Levee ·rro.1 ;ncI )y-Pa;i1dlo.l 

of Ee~am&ti~ District '?!o 1606 .-.:'Id ex!;endinr: fZ"O!!I the ccr.r.ecticn betr.eC11 ao.i~ 

_11yphon :i,nd a ~Ill at ·a po:nt. ¥1, 11na ne:;r the uoutl'iea,t comer 9f.Seoti<n 34· • 
"1'. ll5 s •. P.~ i7 ~. li • . D, ~. Tc Ll;. in u. f.!11 or>,4 ·oouthwo!lte:-l.y dii-1:ti~ ~o tr.a ccnnnt• 

· i:11 ,be~,roc1: tillid oyphcn 1121d n. ~tu(· b,irrg 1!!dn C:nl11 !fa. 1. ~r J1¢1Dai ,.i'r.i{.-n.ticn 
. . 

'll. D. s-: !: !!, ,tq-other 'Id~ all ri. ht of omcrahip, ci;,,erat.oh, -C1Aint111a.r.co Md 

r.:ip11,fr ls1;1r,0f,. tho oui:n uo-Jn~ tri . inteeral ~r.t of t,e irritaticn- eya.te:t or· Jw1e11 

Irriga:t.im !}i!::.rict: 

' laaterly- 'tilerco ·! ezd ute::ain:; in~ Norl;he:iater y a.nd So:it'h-iruterl,y ciirocticn _ - . . 

' a-crQOII er.id, !)r•P:L!lll in the: So~thr.ent quu.rt~r of Sec.~icn 2, '1\ l.6 S·,R, 17 ,. lf~ ·n. 
: ·J!! ~ lb t~ So.u.t he;-ly. torz:-Jn;u_a. t !~f.eof' mc c.ili.d. !,eie~-- N"o;l ·o! so,. d 'f.s0l:11:.at;icn° -

Dustri_ct bepir, N.or.thcrlf of" the r:w,in hondG4t.e--af C~a.l Uc.1 . o! ja:i~o I-rrlg:1.tic:n 

_ ....: )1igqj,ot _11g_d. ~ait -~P.i,:~~~,~~~~ ~t.,.Qf the- i:i.-r:sa,tit'?'-·::,--:.t.::::~~f;:.i.1 :.1-:.i · 

!rriaaticn District toc;etl~er 11U!u1.ll ri1;.:t. 01' 0mor11oi.ip 011erat er., m:.intinana. 
· 1111d ,:t:jm.ir o:· oa.-~d "!I i;-,i I 

3. Aioo toti n\lll~~l'Od Al. at S1tWiY-hicn O or V~ll•tOard~ Flriil-.: _!!•· 
upa1 th• orr1e1.i. 1:1~11 t:-aroqr of l'llil?rd ~ tti, of'fht v·· ti• Jl•oeN,r ot 1"11111 

'.Co\lr.t:,, OnU:!'om!th. 

ll•At AU tlnt. '\Wt. 01' l,o- ll\~11\iored ~!'I~ of-~4!)dlyi11~cn ~ ,pr Y-1llf-t~rdtt · 
,F\ll'lnl, 11,b _pir lll~P. q \)l"Q()f fUIJl'rdorl in V~l'j.l.~ll? or1:0011rlln· U !!µnet• Ill. -~l~I"' 74 _ 
~ 'IQ b\cl.uoi\'I Fror~\o QowYtJ' llocord~{ -1-oq,lirotl ror Artol!i~ 114111 tie, «ll 

· ·d .. ori'\lod 11J1 folt0w11; 

.ro!ILN.!11thorly front t.lio sc~llitTont. 9or1101· tun'Qor1 t.hY190· £.'\11t.orly 1\11'1. pl\f~l\l 
: -· 

1 
- .~-,..,;.:-:;,;·'--=-- ...: :·~- i,~-~~~h'-~i.;~c.\'t,;t"µu;.:;-,,rt~r.;ili(naa·~ -~:to· a- poiiiflruroliitfru~ Uu;li,llll~'td· -.. 

.:. - . ~):.,-_ ..... 
t ,111 polnt of bet,;inuinn t!:ooce. •llorthorl~· and pur~llel •o t:~ lfeat '!)011tdll.l'l" o't a~d 

:l~t. -~ W' tciit;- ·ol:cttco. B:l.tiw•rJ:y ·ana ·pnrtd"hi"t.l) i'iie Siju'tii tins of m;,.i ict m f'~lt.; -- · · 
:.t.ht:!l.c:i Sauil1orly and pa.rs.U~l to· ·tl,o '.V~a,t..bou.1,lll.l'Y of o(tj.~ left ,nl fad~ tl1tniS•' 

'Teatctl:i- end piu•~Uol. to tl» ollid sou h boll• ,;ar,,• of Q:!.id lot. 00 foot tQ. the 

afoni~ntict\.td ~oint or ·bcclnnin. ,:u1d i:or.ll\inin,~ O,Oo t1area. 

, 4, .U·ao tho ~:\11.c:n.a1~ a. 1~ \ 1·t -h' ·to 1n~cr m w1d· upcn and to hold ,po11111_111 
\ .. ... - . 

ui1t1 11,Jor t:_ot .tho pur::-011011 o!' con:.1t1·u.:Ui\{! IIVOl' 1uu ,~1'Qt11• ~h• 11w-11h lll'Kl-~111tllininr, 
u:d al! -- ·' :.\l1\t.111'nl~, auh~bi.01·iU.8 i1lltl ot..! ,ol' A!r-~tiion. wor..lm ~\' i;,o w·ri~, 

' \ ... ~ :, , '- .' ~. "'- to :~ \ • · · '' · ~~ " • · • · ' • ~~ 

I 11 



•''t_, 

-~~~,;,;.,.,"°r~~-

J_-_-
t ~·~ 

, ,-_. l 

\'.,,j 
'\·, '--~ 

· l~tera.1.ti. sub-lci.:.ernis. n;i1¥1on3, ch~cks, tum-outs, ctilv!)rta, brid(;es :ind other 

' irriga.ticn l'Torks whic.1-i are. noiT s:tua.:te· upcn 1111d plirtiai-i:, or.- fully-- CO!lpletld or-

_in. p-rooer.s or· ::o:1iitructiaift cn?on ,11xceptinc.; hcr.e..-or ril-:, oleotric- p01:or trr.r.~~- _ 

-mi'cnicn 1-in·ec,polon ·Ma tr:~'liif.6r:lern which may- co- 11 itua.te thereon, ,tno tit.le .ctilereio 
_ :il'!!i to. :m e!Ule..~nt fer foe conct;r-,1ction,opera.ticn, r.uuntsiW10e ~1._d, rll;4Llr of auab· 

· oiectrio trnnami11aion ling:;, _pcloa o.nd ti:~11aior1.1orn !!lo.iJg ~'ld uron- llll.id- 1t.dp1 
. :or liind being rerei..7 rener.ved in the Grantor,and -excepted hen:1'~1Dlld exaeptinc 
'n.1110 t?:e. t.:.tle to al): oubois~in:: :tir outota.'ldin5 ea.ne:.en:11 ·oY~r and acroi111 or Upcll 

.t'J1:f C!- f ci;id st.ri::s of tnnd for axiatir-6' ~oada,and ~:,;captinc furth9r :AU tlUlat.ll, ta 
;or record: 

5._ f,,n. o:~nottO'tl or. richt. o: ':':('~ M0nµt ovor- ~<l- U.Cl'ODl!o tlltc fol-l'owlnr,_ . 

dcccribed nt,r;po .of' lti."ld', to•:-ejt: 

f o.) A :it;:ip of l:i1s1d f.O felt..in,,~idth. beinc. t'.O f!let in width ,c;,:i elllh 1ide 

· ,~! ·. la follQ'lfim:.i 9~®t.i-Pad. cent.et lin.; •. tCl-Ti,t: 

lll\':;inning 11.'t tit: t:ort.".o:i.o' m·ly md o.f the 11.torct10Hticnod· o)-p!icn• do11oribtd 
_. J!1 ~~111,~. ,~ l'erao::I_:!- ~'@. pQ!h,~ .bgi!lS !iQ fe'lt·._ mo.rec-~:-, le!!.~.~r,e::t:r-1,~- ;!'· ti-.' - , 

':t\r.t lfae. o·r- Scotten ,34, 'l\ l?i. ~.n. l'l F.. t!,D, l\, t ll, ( t.h11nQ.~•northa·i;y ~1-.l, ·~ 
p:L.""S.Uel to, ~d to feet fr.opt the ea.tit e:ly boun ~r:t line o t Sectione 34, 27 • 22 

15,.10 iµid. 3 i,-i T .. 15 ~.h. 17 'E. !!. D. n. t H,.to o. _point w-iil.ch i1 so''r11t. 

aoutlierly- fr0C1. i,he. no l'th line: o-f o:dci Sout. ,en 3: 

ib) A a.t~ip of-land oO- fe~ .in. width 'b&inr, SO teet. in ,rid th. en ct.ch 
~i.do of,thii foll.otdns do11oribcd center Uno: BO[;inllin1• 11..t. & point. t:Q r_.::ot. aout~.1rly 

froc·, r.tl!3.sureg ;t. r~llt ~as ,to, th~ n01·th Ura 0,:- 11nid Secticn S ·afore111r;U_cne.i • 

::nd 10 i-'eet. we:i.tarl:,· fi"Om :.~e.:i.sm·c.:i :i.t: l'i£iH-a.,{,~IB to., the Ea.r.t. lin• of a:i.id s-.iticn 

afore~rti<nl!d.: tlenc:e. &i:iuuty :\.'Id po.raJ.l.i to tlle. noi~h-lin• o,f' co.id ~11ct.i0t . 

:1nd ot 11:iid Soot.icn a in 'l'. ie s~nt 1r E. !!.n. n. -~ u. a. di:-.t~cn or ~781,00 i'1et.. · 
Ql_'G ~r l.Qllll._ 

: ~::.-~~-~-zc,'--l;-,atrip.-ofl.M'ir'uirieriil "i1.tithlliilnfl;m'fe~hcn each 
hid• O'' toil!) rouo,dnl{ IJ,cnat'lUOU i:111to1• l'int1. t.o-,,n, 

· · nl\-;iMil'lc o.t o. point.-non.r th~ l1ot·thllMt. cont11r or ~lw sou.th1:u1t. Q1iart.1r. 

-" th~ SO\ltllltl\\l.t. qu:1rt.ui· of S-Oqt.:itn 34L r. 15 s .R. l'l t. µ. il, n .. &. il .. aa.ld point­

~inf; 00 tee.t.: wel'lt.ai•ly :'1'01~~ 1:100.a\\re.<l t\t ri;:~ht. .-islee to. tho ?:i.nt. 'b0\11'\dt.r,· l:A.• 
fno.id !lo.ot ·:01 ;N, ~d o.loo \ioinc on th!l otntQr- lino llf tho rif:ht. at,wa.y du•0rlbed 

!n S11'odbidcn,•1.ic ot thi1t p:ittl{{~Jlht the11~0 notiheo.11titl)' to I.I. point CII. tl11 ~\St.\rly-

I I I I 11 I I 



.. f . 
·( 
.f 

bom,hry li.~• or t.hi; !loutl':woat Qu.1rtcr cf t:1e ·1iort,roat qw.rter of Soot.en 35 

T .. 15, ~.r.. 17 E • .!. • :r. , :· . ,c .... ,d ,.c.i:: t. b1inc 85 !"1ct norther!:; !'rcr:r_::.:oa.aured 

a.t right mglen to, tilt Eil=f.Md l'Toat hill r e-cct,ial line o! 11:1;d Sect:cr. .55; then~e­

E-icte1 ly .i."lc: p:i.r;ulel to tu, :!:1r.t .ai ·i "'eat h::11' cecticn line -c-f Sectials 35, 

111d So in 1', 15 ~.n. 17 E', ta a. point which la 00 foot '.:crtJ:wontorly f1·~• i::euurl!d 

a.iaic a. lina iJ, di;lit :ltt;lo:i to;- trui ccn tor line. of ?.!ci!til:lin-Grnde, ai - eatablillhC!(!·. 

public road; tb:n.cc nort.hcantorly :ilcn, a. line p:irallel to the ccr.ter i-ine of a:U:? . '.: 

.!.!c.!ullin Grcde· to a. point in. lhe north md aouth hclf sectiai line of Soc~illl 30. 

T, 15 S, R, 10 E. !.!,D. tl'. i ::.; 

Cac)· .U·no i,._ 11tri!J c. lr.d PO ieot 1n ;,idtl-r bojn1: 40 foe~ in width: en 14'1& 
dd1 of t:1e· followi'lr, doaoriiJo<l o«r..t!lr line, to•wit: B~;iai-ini; o.t o. point 85 , 

-eet.nal t.h:-ootorly froa, ::-.ctt11urutl. a.t rii;ht anGle:i to, the ccri-tor :tine o-f tbt 

· ~r~r~r:enticned 1tcllullin Gr:ida, ~aid point bcin6 05 feet we11~•rl1 .fffl!1~ i:soaa:ured' 
~t l'i{;ht (V:£:i~r, t ·ll, tin nor!ll 11/IU eouth hulf noction lino of IHI.id Sea.ticn 30, . 
T, 115 s.n!- 1.8 ;:. ~l. P. l3. & !t,: tht!nco llcrthorly alo?li: ~ line ,parallel to 

l!:l.id·north :ind uoutn.,h:,J,! i:ect.ion Una or Hid secticn.30. tot.lie?!ortli batnc:i.r.{ 

line of naid, 11e.:ti-01: 

(e) •il!JO a. at.rip a!' lond 80 feet in w!dth beini:, 40 feet in riclthcm• 

esch aide of the follomnc de::icribcd cm ter line. tc-rit: Becinning a.t a. _po:iil_t 

· «E ·tre soµth boi.m:,ar.f line of Scctiai l'l. T,15 s.R. 18 t. ~.t. B. lt !!. niiid 

:pioint beinc !O :feet !{o?i.:-tre~terly froc meliaured c rifjlt 111sle11 t~. tl'! ~111t1i 

line of -the. a!or-emen.ticned l::c!lullin Grnd,; thence no1·t!11uter~y alCllG a line 

parallel to the center line af mid !.:~llin _9~• throu;;h. isaia :S ect.icn 17: l\lld 

Sllctiaa 16. 9.10 ,3 mci 2 in ~aid tom.11hip m.d ·ran, Ch 1D a 310int Cll tia not.t}! 

aid iouth n.:il:! 11110tia1 line of oaid Sect'ic:ri 2; 
. . . 

. (t) Aho a strip of iand ·(;O feet in width l:ein& 40 feet in mdth Cll •~ · 

9-i-te o-r t fl •"G:llcnti'lg tics~ribed· ci,r.:~.ci:' Une. •. to-wit~ Bet;innin& at tt; poSn t. ~ ear 
. tm Southr.eat comer 01' Section 10, T. 1'5 S.R. 18 ~- ;!. D, B. a: u.; a&id ·P!)~t­

~~ng 70 f11et nor-tlweisterl,r fral!l ?!le.:ieured at right. anc;lell to, the cs;-ter _Une-ot: 

ca i1i'!!af!ulUn t;r:1110-, in cJ nlno boinc .7~ too\ wortt.lll'l:i frcll\ 1t11l j;10&t111rod- tlt.. r4'1\- _. 

~lea tc, the -l:~ct lint of o:ud ~octicn 10' .; t)ience northerly anu plU'lµl~ to -· 

~, ~!~t !~J. Qf s_,_c~i..~~ lQ. ~~ ~ .!n, ~~g. !~nhi!l .:u,d mie~ -t~- -tl~ · !!.~~..n- l'i"!.:: :: :--

~f aid Sect!CI\ S: ':. 

. {g) Al1111 a atr ~P of lund 60 feet in width beinu 40 teat in width aa 

· " .. _· ·:.; each 1;de ot tla 1bllo1tµig ~eacribcd cin·ter Un• to,-'!fi,t: l316,innl11G 1.t a po!,n~ 

· . ",. _: '-l · 011 thl Wea~ lin, cf Sectim 10 T. 15 S,R, 18 s. U,D. 13, & !.1, 'ZO ftet nort~lf · · · l from tht. So1tUuuu:t cQn•·ol' or anlJ. •tteticn 101 t. lence eo.11t,orly 11.nd parollal to th.l 

.:, .. -: ~ south l<ine ot Sectioo::lO. ll tilu 12~ in '1', 15 s •. R. 18 i. K,D. B. ~ ti.,, to, th, 

_-·). j f,a.e t Une ;:6:~~:/;::!:1.1;l:,d n.ll c.inala. •~-phom • · ,::hec::,. tumouta. ,:cllll, aotC)~. 

' ,, i- ~P•• nnd otltor irri(:~icn ,rork11 T;"hi.ch ~ now: ait\11\te uPi)n · md pa.~ti"111 oi' · .-
~ ·<·': :J -fully cor:ipbt1d or in r.rcicoN1 otc1Jlct1uoticn tl0croon, ox1:11pt.ins '-'f elo.ctrk t ·-

~--~-- . ::;:;'.'";;;:~ ::;:,;:,r~~-~~~it~·~t?,Ua,;!;:!:t:. -c,,-~ -~-r,'Tif! 
:-. 

1 

' t11Attl tenance m. d l'c1'4ir of n~~h -ol•ctric tran1:;iiaa.iQ\ line a. po~••• Ulld. tnne~rmeri. - ./ · ?' •. ,.! • ·_ .. _ ~ ~j.1:~ • 
~-------.- .. :.t~O ···:ru-·int: t121li up-ct\ !lll.id lltripu or lni,d beini; horw: rolltt-,od ir.. t~- fiant.or; ~ell~•'' .~ · ·:,~.:, ,,,' 

·' in,... t\1110 t .111 tit .. •• to o.ll 1tub0i11~"il'li; o t ouhtanduis 111.11c11nt1 our wid a.or.110 •, .. · . • · ., ..., ' 
\ any of 111..id atri\}g ot l11nd for exiaU?lf: roada, ancl eitce11ti116 i\\l'ther all eu.-t, • .. :· :;··.:_. · · \ -··~~- -- _. ,ir 

• , , of tet'Ol'd.'tl:t lttc.i:ui,t b11r11u)' c'ttlltted ui'OI'\ uid. ctril)a of l•ul b11ns tn •·~llillli. ' : { \,, !•'. '.J_.' 
' ,_ , · ' ,i•lt,¾"> \i 1'to co111tNot, op1m~t.o • ~ir, ~l\U\ :ind rnpail' • ct~a.l u,tn: ~U,l~ ar1~ e.11~0.•~ ~~~, : : tit" : , ·~-f~~ 

I • . · , .: '.' , '. ' } , ~.: ., )"'.' •;•~-!i•~'~',~" ~,~~'.~'.:l''W~~-.•~ .\,:~~!.t~.~,)~\!'.'~\i.~J'j'~~~!: '• ' ",: ',• . ·' !4,. '~' ' ~.la 
•- .' t• ' • . l · _: _- . 



·' ·, 

! 
. ·• . . ' ' ~ / . 

\ :, ·i 
, 

4 

o:' •t -,id ctripc ~Hi 11;!11C! to co1:i;t·1uct, op:sr,ite, rn:ii11ta.in and rir;air thorccn au~ 

necc:r.a.r;,•. cfoohable • or e;cr,eci~mt a.!? u. pa.rt of t.Je irrlce;,ticn 11:,at• or thi 

Grantee mda.l :::c to con:itruct. operate ,:n:t:ir. tailt a. d ;-ei,air thereai suc'h-r.ell!I 

e:.~ i:-._-i:; be. r.ecellr:a.r:;, deaira.b:o or expedi~t. fer the de~elop;1ent m c f~llli;ir.ing 

o!' frellh nter for tl;e frr~tioo. of Uc lnnd:s within th, preaent bound:i.rlea or 

: •~- irrls-~ticn dir.trict, not e:z:cccdinc, hcwe-;er a ·mil.xil:u:I totd o! 200 cubic 110ccncJ 

. !e-et o:· l!U.ch. ireeb: 'l'l:i.~cr~. t.I-.e, richt to- develop Mei tllke cuch -t1ubte:Tl!lle:tt ntef11 
I 

bci"lc c!efi"leci :i.Tld limited in ti'.e next succeedi~ p.i.rnc:riiph 0-f this CatHj~co; 

s·. A-too t.n, prefor<11.tinl rir,ht to dovelpp md tiik• a. ~i~ tot.&1, ot200 Ga\~ - , 

11oe11d : ,: · tnot. ci f f1"u1h 11ubtorrano:n w<'.iurn tl~winc, pcrool1~t1nc,lyi~ oi- btin~ 

be11eo.th- t:JJ curfu.ce of .tiil follo!'inc deacribed lmds,to-,rit : 

pi T. l:5 ~.R. P F.. ~- D. B. f.,_ !!.: }Jl of'Soctiai11 S, 19. lh i~-! ?2. 
26 mid 36.; 

0

the 'ii ; tllil $F.t; ind the T7i of tl:e NE¼ or Section 2:- tr~ S':?; ; the 
'1!i' wm the. SE:c- or t,.o N.\'ri.: tee 1'1¼ :nd tl.o SEt o.f tl1e sm, or Seotic:n 23J the· -; 

t,~-\'it and the SE¼ of t.le mvt: tre wi- md tie SF.t ot t·111 SE¼ of secticn Z5, all 

In T. lG 5.,li. l'I ::. li. ll, n_- ~ :.i.1 The l!.01tlm11.11~ trim'ILUllU' Cl\e 'h!llf 

. of Sect.ion. l:. tr4,p~rt o:t::e l'orti1m1t tr~~Qtla.r :in~ bLl! of Sec:tie11 2 lyjng. 

: ?Iortheasterlr of By,•p;is~ !ro.l of Reclaa:.tic:n Dintrict 1:0.l~: . 

In T. 15 $· R. 18 ::-:. ::. D. B. li. !!.: The Et. of' Secticn 1: tho ft ot:: . 

. Secti'cn 2; nll cf ~ectione s. 8 •. 9 3lc. 10; tl',e \'Ie:st t of Section U; all ot 
Secticn.11. lS, 15.- 17 18, 24 and S2: the st of Sacti111 14: ti.e Et and t:10- STft ot' 
Secticn 1$, tl-e.N.t 91• S11ct.ic:n 22t and the.~ !ind the SJ;:t 9f Secticri. 30 .. 

In T. 1'1 -~. s. R. 18 E. ?.r.D. ·B~ It _lt •. : the S1'!i- of Section 35; 

In T. 15 s.R. l.~ E. u.n. B. &.: u. ; The l!t "1-d the· s~ of Seoticn 1-: all 
ot Seo~icn lC; 

The p.·ei'ereiititil. ri5ht -t() ca.id wa.ter · hereby ccnveyed ·be;~ ccnieyecl : · 

_ u_rcn ;the_ !~llcwir.~ cor.ciiti01ll culine~en.t, t_,o-,r_it~ ;r~~ 1111i~ •.i.te;_alall be 
developed ~d takm from bCllev.th the nurfa.co or ~iii lmd'11 ilolely- 'by: 111111'18. 

or ,.ell• drilled or to be drilleci el;O!lc end u,ion tht ritripa of lin.trde~cribecl 

in p.~t.i:&ph 3 ct thi& coiaeycnco. .~d Qitl.-:l ~• canductlld to mil uood ~clu1l~~ 
tor, bebeficici irritu,ti::n purpana:s aolely \tll0ll thli imda r.aw- situate ,i,itliiJ! the 

bcv.nlio.rioo Qf tha crar.teo di'iitri-ot 11.11 hc:ret.ofora d~fintd :rid t1tn'oliahlli,1111d \lP'Cft 
no ot.l,or l1111d11, Md tlut tho mu.iclni\lll\ llffirni.:ntt t.ot.nl qum ti½.)' ot 1u0h, tr.c1b· n\or1 

to be dru.'lffl by r::ouna or 1nuit \Toll:! f.1'01:l bon,a.t.h the- a, rt&ct or ,uon 11flll.t! ahal.1 · 
. . :·. t _ not exceed. :1.t. an~· one. t.ime 200 cubic foot pct oooond l and tlat in tho •X~\ of the 

- . .' . · : , ncn~'bnerunc:e or tiobticn o!' ~11 oi' c~id ~~i t.1«111 lit ui4. r.nntto or lb .. · . ~ 
~ ·, - . i - au~cer-i-t-to c.t- o.:,11ft111, C:l' in, it.n ~r- t.l11lr \iol.it1 tr tu lt.1 01' theh• llenttl\\ \l• ltifi' 

•.. ' l- _- crctol\tor u ih a1u111111ra •r i:\lll.,Jc111t tr tilt_ t.h-i 11"1\*1' •t Jtll ,an. tt' 11\64· , ..... .a.u ' . ' . :I~ 
~~~..:-~--. _.:._., ~ I~~l,\~~--~un~-M ~t._r..!ci.1\J,\·_t~~m,_~g,_-~ft~tl: ll.ll== .. ,tc il.t.naU&..:min.=_ - =.;.~---. 
•-·,c:-;-- '-; • ~~• n1•\httcromt111\.,'ldnCl\-e\leenrnaunlob,ti911!!f!w,1 tf~--,cn4tt4.-,11 N\f,t• ~~ r . - ""'.l!ffl 
' -- · ' · .. t ' ' . £ft'l-'1\U i!!t' i'b~t Md. U1_ A~!Bl~~g9_n ~rq t~~iffll, lal;tlHbt NHI l\f¥ Mt All...... f __ .' --- -~ 11.fl. 
\ - ... •.: . , _.ftnill 1l\ ~f' auit for ®Oh inj111cti(ll or lslJwt~Utin~ •\h• \~. ,~ ~.,.·"· ,t-he' - 4IJ,;:,i :tr 

· ., tlv.t. no nm obatnenoa or tioln.tion o!' lll\}' ,,\oh oonlli\i•<"lll Mil "calffM, ' .,-1:;?:'~)' 
, ':hill ca,uycnot ia tll).cie. anll ~~oopt.ocl \lt:o\ 011\1111,..111 \ll'lcltrt,~\lirlft llli4 , . •-

wit. h tho expnail oovtnll.ht t!mt t.lll 1\boVa no::104 fZl'ontor- or ~1~• ot Jta 11ucia10111r1 , , '~'-:'~\ ·~; 
' ' .,. lla_i'I 

or 1.aeif,11 u.y-1 ,~t ~,y time._ dnll.op ey llltll'lt otnu, or t\l\ol"tl'ht• \\1141\ •1 ot t.lt ,',li·~S" f 
l.11\'dl dt~oriuocl in .lt.lu.Q lU~~r~-ph·o.t tl1l~ Gll!\~~•wtQl9 nu ,t11,\tr tol' 1'1f ·l'U'lllllll , . . , e 

' ,' :,~t '~, _ .1 '' 11 , , ~ '-'\ .• : 
1 

I 



1ritttever md trenh watqr for uac ur.,,on MY 0£ uid l:ind11 or !or Ul!I ur:cin rr.y other 
l1111de, :?:ld to t~e ancf unc i:-..;dl r.::.tcrn for i::u~h y,ir;.:ocec, i:.ro,-idcd, I-.01ro'l'or,th&t 

' 'tra grnr.tor or' ita: c,icce!l:::o::!l o.r a~:.,-;(Jlc :imll. net be- entitled all o·! ri{;?.t or 

otherriae to deveiop, tak~ or ·u~e f:rO!ll ~eiea.th tiB curfa.ci of tr~ a.bcTe deacribed 

. !aids fresh wo.t.er:i fo:- irris.i.ticn purpose!! at u.ey tic:e ,rmn tre 8Uppl;; ~f :iucb 

subterranean !re:!h waters lyir.G pcrcolatinc, er beinc; beneath ·the a.urface of my 

pa~-t of s.:tjd land.'3, d oe:i not e:ccccd a m;,.xilnum totlll- DCP.c~t• 41l!'l ti ty of 200 

· cubic !e!lt per sei;:cnd, n.'ld tint ci'ily the exce:i!I over md &bo'H aid muirur total 
aa;rego.te quantit)• -of 200 cubic feet per seccnq of such freeJt wa.t~rs 'lf!.1.Y be ~ 

dev~loped,· ta.ken ~d ucod lly t h~ u:intor or fts s'.lcqer.nora or 11,:11iigna. 

7-. Alae tr~ rit;ht and title t.o ~l freoh w11.t0r tlowil1£i, ·percola.tinf; .. 

· : lying or being benefith the sui!'ace o;t .miy and cl.l of the Jilnd1 _ hereto fen included 

wcitlii~ ard. lils a :Parl -o·f the g=tee ciist..1,-ict, toi;ether 'ri.~ the' exclusive right• 

to t&lt&-, ·dev~lop n.m c!ictribQte all of .ro.id nubterranean treeh n.t"r11 tor ber.etic;ial 
uee- !or, i:rrlgnt.icn pi.rpooea upon· I.mds- now. incl':lded liiti ilil and air & part o! ~d 

grantee d:bitric~. excepting oo 1Z1Uch of siic! subterrmez n.t,ra u -the ·.nr!l■int or 
·wty future 0111er of ·cny ·piµ-t of r. o,;d lmd:, ,r.i!\l dovtUp ·u101 tie bnda oined by 

him !er uclusbe UOI! thoreupcn: ft boins expre1,1aly tr1dcrstood, coYa1111ted litd 

agreed tint t-.lie riGht lind ~-i t1:e t.o ::aid 11ubtem11.e~ fr!lch nter■ hlteby c:am1yid 

' is coney.ed u~ tre follo'ffiz,.g ccnditione :iubsequeht to-rit: Tm~ H,id oubtez:ra'!e~­

tr.e~ r.i.ters ehall be developed ard taken :fI'Ol!l beneath the eur~ce ot ~ lan·diJ 

nolely- by means· of ,iells driiled or to lie dr!lled 1rit!ii:t niud d-iltriet by allid 

grantee or its succeeacns or ~sig:u1 u.::en 'P-'ell aitea cmad or hereafter tc_:be ·a¢qui~ld 

by· said crantu or its l!'J.cc:ec::orn or a.r.!!i[71a,and oluli be oondllCted to,and· uaed· 

-excluaivelr fer, 1:eneficilll i:-ri{:.-:i.ticn ~nr~o11e11 collly ur.cn_ t -i. 111\dt r:ow dtll:f,h 

,tth.ln tl,e bQundarieo or the c1·:nto0 dintrict all hretoforo de1'i,1ed lil_d oetablioh.~ 
in4 up(ll no· 'othei"lm.da; rind in tlll evs:t of the -ncn 0011~ninae.or tiol~ticn or .. · 
any ~f 11:iid conditiona. 'by.· ruid c;r:intco or ita aucceaaora or t.011i{pa, er in ita 
or tleir Qemlf, or 'o;- it11 or their bm'ofit._ ~ro E;ri'Zrtor or ita .11ucceailor1 or 

- : . ,&s!\-¾;ri:t, ci t 0hl thfil OW'lllr of iii:y pat.t. 01~ caid lilnd~ 1111;,i-i fortlJ1'ith -lNi ai:titl.ed 
aa of riGht to obt"itjn. md. procure :i. pcrcument injuncti·o~ reatn4ni•~ tr.e further 

,~: - Ol' C<!nt:inu!d· nc.-i-::b~c .. \..,n;;:a- 01· v'iol'a.liiai of iiirj ot' ta.iii ccndition~. aid. t.l• l&id 
grantee. fer ;tselt ,its succ:ccocrs or u.ooirr.11, uprila:-ly wain11 :»ry end'-all d1ten1 .. 
in any -llllit !or tU ch injll\crl.icn or injun~ticna .of,hor tpo.n tla de!'~11 12r i'e.ot. tb&t. 

lllaf bl 11it1,1l\te; 

Protided, l!owovor, 111\d' it iii cxproooly w1<loratood, ccv!ll'lanted n.lld IIG?•ld 



l 6 
J 

by and bobocn t!.o :1~:-tie:i hereto tll::.t tile fee cicplo title a! t:e l::uin @lion 

de1cribc9 a.r.d o !' ti:c \'l'!llle Lc!·ec:· :i.ro rc::en-cd :¥Jd. intai.cied to be roaorvod m 
the crantor,. ,:ubjo.::t to trD :-ii;r.t:: r.c1'Cbi cr:fl..ted to U. .c;ra.'ltoo. 

I?/ "1T::.E?.~ ~ :1. 'I·7, Ti:e Gron tor h~ c:l.USed thena ;,m11entc to. bo cfaiod 

Mil eo:ilo:i b;,· itc :Jul:, a.utlzrizod o-ff'i'ccr!l by autI-.ont1 of its Beard of D_irectcre 
en U.ia, tre- d:i.y and yoiir iicrdnc,.i:c,ve flrst writtm. 

~ an. 
' acmty er Loil Anc(llO,!l, ) 

S;\!: JC,\Q!JD, \':.r.tE'l F,\P.! L.\!i~ CO!lP.'\lrY 

By 11:LL i;: .K::U.En, Pr1:1:iici8'l t 

By .I.ll • . o, BP.lil! • Secrota?y 

Ch thiG lot fat of l~ ,\,D, l~O. bot"oro fuct, ~babe~ F.llillmrn~ & 

l!ota.ry Public in urrd !or oa:id County,rc:d:(iing ~-eroin, duly c»,."'l!li1uiicnod and 

twom. ,pcramul+Y u:~i;r~tl \\'ill P.~Y.cller ond J.l!.O'Bd.in .• kno.m. t9 c~ '!;Q li!-t~ 
l!risi:.lcr.t enc: Sccrct&fy i'ecpe.ctivel;y o f ·S:n Jowuiin i'.illJY F:tm .Lm.da Cccpeny. · 

a cor:;ioraticn, who execi,,.ted the within instr1.Z:ent ~ be.ml! of said CCJrporatim: 

nnd ·acl:norrl ecged to !llO tr,!1-t c..uci 001·por11.tic:n oxewted the a1£1i •. 
f 

In :'iitnocn. ffho·oor. I iuvo htl:~mtc not CJ h:n·d and llffixod ~ of!'io.i!il · ' 
· 11:tJ. en thic ,tho dQf ar.d yc:u- in t!ic Certific:i.te ~apt 11.bovo written. 

r!,!':li\£r:i'H F. f!ILI#i\.': ,lfotacy Pu.blic in and tor' ' ... ' 
. . . ~ 

(:SF.AL) .t.i,t County o-f Lo~ .Anc.oloc,!t&te ot Call-fomia. 

!:j• :iou::i:ncicn O:tpires Oc.t.. o 1r•2i •. 

{ E!bo roe~) ; Doad 

From S:in Joaquin Vcl.~cy F.tm L~d:i Coap;:ny •. To J:ime::: Irr._~Ucn ·Diot.rict. 

~tee: April 22, H20 . . . j . 

Fi-led fer record 11.i. ti:e teque~t or .J'a:,:eo lrrit;a.t.im Di~:rl-ot. Sep.-i'·l~20' -~ < _f 
11.t 2 min•,p.q,f:t 9 o.• clock A,!J,. md rocord9(J in :Vol, 6 o!' Offioilil neoorJo 1£• 1 ', · 

R., ll. lu\R5't0.,-. Co1a1.ty l!iClon,r. c: · . . ·., ..;. 
t . ~ - • - ·,' 

By B,!I, DlSSffl, i>ei:utt l\1oorior.. . 
. ---.\ .. . 

- -~ J- •·. 

,' 

~-

. ·• 

J- f· 
' -~ 

• r ~•~ . ~• t• i ' 

,, _-

' : .·. ' ,,, 
', \~?,;i~f' 
}.' ;!,- , 

• \ ,f' ,r • 
·_, '--~~· ... 
. - . 

.Ii ' ~ ~ . ~ • 

, .;, , 

----- ----~-- ~-- -~---'-- ~_- ~-_,.-.~-·'· ·. _~ 

' -_.. ,· ', = ~"ij" 
~r,\f ... 

·.. .. . 

' ' ' ' ' ;-: :}:.; ·, ; ·\. \ 

~--· 



I ... , 

l sio/al 
...... 

r==--u=========::=.===a::= ==;;;:::::::::=:;!='==ft,.,.J..4=1J,,~ ~ µ ~ ,_._~~,dm) =~~ ==ea====e= 
1 -

~ t- -__._-L4------1----1--+-l----l-----r==+-l-

~: ~ Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

- Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. 

- Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

1:1 M cMullin Area GSA 

~ 0 1 2 

~ Miles 

-;-----t--r-f,r~ f 

McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Raisin City Water District 

4/1/20:ll G \/Quin Cl!:y wac.,,. Diitnct • 1 U6\U .16ll002.~\«IOGIS\Map',MYl_mapi\MSR_map,;_apn. 

... 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 

1 



3680063v8 / 15273.0001  1 

Indemnification Agreement 
(Fresno LAFCo – Raisin City Water District) 

 
 This Indemnification Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 
____ day of _________, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the Fresno Local Agency 
Formation Commission, a state-mandated independent agency (“Fresno LAFCo”) and Raisin City 
Water District, a California water district formed and governed under Division 13 of the California 
Water Code (“RCWD” or “Applicant”). Fresno LAFCo and RCWD are sometimes collectively 
referred to in this Agreement as the “Parties” or singularly as a “Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act 
(“CKH”) governs the formation and operation of local agency formation commissions in 
California counties; and 

B. WHEREAS, CKH authorizes Fresno LAFCo to charge applicants for filing and 
processing applications, proceedings undertaken by Fresno LAFCo, amending or updating a 
sphere of influence (“SOI”), and reconsidering a resolution making determinations, and 
Government Code section 56383.5 authorizes Fresno LAFCo to require an indemnification 
agreement as a condition of approval for, among other things, review and approval of proposals 
for change or organization or reorganization; and 

C. WHEREAS, on or about January 15, 2025, RCWD submitted a Change of 
Organization/Reorganization application to Fresno LAFCo titled “Raisin City Water District 
Reorganization Project” (the “Proposal”) requesting the annexation of 68,916 acres to RCWD (the 
“Annexation”) and amendments to RCWD and Mid-Valley Water District’s respective spheres of 
influence (each, an “SOI Revision”), as identified more particularly in the Proposal, a copy of 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit “A”; and  

D. WHEREAS, Section 10 of the Proposal contained an indemnity agreement that 
requires the Applicant to indemnify, hold harmless, and promptly reimburse Fresno LAFCo for 
identified expenses, fees, and costs imposed upon or incurred by Fresno LAFCo for any litigation 
or administrative proceeding brought in connection with Applicant’s proposal and provides that 
Fresno LAFCo may require Applicant to execute an additional indemnity agreement as a condition 
of approval of the Application (the “Application Agreement”); and  

E. WHEREAS, a Municipal Service Review (“MSR”) is required pursuant to CKH 
(Gov. Code § 56430) prior to considering an action to update an SOI; and  

F. WHEREAS, in or around December 2024, RCWD prepared a separate draft MSR 
titled “2024 Municipal Service Review Raisin City Water District Mid-Valley Water District” in 
connection with the Application (the “RCWD MSR”); and 

G. WHEREAS, the Annexation, the SOI Revisions, and the RCWD MSR are 
collectively referred to herein as the “Project”; and  



3680063v8 / 15273.0001  2 

H. WHEREAS, Fresno LAFCo has set a hearing to consider approval of the RCWD 
MSR and the Proposal for May 14, 2025 at 1:30 p.m.; and 

I. WHEREAS, Fresno LAFCo staff independently considered the RCWD MSR and 
all public comments thereto, recommended revisions, which were made, and have recommended 
that Fresno LAFCo makes the written determinations required by Government Code section 
56430, subdivision (a) and adopts the RCWD MSR; and 

J. WHEREAS, Fresno LAFCo staff recommend requiring Applicant execute this 
Agreement as an additional indemnification agreement pursuant to Section 10 of the Proposal as 
a condition of approval of the Proposal; and   

K. WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to clarify Applicant’s 
obligation to indemnify Fresno LAFCo for all costs and fees, should litigation arise related to 
Fresno LAFCo’s approval of any component of the Project, including but not limited to approval, 
acceptance, or adoption of the RCWD MSR, the SOI Revision, or the Proposal.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Legal Indemnification.  Should Fresno LAFCo be named as a party in any 
litigation (including but not limited to a “validation” action under CCP section 860 et seq.) or 
administrative proceeding in connection with the Approval of any component of the Project, as it 
may be amended from time to time, or any associated environmental document, RCWD agrees to 
defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and promptly reimburse Fresno LAFCo for:  

1.1 All reasonable costs, expenses, and attorney’s fees in connection with the 
defense of Fresno LAFCo, its agents, officers, and employees; and  

1.2 Any damages, penalties, fines, or other costs imposed upon or incurred by 
Fresno LAFCo, its agents, officers, attorneys, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding 
brought against any of them, the purpose of which is to attack, set aside, void, or annul an Approval 
of any component of the Project.  

2. Approval Defined.  For the purposes of this agreement, “Approval” shall be 
construed to mean Fresno LAFCo’s consideration and approval, acceptance, or adoption, wholly, 
partially, or conditionally, of any component of the Project pursuant to the CKH and any other 
actions or determinations made pertaining to the Project, including findings for any environmental 
documents as provided under the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Res. Code § 21000 
et seq.). 

3. Defense.   

3.1 RCWD’s Defense of Fresno LAFCo.  RCWD shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, provide a vigorous and competent defense of any claim, action, or proceeding against 
Fresno LAFCo related to an Approval of the Project. RCWD shall have the right to select legal 
counsel to defend against any claim, action, or proceeding, subject to Fresno LAFCo’s reasonable 
approval.   



3680063v8 / 15273.0001  3 

3.2 Right to Appoint Own Counsel.  Notwithstanding Section 3.1, Fresno 
LAFCo shall have the right to appoint its own legal counsel at any time to defend Fresno LAFCo 
and conduct its own defense, in which case Fresno LAFCo shall bear its own attorney’s fees and 
costs related to the claim, action, or proceeding, and shall defend the claim, action, or proceeding 
in good faith.  If Fresno LAFCo elects to appoint its own legal counsel and conduct its own defense, 
RCWD shall retain its own legal counsel at RCWD’s sole cost and expense, unless the Parties 
agree otherwise in writing. 

3.3 Cooperation. Unless Fresno LAFCo has appointed its own legal counsel 
pursuant to Section 3.2, Fresno LAFCo shall cooperate fully in RCWD’s defense pursuant to this 
Agreement.  

4. Notice.  Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 56383.5, Fresno 
LAFCo shall promptly notify RCWD of any claim, action, or proceeding to attack, set aside, void, 
or annul an Approval of the Project, no later than three (3) business days after Fresno LAFCo has 
been served. 

5. Settlement.  RCWD shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement relating 
to this Agreement unless RCWD approves the settlement, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. RCWD shall not settle any Claim without the prior written consent of Fresno LAFCo, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

6. Enforcement. Each Party shall bear its own attorney’s fees and costs arising from 
or related to the preparation of this Agreement.  In any action to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

7. Insurance Requirements. To the extent possible and without incurring 
unreasonable expense or burden, RCWD shall endeavor to obtain and maintain insurance coverage 
sufficient to cover its indemnification obligations under this Agreement. Such insurance shall be 
maintained with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and shall include Fresno 
LAFCo as an additional insured. RCWD shall provide Fresno LAFCo with certificates of 
insurance evidencing such coverage upon request. 

8. Breach by Fresno LAFCo.  Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code 
section 56383.5, RCWD shall not be required to defend, indemnify, or hold Fresno LAFCo 
harmless under this Agreement if Fresno LAFCo fails to notify RCWD as required by Section 4 
or to fully cooperate with RCWD’s defense as required by Section 3.3.   

9. Survival. The indemnification obligations set forth herein shall survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

10. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in one or 
more original counterparts, all of which together will constitute one and the same agreement.  

 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 



3680063v8 / 15273.0001  4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and delivered this Agreement on 
the date stated under that Party’s name, with this Agreement being effective on the Effective Date. 

 

 

“RCWD”       “Fresno LAFCo” 

Raisin City Water District, a California 
water district 

 Fresno Local Agency Formation 
Commission, a state mandated 
independent agency 

By: ____________________________ 
       District Representative Signature 

  
By: ____________________________ 
        Brian Spaunhurst 
        Executive Officer 

____________________________  
Print Name                               

 ____________________________  
Date                               

____________________________  
Date                               

  

  



3680063v8 / 15273.0001  5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

The Proposal 



JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Riley Chaney, President 

Organized February 16, 1920 
8749 Ninth Street 

Post Office Box 757 
Andrew Groppetti, Vice-President 
Robert Barcellos, Director 

San Joaquin, California 93660-0757 

Wm. Cory Carvalho, Director 
Robert Motte, Director 

February 20, 2025 

TRANSMITTED BY E-MAIL TO: 
ORIGINAL WILL NOT BE MAILED 

bspaunhurst@fresnocountyca.gov 

BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 

FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800 
Fresno, CA 93721 

Manny Amorelli, General Manager, 
Treasurer/Assessor-Collector 

Donna Y. Hanneman, Secretary 

Telephone: (559) 693-4356 
Facsimile: (559) 693-4357 

SUBJECT: PROTESTING RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT PROPOSED ANNEXATION & MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
REVIEW 

Dear Chair Mendes: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Raisin City Water District (RCWD) proposed 
annexation and draft Municipal Services Review (MSR). James Irrigation District (JID) wishes to notify 
the Board of its formal opposition to the proposed annexation by RCWD. 

JID has owned and operated groundwater wells and related facilities as part of its public water project 
for the benefit of landowners and water users within JID's boundaries for over a century, and those 
facilities are situated within the area of the proposed expanded RCWD Sphere of Influence (SOI) and 
annexation. JID is concerned about the potential effects of the proposed annexation on JID and the 
facilities and resources that JID has dedicated to a public use since the 1920s, and there is nothing in the 
record that provides any assurances to JID that the proposed annexation by RCWD will not adversely 
affect JID' s significant rights and facilities in the proposed service area. 

First, JID wants to ensure that the record of these proceedings reflects the history of the area that is 
proposed to be annexed. In the 19th century, one landowner (Jefferson G. James) established the 
James Ranch and owned most of the properties contained within present-day McMullin Area GSA 
(MA GSA), Reclamation District 1606 (RD1606), Tranquillity Irrigation District, and JID. Jefferson James 
began the development of the area to irrigated agriculture by the building of canals and diversion of 
water from the Kings and San Joaquin Rivers. 

L25-019 



________________ JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 

FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
Page 2 of 4 
February 20, 2025 

In 1912, the San Joaquin Valley Farmlands Company (Farmlands Co.) acquired much of the ranch and 
further developed the area with the construction of additional canals and wells for irrigation purposes, 
in addition to farming and subdividing the ranch. In 1920, Farmlands Co. granted to the recently formed 
James Irrigation District a system of canals, wells, other facilities, and groundwater rights pursuant to 
a grant deed (the "1920 Deed"). This grant included the right to as much as 200 cubic feet per second (cfs) 
of groundwater underlying an area of approximately 18,000 acres for the benefit of lands in JID. 
A portion of this area is within RCWD (formed over 40 years after the grant to JID), and another portion 
is in the area of the proposed annexation. To date, the facilities constructed pursuant to the 1920 Deed 
are within the area proposed for annexation by RCWD. Other JID facilities in the proposed annexation 
area include the Southwest Banking Project, a 100-acre fee title property jointly operated with 
Fresno Irrigation District (FID). JID and FID have been operating this facility since 2018 to intentionally 
recharge water in the area. 

According to Government Code Sections 56650-56668.5, when an application for a change or 
organization or reorganization is submitted, LAFCo requires the applicant to submit a plan for provided 
services within the affected territory. Specifically, Section 56653 at a minimum requires the plan to 
contain the following: 

(1) An enumeration and description of the services currently provided or to be 
extended to the affected territory. 

(2) The level and range of those services. 
(3) An indication of when those services can feasibly be extended to the affected 

territory, if new services are proposed. 
( 4) An indication of any improvement or upgrading of structures, roads, sewer or water 

facilities, or other conditions the local agency would impose or require within the 
affected territory if the change of organization or reorganization is completed. 

(5) Information with respect to how those services will be financed. 

JID has reviewed the December 2024 draft MSR and application materials by RCWD and they do not 
meet the Section 56653 requirements. There is nothing in the record regarding RCWD' s plan for the 
distribution of water for irrigation purposes, how RCWD would improve groundwater conditions, what 
water could be conveyed into RCWD or how any projects or water acquisitions would be financed. 
Consequently, the plan does not provide any detail regarding services, facilities and financing as required 
by the LAFCo statute. On a related note, JID correspondence with LAFCo from October 2015, indicates 

L25-019 



________________ JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 

FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
Page 3 of 4 
February 20, 2025 

that LAFCo would require RCWD to prepare, submit and maintain a master plan as part of a MSR and 
SOI adjustment. JID is not aware of this being completed. 

The record is also incorrect as it pertains to existing public agency boundaries. The draft MSR states 
(Pg. II-5, Pg. II-9) that "The SOI revision and subsequent annexation would make both boundaries 
coterminous with the MAGSA boundary." However, the figures within the document show the 
annexation area as being within MAGSA but the proposed SOI goes outside of MAGSA into James GSA 
over portions of RD1606. Incidentally, RD1606 is the sole landowner within the James Bypass and has 
informed JID that it is opposed to its boundaries being within the SOI boundary of any local water or 
irrigation district other than JID. 

A further boundary concern is that the Southwest Banking Project is included within the proposed 
annexation area. The mapping does not show the Southwest Banking Project, nor FID canals in the 
annexation area, nor are they even mentioned or evaluated in connection with the proposed annexation. 

Regarding proposed plans for water service, the paragraph on Page II-11 regarding future projects and 
the McMullin On-Farm Recharge Phase 2 Project is incorrect where it states "the project would divert up 
to 500 cfs Kings River flood flows." RCWD does not have any rights to Kings River water. And those 
entities that do have such rights cannot divert Kings River water to or through said project as the project 
is outside of the place of use for Kings River water. Consequently, RCWD' s proposed project that forms 
part of the basis for the proposed annexation has neither the funding necessary for construction of project 
facilities, nor the rights to water that would be necessary to operate the project if it were constructed. 

Regarding the annexation and SOI change, Government Code Section 56668 indicates that LAFCo is to 
consider: 

L25-019 

(c) The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on 
mutual social and economic interests, and on the local governmental structure of the 
county. 

(e) The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of 
agricultural lands 

(j) The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency. 
(k) The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are 

the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for 
those services following the proposed boundary change. 



_________________ JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 
FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
Page 4 of 4 
February 20, 2025 

The record does not contain information regarding how RCWD plans would affect adjacent areas, 
including the lands within JID. RCWD has not indicated how it will provide the services identified in 
the MSR, nor shown that it has sufficient funding to provide the services. RCWD is not providing the 
proposed services even within their current boundary. It has limited assessment revenue, no property, 
no facilities and no water rights. How will RCWD provide services to an expanded territory that it 
canr1.ot currently provide to its existing service area? 

Regarding the MSR for Mid-Valley Water District (MVWD), there are inaccuracies and errors in the 
information presented as follows: 

1. MVWD does own and operate facilities, which include a pumping plant that is in 
place under a license agreement with RD1606. 

2. The statement regarding Kings River Water supplies on Page III-9 about obtaining 
unlimited supplies and contract renewals every three years is not accurate. Kings 
River Water Association (KRWA) does not typically renew flood water contracts. 
MVWD is not within the place of use for the existing Kings River water rights held 
by KRW A and is unlikely to obtain a water supply. 

3. It is unlikely that the project mentioned in the southern portion of the District would 
be constructed and therefore stating that there is still interest by JID should be 
eliminated from the text (Pg. III-9). 

4. The mapping should match the text and show the proposed SOI as being 
coterminous with the MAGSA boundary. 

For the foregoing reasons, James Irrigation District respectfully requests that the Commission deny the 
annexation request and SOI change. 

Sincerely, 

JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

rcq~ 
Riley Chaney, President 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Enclosure: James Irrigation District Resolution 2025-01 Protesting Raisin City Water District 
Annexation, Adopted February 11, 2025 

L25-019 



RESOLUTION 2025-01 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

PROTESTING RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
ANNEXATION 

WHEREAS, the JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT ("JID") owns certain water rights, easements, and 

related facilities in connection with that certain deed from the San Joaquin Valley Farms Lands Company 
to JID, dated on or about April 22, 1920, pursuant to which JID has developed a well field (the "Well 
Field"); 

WHEREAS, JID has operated the Well Field as part of its public water project for the benefit of 
landowners and water users within JID for over 100 years; 

WHEREAS, the Well Field is situated within an area currently under consideration by the 

Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission ("Fresno LAFCo") for inclusion in a proposed 
expanded Sphere of Influence of, and proposed annexation by, the Raisin City Water District ("RCWD"), 
which proposed reorganization (the "Reorganization") is being considered pursuant to the 
LAFCo Statute (Gov. Code §56000 et seq.); 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 56668.3 provides that as to a proposed change or 
organization or reorganization that includes a district annexation, Fresno LAFCo is to consider, among 
other things, "any resolution raising objections to the action that may be filed by an affected agency" 
(Gov. Code §56668.3(a)(4)); 

WHEREAS, the record of the proposed Reorganization reflects RCWD'S intentions to develop 

projects in connection with the annexation that would allegedly provide water recharge and recovery 
services to landowners and water users within RCWD, including the portion that is the subject of the 
proposed annexation; 

U:\Secretary\Documents\JAMES IDIJID resolulions\2025IJID res 2025-01 protestg Rsn Cly WD annextn FINAL.wpd 

James Irrigation District 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 1 of 4 



WHEREAS, further, Fresno LAFCo is to "give great weight to any resolution raising objections to 
the action that is filed by a city or a district," (emphasis added), and "The commission's consideration 
shall be based only on financial or service related concerns expressed in the protest" (Gov. Code 
§56668.3(b)); and 

WHEREAS, JID is an affected agency because the proposed reorganization would result in the 

inclusion in RCWD of land, facilities, and rights that JID has dedicated to a public use and has relied 
upon for over 100 years to satisfy its water supply obligations to its landowners and water users; and 

WHEREAS, JID' s concerns relate to financial and service-related issues. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

Section 1. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Section 2. 

The Board hereby finds as follows: 

The proposed Reorganization could have a detrimental affect on JID' s historical 
Well Field operations. 

The effects of the proposed Reorganization, and particularly the proposed project, 
on JID' s operations are not fully known because those proposals, and particularly 
the proposed project, have not undergone any public engineering or environmental 
review or study; however, such effects would likely include changes to water 
quality, water quantity, place of use, and other issues that would be contrary to 
JID' s financial interests and those of its landowners and water users. Such effects 
would restrict JID' s ability to continue to provide reliable water service to its 
constituents and would simultaneously deprive JID of revenue it derives from 
providing such service. 

The water supplies that RCWD has identified for its proposed project are highly 
speculative in nature, as RCWD does not have the rights to water that is the subject 
of its proposal, RCWD has no plan for acquiring such rights, and even if RCWD 
were to acquire such rights, the water supplies RCWD has identified cannot be 
conveyed to RCWD or the area that is the subject of the proposed annexation 
because it is outside the authorized place of use of such water. 

Based on the foregoing findings, the Board opposes the Reorganization described 
in this Resolution. 

U:\Secretary\Documents\JAMES ID\JID resolutions\2025\JID res 2025-01 protestg Rsn Cly WD annextn FINAL.wpd 

James Irrigation District 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 2 of 4 



Section 3. Staff is authorized to do all things necessary and appropriate to enter this Resolution 
and any related correspondence into the record of the proceedings for the 
Reorganization. 

P ASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the JAMES IRRIGATION 

DISTRICT conducted February 11, 2025, on motion of Director Andrew Groppetti, and seconded by 
Director Robert Motte, was hereby authorized by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 5 (A.Groppetti, R.Motte, R.Barcellos, W.Carvalho, R.Chaney) 
NOES: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 
ABSENT: 0 

ATTEST: 

~~L DonnaY.Ha ~ ecretary 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

U:\Secretary\Documents\JAMES IO\JID resolutions\2025\J ID res 2025-01 protestg Rsn Cly WO annextn FINAL.wpd 

Rileyi:T,f.6 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

James Irrigation District 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 3 of 4 



CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned certifies that she is the Secretary of }AMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT and that the foregoing 
Resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of said District at a meeting thereof, duly and regularly 
held on February 11, 2025, at which meeting a quorum of the Board of Directors was at all times present 
and acting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this 11th day of February, 
2025. 

{ SEAL } 

U:\Secretary\Documents\JAMES IDIJID resolutions\20251.JID res 2025-01 protestg Rsn Cty WD annextn FINAL.wpd 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JAMES IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

James Irrigation District 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 4 of 4 



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1606 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Gerald W. Kinnunen, President 
Jeff Yribarren, Vice-President 
Matthew J. Carvalho, Trustee 

March 10, 2025 

Organized May 9, 1914 
8749 Ninth Street 

Post Office Box 757 
San Joaquin, California 93660-0757 

TRANSMITTED BY E-MAIL TO: bspaunhurst@fresnocountyca.gov 
ORIGINAL WILL NOT BE MAILED 

BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 

FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800 
Fresno, CA 93721 

Manny Amorelli 
Manager & Secretary 

Telephone: (559) 693-4356 
Facsimile: (559) 693-4357 

SUBJECT: PROTESTING RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT PROPOSED ANNEXATION & MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
REVIEW 

Dear Chair Mendes: 

We write to you to express our concerns regarding the Raisin City Water District ("RCWD") proposed 
annexation and draft Municipal Services Review ("MSR") currently under consideration by the 
Fresno LAFCo. The James Irrigation District ("JID") has already notified you of its opposition to the 
proposal, and Reclamation District No. 1606 ("RD 1606") shares in those concerns in almost every 
respect. Those concerns include potential effects on water supplies and water operations that have not 
been studied or addressed. They also include concerns about considerable inaccuracies in boundary 
descriptions and depictions. 

In particular, JID notified you of the considerable limitations placed on RCWD's plan for a project to divert 
Kings River flood flows. RD 1606 has further concerns about that proposed project in that the proposal 
refers to the use of conveyance facilities owned and operated by RD 1606 to facilitate delivery of the 
water that RCWD has identified. In that respect, RD 1606 is an affected public agency with regard to 
the annexation proposal. 

L25-024 



BUDDY MENDES, CHAIRMAN 
FRESNO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION 
March 10, 2025 
Page 2 of 2 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1606 

Please note that no agreement or understanding exists, nor have any discussions been undertaken, 
between RD 1606 and RCWD regarding the use of RD 1606 facilities for the purposes described in the 
proposal. Further, RD 1606 is not inclined to permit the use of its facilities in a manner that would result 
in unauthorized diversions of water to areas outside its authorized place of use. 

Thank you for your consideration of Reclamation District No. 1606's comments and opposition to this 
proposal. 

Sincerely, 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT No. 1606 

~<-Q- _ ~-----

Manny Amorelli 
MANAGER 

L25-024 



RESOLUTION 2025-01 

RESOLUTION 

OFTHE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1606 
PROTESTING RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT ANNEXATION AND 

MID-VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SPHERE OF INFLUENCE 

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the RECLAMATION DISTRICT No. 1606 
("RD 1606"), a California Reclamation District duly organized and existing under and by virtue 
of the provisions of Division 15 of the California Water Code, held on the 21st day of May, 2025, 
the following resolution was adopted: 

WHEREAS, RD 1606 has managed its lands, infrastructure and water rights for the 
benefit and protection of its landowners, tenants, water users, the James Irrigation District and 
City of San Joaquin, all situated within RD 1606 for over 100 years; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of RD 1606 lands and infrastructure are situated within an area 
currently under consideration by the Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission 
("Fresno LAFCo") for inclusion in a Sphere of Influence ("SOI") for Mid-Valley Water District 
("MVWD") and proposed expanded Sphere of Influence of, and proposed annexation by, the 
Raisin City Water District ("RCWD"), which proposed reorganization ("the Reorganization") 
is being considered pursuant to the LAFCo Statute (Gov. Code §56000 etseq.); and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 56668.3 provides that as to a proposed change of 
organization or reorganization that includes a district annexation, Fresno LAFCo is to consider, 
among other things, "any resolution raising objections to the action that may be filed by an 
affected agency" (Gov. Code §56668.3(a)( 4)); and 

WHEREAS, the record of the proposed Reorganization reflects RCWD's intentions to 
develop projects in connection with the annexation that would allegedly provide water recharge 
and recovery services to landowners, tenants and water users within RCWD, including the 
portion that is the subject of the proposed annexation; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno LAFCo is to "give great weight to any resolution raising objections 
to the action that is filed by a city or a district" (emphasis added), and "Thecommission's 
consideration shall be based only on financial or service---related concerns expressed in the 
protest" (Gov. Code §56668.3(b)); and 

U:\Secretary\Documents\RD1606\RD1606 resolutions\2025\RD1606 res 2025_01 protestg raisin cty wd annextn FINAL.docx 

Reclamation District No. 1606 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 1 of 4 



WHEREAS, RD 1606 is an affected agency because the proposed SOI for MVWD 
includes lands that are within the jurisdiction of RD1606; and 

WHEREAS, the SOI could result in the inclusion in MVWD of RD1606 land, facilities, 
infrastructure and rights that RD1606 singularly owns, and has dedicated to a public use and 
has relied upon for over 100 years to satisfy its obligations to its landowners, tenants and water 
users; and 

WHEREAS, RD 1606' s concerns relate to financial and service~related issues. 

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the RECLAMATION 
DISTRICT No.1606 as follows: 

Section I. 

1. The proposed Reorganization could have a detrimental effect on 
RD1606's historical operations/responsibilities. 

2. The effects of the proposed Reorganization, and particularly the proposed 
project, on RD 1606's operations/responsibilities are not fully known 
because those proposals, and particularly the proposed project, have not 
undergone any public engineering or environmental review or study; 
however, such effects would likely include changes to waterquality, 
water quantity, place of use, and other issues that would be contrary to 
RD 1606's financial interests and those of its landowners, tenants, 
member agencies and water users. Such effects would restrict RD 1606's 
ability to continue to provide reliable service to its constituents and 
would simultaneously deprive RD 1606 of revenue it derives from 
providing such service. 

3. The water supplies that RCWD has identified for its proposed project are 
highly speculative in nature, as RCWD does not have the rights to water 
that is the subject of its proposal, RCWD has no plan in place for 
acquiring such rights. Further, even if RCWD were to acquire such 
rights, the water supplies RCWD has identified cannot be conveyed to 
RCWD or the area that is the subject of the proposed annexation because 
it is outside the authorized place of use of such water, and RCWD lacks 
ownership of or access to facilities· that would be necessary to convey 
such water. 

U:\Secretary\Documents\RD1606\RD1606 resolutions\20251RD1606 res 2025_01 protestg raisin cty wd annextn FINAL.docx 

Reclamation District No. 1606 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 2 of 4 



Section 2. Based on the foregoing findings, the RD 1606 Board of Trustees opposes 
the Sphere of Influence and Reorganization described in this Resolution. 

Section 3. Staff is authorized to do all things necessary and appropriate to enter this 
Resolution and any related correspondence into the record of the 
proceedings for the Sphere of Influence and Reorganization. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board 
of Trustees of the RECLAMATION DISTRICT No. 1606 conducted May 21, 2025, on motion of 
Trustee Matthew Carvalho, and seconded by TrusteeJeff Yribarren, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
EXCUSED: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

Manny Amorelli , Secretary 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

3 
0 
0 
0 
0 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT N0.1606 

(M.Carvalho, J.Yribarren, G.Kinnunen) 

&&iJJJ,~AAi~ 
Gerald W. Kinnunen, President 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT N0.1606 

U:\Secretary\Documents\RD1606\RD1606 resolulions\2025\RD1606 res 2025_01 protestg raisin cty wd annextn FINAL.docx 

Reclamation District No. 1606 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 3 of 4 



CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned certifies that he is the Secretary of RECLAMATION DISTRICT No.1606 and that 
the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Board of Trustees of said District at a Special 
Meeting thereof, duly held on May 21, 2025, at which meeting a quorum of the Board of Trustees 
was at all times present and acting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and seal of the Board of Trustees this 2ist day of May, 
2025. 

{ SEAL } 
Manny Amorelli, Secretary 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1606 

U:\Secretary\Documents\RD1606\RD1606 resolutions\2025\RD1606 res 2025_01 protestg raisin cty wd annextn FINAL.docx 

Reclamation District No. 1606 
Resolution 2025-01 

Page 4 of 4 



February 24, 2025 

Jessica Gibson 
Fresno LAFCo 
1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800 
Fresno, CA 93721 

2907 S. Maple Avenue 
Fresno, California 93725-2208 

Telephone: (559) 233-7161 
Fax: (559) 233-8227 

CONVEYANCE. COMMITMENT. CUSTOMER SERVICE. 

RE: Raisin City Water District Reorganization, RO-24-04 
FID's Big Sandridge No. 65, Houghton Waste Basin No. 195, Lower Dry Creek No. 77, 
Southwest Banking Facility No. 583, and Lower Dry Creek Ext. No. 561 

Dear Ms. Gibson: 

The Fresno Irrigation District (FID) has reviewed the Raisin City Water District (District) 
Reorganization RO-24-01 which proposes the annexation of approximately 55,543 acres, of 
which approximately 22,137 acres of those lands are located outside the District's Sphere of 
Influence, into Raisin City Water District, APNs: multiple. FID has the following comments and 
conditions are as follows: 

Areas of Concern 
1. FID has concerns that the Southwest Banking Project (co-owned by FID and the James 

Irrigation District), as well as other FID facilities, are included within the proposed 
annexation area. The mapping does not show the Southwest Banking Project, nor FID 
canals and other facilities in the annexation area, nor are they mentioned or evaluated in 
connection with the proposed annexation. 

2. FID's active Big Sandridge Canal No. 65, Houghton Waste Basin No. 195, Lower Dry 
Creek Canal No. 77, Southwest Banking Facility No. 583, and Lower Dry Creek Ext. 
Canal No. 561 are located within the reorganization area, as shown on the attached FID 
exhibit map. The Southwest Banking Facility No. 583 is co-owned with the James 
Irrigation District. FID operates and maintains these facilities and will retain all 
jurisdiction over them. 

3. FID records indicate Grants of Easement, Deeds, and Rights to Flood associated with 
these facilities along with the rights afforded by California Water Code. 

4. California enacted landmark legislation in 2014 known as the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA). The act requires the formation of local groundwater . 
sustainability agencies (GSAs) that must assess conditions in their local water basins 
and adopt locally-based management plans. The overlying Groundwater Sustainability 

\\fidfs01\E11g\Agencies\LAFCO\Reorga11izatio11\RO-24-04 Raisin City Water District\RO-24-04 RCWD Reorganization - FID 
Comments-Final.doc 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS President RYAN JACOBSEN Vice-President JERRY PRIETO, JR. CHRISTOPHER WOOLF 

GEORGE PORTER GREGORY BEBERIAN General Manager BILL STRETCH 



Jessica Gibson 
Re: RO-24-04 
February 24, 2025 
Page 2 of 4 

Agency is responsible to manage the groundwater basin within the annexation service 
area. 

5. Projects may negatively impact local groundwater supplies or exacerbate subsurface 
outflow from Fl D's service area. Any and all impacts adversely affecting FID must be 
mitigated. 

6. Notice of possible requirements is hereby given and provided below for any future 
project(s) that may impact FID facilities within the annexation area. 

General Comments for Development, Projects, and/or Construction Impacting FID 
Facilities 

1. FID will require that the landowner grant an exclusive easement for the land underlying 
the canal and associated area along the canal required for maintenance pursuant to 
Water Code Section 22425 and FID policy. FID's District Canal Right-of-Way 
Requirements sheet is enclosed for your reference. The proposed easement (width) will 
depend on several factors including: 1) width of canal, 2) height of canal banks, 3) final 
alignment of canal, 4) additional space needed where roads/avenues intersect canal, 
etc. 

2. FID will require the project proponent's Engineer/Land Surveyors use the inside top 
hinge of the canal to define the edge of Fl D's right-of-way such that FID has the 
minimum width of right-of-way along the top of bank as required by FID policy and the 
bank to be built out full width, clear of obstructions, structures, vegetation, etc. to provide 
clear passage and full width at all points along the canal bank. 

3. FID will require project applicants and/or the applicant's engineer meet with FID at their 
earliest convenience to discuss specific requirements, e.g. easement width and 
alignment, right-of-way width and alignment, depth and size, fees, etc. 

4. Typically, for any type of project and/or development that impacts a large open canal or 
is adjacent to, FID requires the project proponent to improve the canal per FID 
requirements, including channel stabilization, freeboard, and maintenance requirements, 
to protect the canal's integrity for the changed setting. FID does not have sufficient 
information to determine what kind of improvements will ultimately be required as part of 
the developmenUproject. The engineers working on the project and Fl D's engineering 
staff must meet to discuss specific requirements. as discussed below. 

5. If a fence is installed between the development/project and open canal, a block/masonry 
wall shall be required. Chain-link and wood fencing will no longer be accepted for urban, 
commercial and industrial developments. 

6. Canal Access - FID will continue to access to its canals and banking facilities. In order 
to access the maintenance road with our larger equipment, FID will require a drive 
approach wide enough to accommodate the equipment. FID requires a 50-feet wide 
drive approach narrowing to a 20 feet wide drive bank per FID Standard Detail No. 1-02. 

\\fidfs0·J\Eng\Agencies\LAFCO\Reorganization\RO-24-04 Raisin City Waler District\RO-24-04 RCWD Reorganization - FID 
Comments-Final.doc 



Jessica Gibson 
Re: RO-24-04 
February 24, 2025 
Page 3 of 4 

7. FID will require its review and approval of all Private and Public facilities that encroach 
into FID's property/easement. If FID allows the encroachment, the Public or Private party 
will be required to enter into the appropriate agreement which will be determined by FID. 

8. FID requires its easements be shown on all maps/plans with proper recording 
information, and that FID be made a party to signing all maps/plans. 

9. FID will require the project proponent to submit for FID's approval a grading and 
drainage plan which shows that the proposed development will not endanger the 
structural integrity of the Canal, or result in drainage patterns that could adversely affect 
FID facilities. 

10. FID will not allow FID owned property or easements to be in common use with public 
utility easements but will in certain instances allow for its property to be in common use 
with landscape easements with an appropriate agreement as required by FID. 

11. FID requires its review and approval of all improvement plans which affect its 
property/easements and canal/pipeline facilities including but not limited to Sewer, 
Water, Street, Landscaping, Dry Utilities, and all other utilities. 

12. All existing trees, bushes, debris, old canal structures, pumps, canal gates, and other 
non- or in-active FID and private structures must be removed within FID's 
property/easement and the project limits. 

13. Footings of retaining walls shall not encroach onto FID property/easement areas. 

14. Trees will not be permitted within FID's property/easement areas. 

15. No large earthmoving equipment (paddle wheel scrapers, graders, excavators, etc.) will 
be allowed within Fl D's easement and the grading contractor will be responsible for the 
repair of all damage to pipelines caused by project proponent and/or its contractor's 
grading activities. 

16. FID is concerned about the potential vibrations caused by construction efforts near 
existing District facilities as it may cause damage to FID's canals, pipelines and culverts. 
Contractor(s) must keep all large equipment, construction material, and soil stockpile 
outside of FID's easement and a minimum of 30 feet away from existing cast-in-place 
concrete pipe. The project proponent and/or its contractor(s) will be responsible for all 
damage caused by construction activities. 

17. The above comments are not to be construed as the only requests FID will have 
regarding this project. FID will make additional comments and requests as necessary as 
the project progresses. 

\\fidfs0HEn~J\Agencies\LAFCO\Reorganization\RO-24-04 Raisin City Water District\RO-24-04 RCWD Reorganization - FID 
Comments-Final.doc 



Jessica Gibson 
Re: RO-24-04 
February 24, 2025 
Page 4 of 4 

Thank you for submitting this for our review. We appreciate the opportunity to review and 
comment on the subject documents for the proposed Reorganization. Should you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me at (559) 233-7161 extension 7103 or 
LKimura@fresnoirrigation.com. 

Sincerely, 

V~h 
Laurence Kimura, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 

Attachments 

\\fidfs011Eng\AgencieslLAFCOIReorganizationlRO-24-04 Raisin City Water District\RO-24-04 RCWD Reorganizat ion - FID 
Comments-Final.doc 



New Stone WO.-

Aliso WO. 
ig Sandriage No. b!:>J.t _ • .. ,,.. 1 - , n 

~ .,rl I 
1
'11 ,;:!> ~ ::offl11 ] {( it'ff 1,4f 7J riii r .. ~JJJ( ~ J II tr' "\I 

I .,,!I .JI _, rl1 !/ '? 
II , 

.v. LJuu, ,daryl __ ~ ;;-1 11
• ~

11
) , V 

r- ~ filr v - -' •~; - JP "" r-( ..L.a.. I . .. 
n ".,41 r - ­

J.: -!lf.e".:::;::::=i!===i= 

~ ~~·;~ 'I' .. 9~1 l ~'FI ii 

~ " _j_ I ..,1 II I • 1 1 I ,, ] ..(rt :, ~ - ·· 
" , I/ I II . '-· I 11 

...__.....___ "' ~
0

"' of Concern r-1 n i 

West/ands 
WO. 

Legend 
= FIDCanal 

'Area of Concern 

Mids Valley 
W.6. 

·,. 

'.James' l.'D. 

FID's Lower Dry Creek No. 75, 
Southwest Banking Facility No. 583, 
.and Lower Dry Creek Ext. No. 561 

- - FID Pipeline ~ Stream Group =llllli!: FID Boundary 
'!l1111 rr 

- Private Canal - - Private Pipeline ~ Other-Creek\River 

=: := Other-Plpehne 
-i- Railroad 

~ Abondoned Conol * * Ab3ndoned Pipeline -- Streets & Hwvs 

Parcel 

~ FMFCDAcqu1red Basins 

LJ FMFC0 Proposed Basins 

Waste No. 195t .. 1 

This map was produced by the Fresno Irrigation District and Is provided 
for reference and Informational purposes only and Is not intended to show 
map scale accuracy or all lnduslve map features, nor for legal purposes. 
FIO makes no statements reg.Jrdlng the accuracy of this map .>s the 
features shown are ln their approximate location. Please contact the FID 
Engineering Dept at (559) 233-7161 for further Information on FJD 
facilities. 

FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT Spatl.;il Rcfcrcm;:c: 
P:nh: \\fidf!.Ol\Enn\AecM!~\LAFCO\ Rcor&,Jt'li~.11:10n\R0•24•0' R.11~1n City W.ltcr I N;ime: NAO 19S3 SmePlant C-lllfornl:t IV FIPS 0404 

0 

I 

;~~Fu 
-' I' ll ,_. ~ 

~;==;,: 

Consolidated 
7.ii 

N 

@ 
7.000 14.000 

I I I I 
Feet 



;;: 

' a:: w 
oz 
G:::::; ;;: 

' a:: 
w oz 

G: =:i 

AS REQUIRED 
BUT NO LESS THAN 20' -

i----- 20' ---.... ,-ii 

1' MAX 

j' 

AT GRADE OR CUT 
SECTION 

STANDARD 

;;: 

' a:: 
MAX w 

oz 
G:::::; 

I 15' . I 

50 C.F.S. & UP 

- 15' MIN. -----j 

FILL SECTION 
STANDARD 

2' MIN. 
SEE NOTE 

AS REQUIRED 
BUT NO LESS THAN 

-- 12' MIN. --1 
~ 

z 
a:: 

w 
oz 
G:::::; 

17' ---

AT GRADE SECTION 
STANDARD 

FILL SECTION 
STANDARD -I I 2' MIN. 

- SEE NOTE 2 

NOTES: 

z 
a:: 

w 
oz 
G:::::; 

,- -- 15' ---

CUT SECTION 
STANDARD 

UNDER 50 C.F.S. 

UNDER 50 C.F.S. 

AS REQUIRED 
BUT NO LESS THAN 

SEE NOTE 3 

1-4• MIN. 

FILL SECTION 
ALTERNATE 

17' 

;;: 

' a:: 
w 

oz 
G:::::; 

1. ALL PRIVATE FACILITIES TO BE LOCATED OUTSIDE FID RIGHT- OF- WAY. 

2. ADD 2 FEET TO EMBANKMENT WIDTH TO ESTABLISH OVERALL RIGHT- OF- WAY WIDTH TO 
ACCOMMODATE GRADER BLADE CLEARANCE. 

3. THE ALTERNATE SECTION CANNOT BE USED IF THE OVERALL WIDTH EXCEEDS THE STANDARD 
WIDTH AND IS PERMITTED ONLY WHEN DISTRICT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUNCTIONS DO 
NOT REQUIRE A STANDARD ROADWAY. 

FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT CANAL RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 
"Your Most Valuable Resource - Water" 1-;;:.,-.,,----- ---; 

DATE: JANUARY 2018 

STANDARD DETAIL 

1- 01 

SHEET 1 OF 1 



NOTES: 

1. DIMENSIONS AND NOTES ARE FOR LAYOUT 
PURPOSES ONLY. A SCALED DRAWING SHALL 
BE PREPARED AND SUBMITTED WITH ALL 
PLAN SETS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 

0 
::u 
~ 
co 
)> 
z 2. DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IN THE 

CANAL AND SHALL BE ROUTED AWAY FROM 
FID PROPERTY /DRIVE BANKS. SLOPE DRIVE 
BANKS 2% AWAY FROM THE CANAL WI TH 
PROVISIONS MADE FOR RAINFALL. RUNOFF 
TO BE CONVEYED TO NEARBY PUBLIC 
STREETS OR DRAINAGE SYSTEM BY 
DRAINAGE SWALES OR OTHER FID 
ACCEPTABLE ALTERNATIVES. 

l A 

i 
3. WITHIN FID EASEMENT/RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA, 

ALL EXISTING TREES, BUSHES, DEBRIS, OLD 
CANAL STRUCTURES, PUMPS, CANAL GA TES, 
AND OTHER NON OR INACTIVE FID AND 
PRIVATE STRUCTURES MUST BE REMOVED. 

4. IF AN ACCESS GA TE IS PERMITTED BY FID, 
GA TE MUST BE PLACED A MINIMUM OF 115 
FEET AWAY FROM ROAD, WHERE DRIVE BANK 
NARROWS TO 20 FEET. 

/ 

I 
/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

I 

j 

5. THREE INCH (3") THICK AGGREGATE BASE 
COMPACTED TO 93% RELATIVE COMPACTION 
SHALL BE REQUIRED AT THE ENTRANCE TO 
EACH DRIVE BANK AS DETERMINED BY FID'S 
ENGINEER. NO REGRIND ASPHALT. 

HEADWALL 

I 
DEPRESSED I MEDIAN 

"OR" UTOUT 

6. DRIVEWAY APPROACH MINIMUM WIDTH TO BE 
35 FEET. 

AVENUE/STREET 
MEDIAN (TYP.) 

STREET 
R/W (TYP.) 

I 
I 

\ 
' 

INSIDE TOP OF J 
CANAL BANK , 

(TYP.) , 

FID EASEMENT/ 
RIGHT- OF- WAY (TYP.) 

GA TE LOCATION 
(IF PERMITTED) 

FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

0 
::u 
~ 
co 
)> 
z 
A 

() 
)> 
z 
)> 
r 

() 
)> 
z 
)> 
r 

' 

2% SLOPE 
(SEE NOTE 2) 

\ 

I 50' 
---(TYP.)-

--r 
1 65' (TYP.) 

)~ 
/ 

/ 50' (TYP.) 

/ 
/ 

r FID R/W. 
- r REFER TO 

-~ FID DETAIL 1- 01 

o l 
::u 
;;;i 
co 
)> 
z 
A 

DRIVE APPROACH - URBAN AREAS 

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

"Your Mos t Valuabl e Resource - Water " t-a:-,-;,,---------1 
DATE: JANUARY 2018 

STANDARD DETAIL 

1-02 

SHEET 1 DF 1 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

February 11, 2025 

Jessica Johnson, LAFCo Counsel 
Bernard Jimenez, Deputy Director of Planning, County of Fresno 
Fresno County Library, Historical Landmarks and Records Commission 
Mid-Valley Water District 
SoCal Gas 
California Highway Patrol, GIS 
David Padilla, Chief, Planning North, Caltrans 
Fresno Westside Mosquito Abatement District 
Fresno Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Fresno County Sheriff's Department 
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 
West Fresno County Red Scale Pest Control District 
Kings River Conservation District 
Fresno County Fire Protection District 
North Central Fire Protection District 
Tranquillity Resource Conservation District 
County Service Area 43 
James Irrigation District 
James Resource Conservation District 
Washington Colony Cemetery District 

Jessica Gibson, LAFCo Analyst II 

SUBJECT: Request for Comments 
Raisin City Water District Reorganization, RO-24-04 

The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is in receipt of a resolution of application 
initiating proceedings for the attached proposal. In accordance with Government Code (GC) 
Section 56386, your agency has been identified as an affected and/or interested agency 
and we are requesting your assistance in reviewing and commenting on this application. 

In accordance with GC Section 56662(a) the Commission may make determinations upon 
the proposal without notice and hearing and may waive protest proceedings entirely if the 
territory is uninhabited and no affected agency has submitted a written demand for notice. 

Please return any comments you have regarding this proposed reorganization by February 
25, 2025. Your assistance is greatly appreciated. Thank you. 

JG 

Attachments: Application, Map, Legal Description, Service Plan, Resolution 

LAFCo Office: 1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800, Fresno, CA 93721 
Phone (559) 600-0604 R jqibson@fresnocountyca.gov 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION 2025-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE RAISIN CITY WATER 
DISTRICT REQUESTING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF 

FRESNO COUNTY UNDERTAKES PROCEEDINGS FOR ANNEXATION NO. 24-01 
AND A CORRESPONDING AMENDMENT TO THE DISTRICT SPHERE OF 

INFLUENCE 

WHEREAS, the owners of certain lands within the area described in Exhibit "A" (attached hereto 
and by reference made a part hereof} totaling approximately 55,543 acres, desire to have said 
land annexed to Raisin City Water District (District) and the District Is amenable to the annexation 
of those certain lands; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 27, 137 acres of those lands are outside of the District's current Sphere 
of Influence; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56654 provides, in part, that a proposal for reorganization 
may be made by the adoption of a resolution of application by the legislative body of an affected 
local agency, and the District is an "affected local agency" within the meaning of Government 
Code section 56654; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of Government Code section 56654(b) do not apply in this instance 
because the reorganization does not involve the exercise of new or different functions or classes 
of services; and 

WHEREAS, the Raisin City Water District desires to Initiate proceedings pursuant to the Cortese­
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Government 
Code section 56000; and 

WHEREAS, the reasons for the proposed annexation are as follows 

1. The annexed properties would have access to District surface water supplies, conserving 
groundwater for use during drought. 

2. Owners of the annexed properties would be represented by the McMullin Area 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency on matters pertaining to the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act. 

3. Owners of the annexed properties would receive legal representation on matters 
concerning both surface water and groundwater, 

WHEREAS, the area proposed for annexation contains agricultural land interspersed with rural 
residences, and no development is proposed, all District facilities are in place to serve the affected 
areas, and the District does not foresee the possibility the annexation in and of itself will result in 
a significant effect on the environment; and 



WHEREAS, the District stipulates that the area proposed for annexation contains more than 
twelve (12) registered voters, and is thus considered "inhabited" as defined in Government Code 
section 56056; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed annexation of lands and corresponding amendment to the District's 
current sphere of Influence will include lands within the Mid-Valley Water District's current sphere 
of influence, but not the current service area for Mid-Valley Water District's services; and 

WHEREAS, the District does not propose any additional terms and conditions be imposed upon 
the change of organization; and 

WHEREAS, notice of intent to adopt this resolution of application has not been given to each 
interested and subject agency pursuant to Government Code section 56654(c); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted Resolution No. 2024-01, regarding this 
matter, said Resolution No. 2024-01 containing information regarding the proposed acreage of 
annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the information contained in said Resolution No. 2024-01 was accurate at the time 
of its adoption, but that has since changed; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to correct the information contained in said Resolution 
No. 2024-01 via a superseding resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Raisin City 
Water District does hereby adopt and approve this Resolution of Application. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors finds that the proposed actions fall 
within the scope and meaning of CEQA Guidelines section 15319, Annexation of Existing 
Facilities and Lots for Exempt Facilities, and that the proposed actions are exempt from additional 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this proposal consists of the annexation of lands ai,u , 
corresponding amendment lo the District's current sphere of influence and does not involve the 
exercise of new or different functions or classes of services within the District. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution is intended to replace and supersede 
Resolution No. 2024-01. 

BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Agency Formation Commission of Fresno County is 
hereby requested to undertake proceedings as provided by the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000 for the areas identified in Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the clerk of the District shall Ille a certified copy of this 
Resolution with the Local Agency Formation Commission of Fresno County's executive officer 
pursuant to Government Code section 56756. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors as a Resolution of the Raisin City Water 



District at a regular Board Meeting held on the 21st day of January, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES: 3 
NOES: 0 

ABSENT: 2.. 

ABSTAIN: 0 

ATTEST~ • 

Ra2l~ecretary 

/lifu. Ji 9 .J? 
R. Gere Gunlund, President 



Service Plan Worksheet 

Applicant local agency name:,-'-R-'-a"'i-'-s"-in'-C=ity'---'-W-'-a""t'-"e-'-r ""D-'-is::ctc.cri-'-c-'-t ____________ _ 

Project size and location: The Project would increase RCWD's SOI by 40,510 acres and 
its service area by 68,916 acres. 

Approved entitlements {i.e., tentative map, site plan review): 
N/A 

Introduction and Purpose 

LAFCo requires that when a proposal for a change of organization or reorganization is submitted, 
the applicant shall submit a plan for providing services within the affected territory. This service 
plan will include information required by Government Code section 56653 and is subject to 
review pursuant to Fresno LAFCo Standards, Policies, and Procedures section 400. Information 
included in the service plan shall include: 

• Enumeration and description of the services to be extended to the affected territory; 

• Level and range of services to be extended; 

• Indication of when services can feasibly be extended to the affected territory; 

• Indication of any improvement of structures, roads, sewer or water facilities, or other 
conditions necessary to provide services; 

• Information on how services will be financed. 

A service plan is necessary for a complete application. A service plan identifies how newly 
annexed territory will be served and by what agency. It provides the basis for the Fresno Local 
Agency Formation Commission's {LAFCo) California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
determination and subsequent determination and action on the requested change of 
organization or reorganization. As an information document, the service plan will be distributed 
by LAFCo with the proposal's request for comments. As a public document, a service plan is also 
available to property owners, other local agencies, and interested parties who may have plans or 
proposals underway in the immediate vicinity of a proposed change of organization or 
reorganization. 

In order to complete the Service Plan Worksheet, you should be familiar with the following: 
• Agency utilities and service system levels; 

• Agency public services - police, fire, parks, schools, etc.; 

• Agency finances - annual budget process, audited financial statements, grant funding 
opportunities, rate or fee schedule; 

• Any supportive information referenced in the questionnaire; and 

• The location of any Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community {DUC) within 300 feet of 
the affected territory. 



Project Description 

Fresno LAFCo 
Service Plan Worksheet 

Page 2 of 4 

Provide information regarding the location and size of the territory to be served, specific 
information or circumstances, and description of agency's actions relating to the proposal. 

Service Provider Description 

For the following section, check all current/planned service providers to the territory. Indicate 
the name of the service provider next to the specific service. Utilize the Fresno LAFCo website 
to complete this section. The maps page (click here) will determine other agencies that provide 
different services to individuals within your agency's service area. The MSR page (click here) 
provides Commission approved MSRs that elaborate on the services provided by each agency. 

Current Service Providers: 

Ii] Domestic water Private wells 

Ii] Wastewater collection_S_e_p_ti_·c ___ _ 

0 Wastewater treatment. _____ _ 

0 Streets. ___________ _ 

0 Solid waste collection. _____ _ 

Ii] Fire protection,_F_C_F_P_D _____ _ 

Ii] Law enforcement County Sheriff 

0 Parks and recreation ______ _ 

D Transit. ___________ _ 

0 Storm drainage. ________ _ 

0 Street lighting, ________ _ 

0 Schools. __________ _ 

0 Any other services - list and describe 
similar types of services provided to the 
territory. 

Planned Service Providers: 

Ii] Domestic water Private Wells 

0 Wastewater collection_S_e_p_t_ic ___ _ 

0 Wastewater treatment. _____ _ 

D Streets. __________ _ 

0 Solid waste collection. _____ _ 

Ii] Fire protection,_F_C_F_P_D _____ _ 

Ii] Law enforcement County Sheriff 

0 Parks and recreation ______ _ 

0 Transit __________ _ 

0 Storm drainage ________ _ 

0 Street lighting, ________ _ 

D Schools __________ _ 

0 Any other services - list and describe 
similar types of services provided to the 
territory. 



Fresno LAFCo 
Service Plan Worksheet 

Page 3 of 4 

Please provide a service level description for each checked service above. Include type of 
infrastructure or public facilities, existing conditions, service capacity, and planned 
improvements. 

Example: 

• Wholesale water supply: The City of Smithville owns a public water system that has 4,000 
customer connections. The City's water system has capacity to service 5,000 connections. 
The City's obtains its water resources from both surface water and groundwater pumping. 
The City has a contractual agreement with FID for 1,000 acre-feet of surface water 
annually delivered via Friant-Kern Canal. The City also annually pumps an estimated 7,600 
acre-feet from its eight wells located throughout your agency limits. Well records for eight 
City wells indicate that groundwater levels have declined an average of 0.35 foot per year 
since 1960. Upon annexation, the City's water system is expanded consistent with the 
adopted water system standards. 



Financial Information 

Fresno LAFCo 
Service Plan Worksheet 

Page 4 of 4 

Describe the agency's method to finance infrastructure and capital improvements. 
• Property tax exchange agreement 
• Service fees 
• Development impact fees 
• Community Facilities District 
• State grant funding 
• Special assessments 

The District is primarily financed by annual property assessments charged to all 
landowners within the District. The District collects an annual land assessment of $0.75 
per acre with a minimum assessment of $2 per parcel. According to the District, annual 
land assessments are collected by the District and are used to provide indirect services 
through cooperative agreements with other local agencies. The District uses funding 
from land assessments to administer District operations, fund the development of future 
District recharge projects, conduct groundwater studies, and advocate and represent 
landowners within the District. The District does not presently charge fees for any of 
these services outside of its assessments. 

In addition, the District applies for grant funding through the State when applicable. 

Additional Supporting Information 

Please provide any additional relevant information you believe may help LAFCo describe services 
and improvements for land proposed to be annexed, reorganized, or detached. 

• Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) of 2014, agency's interaction with 
local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA) 

The District is a participating member of the McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (MAGSA) pursuant to SGMA. MAGSA was formed as a Joint Powers Authority 
that is comprised of the County of Fresno, RCWD, and the Mid-Valley Water District. 
The MAGSA Board is the governing and legislative body for the McMullin Area 
Groundwater Sustainability Area and two members represent the RCWD area. The 
proposed annexation and SOI amendment would make the District's service area and 
SOI coterminous with the boundaries of MAGSA. 
The District's primary objective is to represent the interests of District landowners and 
work to achieve groundwater sustainability in the Lower Kings Basin of Fresno County. 

G :\LA FCo Projects \Service Plan \Agency_ ServiceP Ian_ Worksheet_ DRAFT_ OF .docK 



RAISIN CITY WATER DISTRICT SERVICE PLAN WORKSHEET 

DOMESTIC WATER: 

The subject properties are currently served by private domestic and irrigation wells. Each 
landowner is responsible for providing their own water via groundwater wells. 

The District is a member of the McMullln Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(MAGSA). In accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), 
GSAs located in areas in critical overdraft are required to adopt Groundwater 
Sustainability Plans by 2020. The proposed SOI amendment and annexation would make 
RCWD's SOI and service area coterminous with the boundaries of MAGSA. The proposal 
would allow the annexed land to receive services from RCWD. RCWD currently provides 
its landowners with representation, advocacy and information services regarding 
Statewide water policy, water rights, new State legislation, and other issues affecting local 
agricultural irrigation. 

WASTEWATER COLLECTION: 

N/A 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT: 

N/A 

STREETS: 

N/A 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION: 

N/A 

FIRE PROTECTION AND LAW ENFORCEMENT: 

The subject area is currently provided service by the Fresno County Sheriff's Department 
and Fresno County Fire Protection District. No change would be made. 

PARKS AND RECREATION: 

N/A 

STORM DRAINAGE: 

N/A 

STREET LIGHTING: 



N/A 

SCHOOLS: 

N/A 



/7 
\.. " ...____,_ 

-

0 
James I. D. Well (Well location data 
from 2021 Water Management Plan) 

-- James I.D. Canal 

-- James I.D. Pipeline 

00 James I.D. Well Field Easement 

[:] Area to be Annexed to Raisin City W.D. 

C Existing Raisin City W.D. -.. Existing Raisin City W.D. SOI 

L.....o..:...:J Exisitng and Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. I I · I , ! , /, ' 11:r. , . , \ I , ... , ' 

CJ Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

L--7 Existing Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

~ 0 1 2 

~ Miles 

1/3/2025 G:\R.alsln City W.itcr District· 1116\111623002•Arincx.inon\400 GIS\M,'.!O\MSR_m,1ps\MSR_m4ps.,1pnc 

Existing and Proposed Service Area and SOI 
Raisin City Wat er Dist rict 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



From: Ramirez, Augustine
To: Gibson, Jessica
Cc: Jimenez, Bernard
Subject: FW: Raisin City Water District Reorganization, RO-24-04
Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 11:11:57 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image001.png
image003.png

Good morning Ms. Gibson,
 
The County of Fresno (County) appreciates the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed
Raisin City Water District (RCWD) Reorganization Project (Project). The Project as proposed, seeks
to annex additional lands into and expand the Sphere of Influence (SOI) of the RCWD and reduce the
SOI of the Mid-Valley Water District to accommodate the annexation.
 
The lands being proposed for annexation are currently represented on the McMullin Area
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MAGSA) by the County. At the time MAGSA was formed in 2016,
there was no other public agency, besides the County, that had groundwater management or land
use authority overlying these lands that qualified under the Sustainable Groundwater Management
Act to act as a Groundwater Sustainability Agency. The County has actively participated on the
MAGSA Board of Directors since its creation.
 
The Project, by incorporating these adjacent lands into its service area, will expand RCWD’s ability
and responsibility to manage groundwater resources for the area. The RCWD SOI expansion as
proposed appears to be coterminous with the proposed annexation boundary with the exception of
a portion for Reclamation District 1606 that is currently represented by the James Irrigation District
Groundwater Sustainability Agency.
 
The County supports the Project as proposed and has no further comments at this time.
 

Augustine C. Ramirez | Division Manager
Department of Public Works and Planning
Water and Natural Resources Division
Community Development Division
2220 Tulare St. 6th Floor Fresno, CA 93721
Main Office: (559) 600-4022 Direct: (559) 600-4266
How are we doing?

 
 
From: Jimenez, Bernard <BJimenez@fresnocountyca.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 12:58 PM
To: Ramirez, Augustine <auramirez@fresnocountyca.gov>; Jimenez, Roy
<RJJimenez@fresnocountyca.gov>
Subject: FW: Raisin City Water District Reorganization, RO-24-04

 
 
 

Ii] 

mailto:auramirez@fresnocountyca.gov
mailto:jgibson@fresnocountyca.gov
mailto:BJimenez@fresnocountyca.gov
https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/county-administrative-office
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/customersurveypwp

LAFCO













 

 

D. PAUL STANFIELD, President ∙ CHRIS M. KAPHEIM, Vice President ∙ DAVID M. MERRITT, General Manager ∙ BINU BRAR, Auditor 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Division I, CHRIS KAPHEIM, Dinuba  Division II, MASARU YOSHIMOTO, Fowler  Division III, ANTHONY NONINI, Fresno  Division IV, MARK McKEAN, Riverdale  Division V, D. PAUL STANFIELD, Hanford 

Division VI, CEIL W. HOWE, JR., Stratford  Division VII, JENIFER MARSHALL, Sanger 

OFFICERS 
CHRIS KAPHEIM, President  ANTHONY NONINI, Vice President  DAVID M. MERRITT, General Manager  BINU BRAR, Auditor 

Via Electronic Transmission 
 

May 12, 2025 
 

Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

c/o Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 

1401 Fulton St, Suite 800 

Fresno, CA 93721 
 

Re:  Comments on Raisin City Water District MSR – Omission of KRCD Infrastructure and 

Coordination  

 

Dear Mr. Spaunhurst and Commissioners, 

 

On behalf of the Kings River Conservation District (KRCD), I am writing to express concerns 

regarding the recently released Municipal Service Review (MSR) for the Raisin City Water District 

(RCWD). KRCD has long played a regional role in flood management and infrastructure development 

in the Kings Subbasin. Our work is publicly funded, and our facilities are designed to serve multiple 

agencies across jurisdictional boundaries. 

KRCD was surprised to find that the report omits under “Present and Planned Capacity of Public 

Services” critical infrastructure and ongoing projects within RCWD’s service area that are managed 

by KRCD. Most notably, the McMullin On-Farm Flood Capture and Recharge Project Phase 1 and 

associated flood control easements are entirely absent from the review, despite representing a 

significant regional infrastructure investment. 

These facilities serve vital roles concerning flood control and long-term regional planning that are 

central to KRCD’s operational responsibilities. An accurate MSR must reflect both current 

infrastructure and the entities responsible for its operation. Their exclusion from the MSR presents an 

incomplete picture of available services, infrastructure interdependencies, and future planning efforts 

within the area. The MSR also fails to acknowledge that any future expansion of this project will 

require KRCD’s involvement and agreement to use the Phase 1 facilities. Despite this, RCWD has not 

engaged with KRCD regarding how its projects will rely on Phase 1 infrastructure. 

This omission creates an incomplete and potentially misleading picture of available public services 

and planned infrastructure in the District. 

We respectfully request that Fresno LAFCO update the MSR to accurately reflect KRCD’s 

infrastructure and responsibilities within RCWD’s boundaries, and that our agency be engaged in 

future reviews and updates to ensure coordination and accuracy.

Kings River Conservation District 

4886 East Jensen Avenue 
Fresno, California 93725 

Tel: 559.237.5567 
Fax: 559.237.5560 

www.krcd.org 
@kingsrivercd 



M
r. B

rian
 Sp

au
n

h
u

rst an
d

 F
resn

o L
A

F
C

O
 

M
ay

 12, 2025 

P
age 2 

 

 

T
h

an
k

 y
o

u
 fo

r y
o

u
r atten

tion
 to th

is m
atter. W

e rem
ain

 availab
le to

 p
rov

id
e ad

d
ition

al in
fo

rm
ation

 

an
d

 to
 assist w

ith
 a m

ore com
p

reh
en

sive u
n

d
erstan

d
in

g of th
e in

frastru
ctu

re an
d

 services th
at im

p
act 

th
e R

aisin
 C

ity
 W

ater D
istrict. 

Sin
cerely

, 

 

 
 D

avid
 M

. M
erritt 

G
en

eral M
an

ager 

 D
M

M
/cm

 

 C
c: Jessica G

ib
so

n
 

  L
25

-0050 

F
ile: 300.05.04.03 

 
 

V T1 t 



KINGS RIVER WATER ASSOCIATION 
OFFICERS 

RYAN JACOBSEN 

4888 E. JENSEN A VENUE 
FRESNO, CA 93725 

TELEPHONE: (559) 266-0767 
FAX: (559) 266-3918 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

JERRY HALFORD 
ALTA ID CHAIRMAN 

JOHN MENDES 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 

JERRY HALFORD 
SECRETARY/TREASURER 

STEVEN HAUGEN 
ASSISTANTSECRETARY/TREASURER 

STEVEN HAUGEN 
WATERMASTER 

JOSEPH D. HUGHES 
ATTORNEY 

KEVIN JOHANSEN 
CONSUL TANT ENGINEER 

Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Director 

May 12, 2025 

Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
1401 Fulton Street, Suite 800 
Fresno, CA 93721 

RE: LAFCo File No. MSR-24-01/RSOI-211 

Mr. Spaunhurst: 

PHIL DESATOFF 
CONSOLIDATED ID 

BILL STRETCH 
FRESNO ID 

SCOTT SILLS 
KINGS COUNTY UNITS 

MARK MADDOX 
NORTH FORK AREA 

JEOFWYRICK 
TULARE LAKE AREA 

Kings River Water Association (KRWA) submits the following comments to Fresno Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) regarding LAFCO's May 14, 2025 public hearing on 
the "Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Raisin City Water District 
(LAFCo File No. MSR-24-01/RSOI-211)." KRWA represents all entities with rights to divert and 
use water from the Kings River. For nearly a century, KRWA has administered those rights under 
licenses from the State Water Resources Control Board, court decrees, and long-standing 
agreements among its member units. Because KR WA oversees how Kings River water is allocated 
and used, any claim that a project will divert that water, particularly without coordination or legal 
authority, falls directly within KR WA' s area of responsibility. 

As a threshold matter, KRW A requests that LAFCO table and continue this public 
hearing to its next regularly scheduled meeting in June. The issues raised by this service 
review are significant and complex involving our member units and communities throughout 
the KRW A service area. More time is requested to coordinate and conduct a thorough 
review. 

If, however, LAFCO is disinclined to table and continue this public hearing, KRWA offers 
the following comments regarding Raisin City Water District's (District) 2025 Municipal Service 
Review (MSR): 

Simply put, KRWA respectfully requests that LAFCO direct its staff to revise the 
MSR to remove any reference to or reliance upon the Kings River as a prospective water 
source for the District or the McMullin On-Farm Recharge Phase 2 Project. 

The District's assertion that it will "divert up to 500 cfs of Kings River flood flows" is not 
just inaccurate; it is a legally impossible claim undermining the foundation of the MSR's analysis. 
The significance of this misstatement in the MSR cannot be overstated. A project's feasibility 

THIS ASSOCIATION CONSISTS OF IRRIGATION DISTRICTS AND CORPORATIONS EMBRACING AN AREA OF 1,100,000 ACRES. ITS PURPOSES ARE TO DISTRIBUTE 
THE WATER OF KINGS RIVER IN ACCORDANCE WITH A SCHEDULE MUTUALLY AGREED UPON AND TO SAVE AND PROTECT THE RIGHTS OF ITS MEMBERS. 



depends in large part on its access to a lawful and reliable water supply. The claim that the District 
will dive1i 500 cfs of Kings River floodwater forms a foundational assumption supporting its 
proposed services and planning area expansion. Because no such supply is available, neither 
legally nor physically, the MSR' s conclusions regarding future service adequacy and infrastructure 
planning are materially misleading. 

In light of the statutory directive in Government Code section 56430(a)(3) to evaluate the 
"[p ]resent and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure 
needs," the absence of a valid, lawful water supply renders the MSR noncompliant. LAFCO cannot 
reasonably conclude that services are adequate or that the District's proposed expansion 1s 
suppmiable when it rests on a water source that is unavailable under California water law. 

The District highlights in its MSR the "McMullin On-Farm Recharge Phase 2 Project" 
(Project) as a "future project." (See MSR, p. II-11.) In doing so, the District claims that the Project 
will "dive1i up to 500 cubic feet per second [ of] Kings River flood flows to agricultural land with 
high infiltration capacity soils." (Ibid.) This is incorrect. 

The State Water Resources Control Board has recognized the Kings River as a Fully 
Appropriated Stream, meaning there is no additional water available for appropriation by any 
paiiy, including McMullin Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the proponent of the Project, 
or the District. Despite the clear implications for Kings River water rights and operations, KR WA 
was not contacted in the preparation of the MSR. This lack of coordination further unde1mines the 
credibility of the proposal and raises procedural concerns regarding transparency and accuracy in 
LAFCO's review process. 

An MSR is not a platform for speculative projects or unce1iain infrastructure plans. It must 
evaluate existing and planned services based on real-world feasibility and lawful access to 
necessary resources. Where a proposed project relies on a water supply that is legally unavailable, 
the MSR becomes not only inaccurate but misleading to LAFCO and the public. The purpose of 
an MSR is to "dete1mine the adequacy of municipal services being provided by a local agency" 
and allow LAFCO, among others, to "gain an understanding of the services provided and to 
identify opportunities for cooperation and greater efficiency among services providers." (MSR, p. 
I-1.) To achieve this purpose, the MSR must contain accurate information. Accordingly, KRWA 
respectfully requests that LAFCO direct staff to revise the MSR to remove any reference to or 
reliance upon the Kings River as a prospective water source for the District or the McMullin On­
Farm Recharge Phase 2 Project. Inclusion of this legally unavailable supply in the MSR 
unde1mines the integrity of the review and may give rise to reliance by third parties on inaccurate 
or unlawful assumptions. 

For these reasons, KRWA urges LAFCO to correct the MSR before moving forward. A 
flawed document misstating legal realities, lacks coordination with affected agencies, and relies 
on unavailable water supplies cannot support a sound planning decision. We appreciate the 
oppmiunity to provide this input and ai·e available to discuss these issues fu1iher at your 
convemence. 

Sincerely, 

Steven Haugen, Watermaster 



July 1, 2025 
 
Fresno Local Agency FormaƟon Commission 
1401 Fulton St., Suite 800 
Fresno, CA  93721 
 
Subject: Request to Postpone the Vote to Annex the White Area into Raisin City Water District 

LAFCO Commissioners, 

As a stakeholder in the Raisin City Water District (RCWD), I am wriƟng to formally express my opposiƟon 
to the upcoming vote at the July 9, 2025 Commissioners Hearing MeeƟng. This annexaƟon raises serious 
liability, water sustainability, and equity concerns for exisƟng RCWD stakeholders, parƟcularly those 
farming smaller 20–40 acre parcels in the district. While I strongly oppose the annexaƟon proposal that 
is the subject of that vote, the most Ɵmely concern is that your vote on this proposal will be premature, 
and can be beƩer informed by allowing stakeholders more Ɵme to fully and reasonably demonstrate the 
serious and consequenƟal risks associated with the proposed annexaƟon 

1. Unfair RepresentaƟon and Voice DiluƟon 

The white area is largely composed of consolidated agricultural holdings—some over 640-acre blocks—
owned by large-scale operaƟons. Their inclusion into RCWD would disproporƟonately shiŌ poliƟcal and 
voƟng influence, effecƟvely drowning out the voice of exisƟng small- to mid-size growers who have 
farmed in Raisin City for generaƟons. 

The erosion of the RCWD’s long standing community-centered governance leaves local legacy farmers 
with a shrunken voice in decisions that directly affect their ability to farm. 

2. Increased Liability Due to James ID Wells 

The proposed annexaƟon increases legal and hydrological liability due to the inclusion of the James 
IrrigaƟon District’s well field. James ID is currently pumping significant quanƟƟes of groundwater from 
within MAGSA’s hydrological boundary, yet is not under MAGSA or RCWD’s jurisdicƟon or enforcement 
authority. Further, James ID is currently in a lawsuit due to their conƟnued refusal to comply with 
MAGSA’s Export Policy. This directly increases landowner liability to SGMA. 

By annexing the white area, RCWD stakeholders become responsible for water balance in a zone where 
another agency extracts groundwater. This could result in reduced pumping allocaƟons for compliant 
RCWD growers as a means to offset over-pumping by James ID. It also exposes us to regulatory or 
enforcement acƟons if sustainability targets cannot be met due to outside pumping we cannot control. 

These legal concerns are further worsened by the recent court ruling denying MAGSA’s authority over 
James ID wells, essenƟally exposing stakeholders to addiƟonal liability while lessening their ability to 
influence the decision-making process. A California Superior Court recently ruled that MAGSA does not 
have control over James IDs wellfield, located in the proposed annexaƟon area. 

 



3. No Viable Surface Water Supply 

Unlike other districts, RCWD and MAGSA do not have access to surface water or flood water 
infrastructure capable of supplemenƟng groundwater demands in the proposed annexaƟon area. This is 
especially problemaƟc because no new surface water supplies are being proposed. Without recharge 
water, annexaƟon increases the strain on an already over-draŌed basin, magnifying the risk that our 
exisƟng pumping will be insufficient. 

This recipe for long-term unsustainability sets up RCWD’s small farmers for serious economic hardship. 
Without more Ɵme to explore groundwater replenishment demands, this annexaƟon puts exisƟng 
farmers in serious jeopardy of insufficient water supply. 

 4. Oil Field ContaminaƟon Risks 

There is an acƟve oil field in the white area that raises serious quesƟons about water quality degradaƟon 
risks—one of SGMA’s six undesirable results. Any future contaminaƟon events or legacy polluƟon from 
oil operaƟons in the annexed area will become a District liability. 

AnnexaƟon proponents have not provided a comprehensive environmental risk assessment addressing 
potenƟal contaminaƟon leaching into groundwater, the risk to adjacent domesƟc wells, or future liability 
exposure to RCWD. 

For the reasons stated above, I respecƞully request that RCWD postpone any votes on annexaƟon in 
RCWD unƟl: 

1. A full, transparent stakeholder impact analysis is performed, 

2. Water quality risks and pumping impacts are independently assessed, 

3. VoƟng equity protecƟons for exisƟng RCWD stakeholders are addressed, 

4. James ID’s pumping in the annexaƟon zone is brought under enforceable control, or excluded. 

With more Ɵme to present informaƟon to the Commissioners, we are confident we can find a soluƟon 
that does not economically impact exisƟng small farmers, while allowing larger operaƟons to manage 
their resource requirements. 

Sincerely, 

 

Jerry Rai 
Landowner / Stakeholder 
Raisin City Water District 



  
 

FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

 
DATE: July 9, 2025 
 
TO:  Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
FROM: Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 
 
BY:  Jessica Gibson, LAFCo Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval – “Raisin City Water District Reorganization” A proposed 

annexation of approximately 55,543 acres to the Raisin City Water District for 
territory generally located generally located in northwest central Fresno County.  

 (LAFCo File No. RO-24-04) 
 
 Applicant: Raisin City Water District 
 

Landowners/Parties of Real Interest: 747 landowners 
 
ATTACHMENT A: Proposal Information 
ATTACHMENT B: Proposed Raisin City Water District Annexation Map 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval by Taking the Following Actions: 
 
Action 1:  
 

A. Acting as Responsible Agency pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
Guidelines, find that prior to approving the proposed reorganization, the environmental 
effects of the Proposal as shown in the CEQA documents prepared, adopted, and 
submitted by the Lead Agency, were reviewed and considered, and determine these 
documents to be adequate pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15096. 

 
Action 2: 
 

A. Find that the proposed annexation is consistent with LAFCo Policies and the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”). 

 
B. Find pursuant to CKH and information in the record that: 

a. The territory is inhabited pursuant to Gov. Code § 56046; and 
b. Not all landowners or registered voters have consented to the reorganization. 

 
C. Assign the distinctive short form designation “Raisin City Water District Reorganization”.   

 



  
 

2 

D. Find that the notice mailed on April 23, 2025, was given to all landowners and registered 
voters within the affected territory, as well as within 300 feet of the affected territory, 
disclosed that there is potential for the extension or continuation of any previously 
authorized charge, fee, assessment, or tax by the local agency in the affected territory, 
and that the Commission intends to waive protest proceedings pursuant to Government 
Code section 56663 unless written opposition is received before the conclusion of the 
Commission proceedings on this proposal. 
 

E. This Commission’s action approving this proposal shall expire one year from the date of 
this resolution unless all proceedings are complete including condition compliance and 
a Certificate of Completion issued by the Executive Officer. 

 
F. If written opposition to the proposal was received and not withdrawn prior to the 

conclusion of the hearing, approve the proposal subject to the requirements of the CKH, 
the 30-day reconsideration period, and compliance with all of the above conditions, and 
direct staff to set a protest hearing pursuant to the requirements of CKH (Government 
Code section 57000 et seq.). 
 

G. Nothing in LAFCo’s determination authorizes the transfer of ownership of any third party 
facilities, James Irrigation District (“JID”), Fresno Irrigation District (“FID”), Reclamation 
District No. 1606 (“RD 1606”) or any other entities, to RCWD. 

 
Action 3: Conditions of Approval 
 

A. Pursuant to Fresno LAFCo Policy 108-07, the Executive Officer shall record the 
approved application if all conditions have been satisfied and once, he or she has 
determined that the facts pertaining to the application during the time of recording are 
materially similar to those facts considered by the Commission when the application was 
approved.  

 
B. Raisin City Water District’s (“RCWD”) execution of an Indemnification Agreement as 

described in the staff report for Agenda Item No. 10 (LAFCo File No. MSR-24-01/RSOI-
211). 

 
C. Prepare an MSR Update or Addendum with the inclusion of a Master Service Plan before 

additional powers are activated per RCWD’s principal act authority. 
 
a. Upon pursuit of additional activation of powers enumerated in the RCWD’s 

principal act, the District will conduct CEQA analysis according to State guidelines 
and amend the MSR to provide a service plan for providing water services, which 
may include administration of a Proposition 218 election or other fee, charge, or 
ratemaking procedures consistent with the California Constitution to fund water 
projects.  

  
b. This condition is not subject to Action 2(E). 
 



  
 

3 

 
Executive Summary 
 
On May 13, 2024, RCWD submitted an application to Fresno LAFCo for annexation of 
approximately 55,543 acres. However, prior to the annexation proceeding, an expansion of the 
Sphere of Influence (“SOI”) must be approved and the Municipal Service Review (“MSR”) must 
be determined to be adequate. At present, the District is authorized by LAFCo to provide the 
following services: levying and collecting assessments and standby charges, executing 
agreements, entering into contracts, and engaging in planning activities related to the distribution 
of water for irrigation purposes. Agricultural water users within the District primarily rely on 
groundwater pumping for irrigation. The District’s primary purpose is to improve groundwater 
conditions throughout the Raisin City area. 
 
Proposal/Land Use  
 

• The proposal consists of the annexation of approximately 55,543 acres.  
• Information related to the proposal’s affected territory, land use, proposed development, 

special districts, surrounding areas, and existing/proposed services can be found on 
Attachment A. 

• The territory is inhabited. 
• The affected territory is within the RCWD SOI. (Attachment B) 

 
Environmental Determination 
 
The RCWD, acting as “Lead Agency” under CEQA, determined that the proposal is categorically 
except pursuant to CEQA guidelines section 15319 – Annexation of Existing Facilities and Lots 
for Exempt Facilities. On April 5, 2024, RCWD filed a Notice of Exemption with the Fresno 
County Clerk (#E202410000093). 
 
As a “Responsible Agency” pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, the Commission is required to 
independently review and consider the environmental review for the proposed annexation.  
LAFCo finds that the proposal does not have the potential to result in a significant effect on the 
environment, and that the annexation is not subject to CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
section 15319. Therefore, the proposal is exempt from environmental review.  
 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15096(i), if the Commission determines that these 
documents are adequate, a Notice of Determination will be prepared and filed with the County 
of Fresno Clerk's office in compliance with Public Resources Code section 21152.    
 
Costs and Other Changes Affecting Residents or Landowners  
 
RCWD may impose fees or assessments on lands within its boundaries. 
 
Agencies and Individuals Submitting Comments 
 

• Kevin Tsuda, Environmental Health Specialist II, Fresno Co. Dept. of Public Health 



  
 

4 

• Cesar Gonzalez, IT Analyst, Fresno County Elections Department 
• Bryant VanderVelde, Supervising Cadastral Tech., Fresno Co. Assessor’s Office  
• Augustine Ramirez, Division Manager, Fresno Co. Dept. of Public Works & Planning 
• Bernard Jimenez, Assistant Director, Fresno Co. Public Works & Planning 
• Laurence Kimura, P.E., Chief Engineer, Fresno Irrigation District 
• Riley Chaney, Board of Directors President, James Irrigation District 
• Manny Amorelli, General Manager, Reclamation District No. 1606 & James Irrigation 

District 
• David M. Merritt, General Manager, Kings River Conservation District 
• Steven Haugen, Watermaster, Kings River Water Association 

 
Territory Boundaries  
 
The boundaries of the proposed annexation are definite and certain, and the Fresno County 
Assessor’s Office has determined that the map and legal description are adequate to file/record 
with the Fresno County Recorder’s Office.   
 
Registered Voter Data  
 
The Fresno County Election’s Office reported that there are 514 registered voters in the affected 
territory.   
 
Compliance with the Requirements of CEQA (Original Proposal) 
 

Lead Agency:  Raisin City Water District 
Level of Analysis: Exempt 
Finding: Exception (see Environmental Documents at www.fresnolafco.org under the 
LAFCo Commission Hearing Quicklink in the July 9, 2025 file). 
 

Individuals and Agencies Receiving this Report 
 

 Jessica Johnson, LAFCo Counsel 
 Randy Hopkins, P.E., Manager – Engineer, Provost & Pritchard  
 R. Gere Gunlund, Director and Board President, Raisin City Water District 
 Laurie Sales, Senior Project Administrator, Provost & Pritchard  
 Bernard Jimenez, Assistant Director, Fresno Co. Public Works & Planning 
 Manny Amorelli, District Manager, Reclamation District No. 1606 & James Irrigation 

District 
 Ariel Namvar, Board President, Mid-Valley Water District 
 David Merritt, General Manager, Kings River Conservation District 
 Laurence Kimura, P.E., Chief Engineer, Fresno Irrigation District 
 Steven Haugen, Watermaster, Kings River Water Association 
 Jerry Rai, Interested Party 

 
 
 



  
 

5 

 
Attachment A 

 
PROPOSAL INFORMATION 
 
1. Affected Territory 
 

Acreage:   55,543 
Current Land Use: Agricultural 
Number of Residences/ Population: 1,928 
Registered Voters: 514 
Assessor Parcel Number(s): 801 parcels 

 
2. Proposed Development – The proposal does not involve the exercise of new or different 

functions or classes of service within the district. The affected territories are not proposed 
for development. 

 
3. Surrounding Territory – Agricultural and rural residential  
 
4. Existing Service Agencies and Proposed Service Changes 
 

Service Existing Service Change 
Water Private Wells No Change 
Sewer Septic No Change  
Fire Protection Fresno County Fire  No Change 

 
5. Cities and Districts Included Wholly or Partially Within the Affected Territory 
 

• Fresno County 
• CSA 35 
• Fresno County Library District 
• North Central Fire Protection District 
• Lower San Joaquin Levee District 
• Fresno Westside Mosquito Abatement District 
• Kerman Unified School District 
• State Center Community College District  
• Fresno Mosquito and Vector Control District 
• Fresno Irrigation District  
• West Fresno Red Scale Pest Control District 
• Fresno County Fire Protection District 
• Kings River Conservation District 
• Tranquillity Resource Conservation District 
• Golden Plains Unified School District 
• West Hills Community College District 
• Mendota Unified School District 



Portion not included in proposed 
Mid-Valley WD or Raisin City WD SOI or ~ 

Service Area boundaries. 

-- James I.D. Conveyance Facilities 

-

Southwest Banking Facility No. 
583 (Fresno I.D. and James I.D.) 

D Fresno I.D. Pond 

- Fresno I.D. Flood Rights Area 

James I.D. Well Field Easement 

5Z2l (As Recorded in Book 6, Page 1 of 
Fresno County Official Records) 

c::J McMullin On-Farm Project 

- Proposed Raisin City W.D. 

- Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. 

: : ~ Proposed Raisin City W.D. SOI 

D Proposed Mid-Valley W.D. SOI 

D Kings River Conservation District 

LJ Fresnol.D. 

A-,_ 0-==2 

~ Miles 

,. 

S/,t/10211.:\ .... lJMI Cit-/ WltU Dimitt· 1111\11111MJll2·Al'lt>u.Otioll\,tODC.IS\MO~\MY._ffl.lpt\MU_"'Op, .,,_ 

Proposed Service Area and SOI 
Raisin City Water District 

PROVOST& 
PRITCHARD 



  

FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
  

 AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 
 
 
DATE: July 9, 2025 
 
TO:  Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
FROM: Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: CALAFCO Status Update.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File.  
 
Background 
 
At its June 11, 2025, Commission Hearing, the Executive Officer provided an update on the 
status of CALAFCO. While small updates are typically provided during Executive Officer 
comments, there are several items that might require Commission input and/or direction. 
 
This report is to serve as a formal update on the status of membership, significant changes 
underway, and discuss any questions the Commission may have.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
https://fresnocounty.sharepoint.com/sites/LAFCo/SharedFiles/LAFCO WORKING FILES/000 HEARINGS/2025/07- July/Regular Agenda/Item 
13 (CALAFCO Update)/Final Staff Report/Staff Report - CALAFCO Status Update.doc 




